

James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

Draft Initial Study – Mitigated Negative Declaration

prepared by

James Irrigation District 8749 9th Street San Joaquin, California 93660 Contact: Manny Amorelli

prepared with the assistance of

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 7080 North Whitney Avenue, Suite 101 Fresno, California 93720

May 2022



Table of Contents

Initial Study	
1.	Project Title1
2.	Lead Agency Name and Address1
3.	Contact Person and Phone Number1
4.	Project Location1
5.	Project Sponsor's Name and Address1
6.	General Plan Designation1
7.	Zoning5
8.	Description of Project5
9.	Surrounding Land Uses and Setting7
10.	Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is Required7
Environmer	ntal Factors Potentially Affected9
Determinat	ion9
Environmer	ntal Checklist11
1	Aesthetics11
2	Agriculture and Forestry Resources15
3	Air Quality17
4	Biological Resources25
5	Cultural Resources
6	Energy
7	Geology and Soils
8	Greenhouse Gas Emissions45
9	Hazards and Hazardous Materials51
10	Hydrology and Water Quality55
11	Land Use and Planning59
12	Mineral Resources61
13	Noise63
14	Population and Housing71
15	Public Services73
16	Recreation75
17	Transportation77
18	Tribal Cultural Resources79
19	Utilities and Service Systems83
20	Wildfire
21	Mandatory Findings of Significance
References	

Bibliography	93
List of Preparers	97

Tables

Health Effects Associated with Non-Attainment Criteria Pollutants	18
Air Quality Thresholds of Significance	20
Project Construction Emissions	21
Maximum Daily Project Construction Emissions	22
2020 Annual Gasoline and Diesel Consumption	35
Estimated Fuel Consumption during Construction	36
Estimated Project-Related GHG Emissions	48
AASHTO Maximum Vibration Levels for Preventing Damage	65
Vibration Annoyance Potential Criteria	65
Fresno County Exterior Noise Standards	67
	Health Effects Associated with Non-Attainment Criteria Pollutants Air Quality Thresholds of Significance Project Construction Emissions Maximum Daily Project Construction Emissions 2020 Annual Gasoline and Diesel Consumption Estimated Fuel Consumption during Construction Estimated Project-Related GHG Emissions AASHTO Maximum Vibration Levels for Preventing Damage Vibration Annoyance Potential Criteria Fresno County Exterior Noise Standards

Figures

Regional Location	2
Project Location	3
Site Photographs	4
Site Plan	.6
	Regional Location Project Location Site Photographs Site Plan

Appendices

Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Modeling
Biological Resources Assessment
Cultural Resources Assessment
Energy Calculations
Noise Modeling

Initial Study

1. Project Title

James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

2. Lead Agency Name and Address

James Irrigation District 8749 9th Street San Joaquin, California 93660

3. Contact Person and Phone Number

Manny Amorelli, General Manager (559) 693-4356

4. Project Location

The project site is an approximately 8.8-acre portion of an approximately 24.2-acre L-shaped parcel (Assessor's Parcel Number 030-170-33T) located immediately north of West Adams Avenue and between South Placer Avenue and the James Bypass Canal in unincorporated Fresno County. The project site consists of an actively tilled agricultural field, and site access is provided by South Placer Ave. An existing uncovered irrigation canal runs parallel along the site's southern boundary. The site is relatively flat, ranging from approximately 160 to 170 feet above mean sea level in elevation. Based on a review of historical aerial photographs, the site and surrounding areas have been intensively used for agriculture and disturbed since at least 1946. No intact native vegetation communities are located on the project site (Appendix B). Figure 1 depicts the regional location of the project, and Figure 2 depicts the project site location. Photographs of the project site are shown in Figure 3.

5. Project Sponsor's Name and Address

James Irrigation District 8749 9th Street San Joaquin, California 93660

6. General Plan Designation

Agriculture





San Jose 152 153 Soledad Pacific Cocann Merced Sierra Sierra Fresno Los Banos Fresno Lemoore Visalia Avenal Delano

Figure 2 Project Location



Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2022.

Figure 3 Site Photographs



Photograph 1. View of southeastern corner of the project site, facing north.



Photograph 2 View of southeastern corner of the project site, facing west.



Photograph 3. View of southeastern corner of the project site, facing southwest.



Photograph 4. View of sedimented culvert at southeastern corner of the project site, facing southwest.



Photograph 5. View of southwestern corner of the project site, facing east.



Photograph 6. View of northeastern corner of the project site, facing south.

7. Zoning

Exclusive Agricultural (AE-20)

8. Description of Project

The proposed project involves the installation of a one-megawatt (MW) solar array with single-axis tracking system, including 1.1-MW of direct current photovoltaic (PV) modules, steel support structures, a one-MW alternating current electrical inverter, cabling, and other system components. The project also includes a main service board and a step-up transformer as well as metering facilities, conductors, and safety equipment for interconnection to Pacific Gas and Electric's (PG&E) distribution system via a new primary meter installed within the project site. The electricity generated by the proposed project would offset JID's aggregated electricity usage for the canal and well pumps across JID-owned parcels. The solar power generated on the project site would be used to generate bill credits for JID's meters in the Renewable Energy Self-Generation Bill Credit Transfer Program (RES-BCT) arrangement to offset their PG&E energy generation charges. The project's interconnection with PG&E would require minor off-site construction to connect the proposed solar array to an existing PG&E generation tie line located immediately south of the project site.

Electrical equipment, including the switchboard, inverter pad, and inverter step-up transformer, would be located within the southern portion of the project site. Access to the project site would be provided by an existing unpaved access road leading from South Placer Avenue in parallel to West Adams Avenue, and the site would be secured by an approximately 24-foot-wide double swing gate. The existing unpaved access road would lead to an on-site, approximately 20-foot-wide compacted access path with sand surfacing that would proceed around the perimeter of the project site to provide access to the solar array for maintenance. A fence would also be installed around the perimeter of the project site. Figure 4 provides the proposed site plan.

The solar PV modules would be manufactured at an off-site location and transported to the project site via truck. Solar PV panels would be located on piles driven into the ground to depths of approximately eight feet and supports would be bolted onto the piles. All electrical equipment would be elevated above the base flood elevation line. Modules would be designed to minimize glare using an anti-reflective coating. No lighting would be required for the project.

Construction Activities

Project construction would take approximately four months and is anticipated to commence in February 2023. Construction activities would consist of two main phases – solar array installation and site restoration. Construction activities would occur for approximately nine hours per day from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and would occur five days per week, Monday through Friday. No grading, soil export/import, or vegetation clearing would be required.

Operation

The proposed project would be operated and monitored remotely. Maintenance activities would occur approximately 10 times per year for vegetation maintenance and/or repairs, and personnel trips would be completed via passenger vehicles. Maintenance events would not require the use of heavy-duty equipment.

James Irrigation District
James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

Figure 4 Site Plan



Washing of the solar PV panels to remove debris and improve energy production would be required periodically. Approximately 1,823 gallons (0.006 acre-feet) of water would be utilized for panel washing annually and would be delivered via water truck.

Decommissioning

At the end of the project's useful life (anticipated to be 35 years or more), the project would be decommissioned. Currently, standard decommissioning practices include dismantling and repurposing, salvaging/recycling, or disposing of the solar energy improvements. However, actual decommissioning and site restoration for the project would be conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements in effect at the time of project decommissioning, and a final decommissioning plan, based on then-current technology, site conditions, and regulations, would be prepared prior to actual decommissioning.

Under current standard decommissioning practices, solar PV modules are removed, collected, and can be recycled. Some or all of the components (i.e., aluminum and steel components) are salvaged and/or recycled, as feasible. Components that cannot be salvaged are removed and disposed of in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting

The project site is surrounded predominantly by agricultural uses to the north, south, east, and west. An irrigation canal runs parallel to the site's southern boundary. The nearest residence is located approximately 0.4 mile southwest of the project site.

10. Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is Required

The project will require issuance of a building permit from the County of Fresno.

This page intentionally left blank.

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

This project would potentially affect the environmental factors checked below, involving at least one impact that is "Potentially Significant" or "Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

	Aesthetics	Agriculture and Forestry Resources		Air Quality
•	Biological Resources	Cultural Resources		Energy
•	Geology and Soils	Greenhouse Gas Emissions		Hazards and Hazardous Materials
	Hydrology and Water Quality	Land Use and Planning		Mineral Resources
	Noise	Population and Housing		Public Services
	Recreation	Transportation	•	Tribal Cultural Resources
	Utilities and Service Systems	Wildfire		Mandatory Findings of Significance

Determination

Based on this initial evaluation:

- □ I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions to the project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- □ I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.
- I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "less than significant with mitigation incorporated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect (1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

James Irrigation District James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potential significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

Signature

MANNY AMORGLIT

Printed Name

5-11-22

Date

GENERAL MANAGER

Title

Environmental Checklist

1	Aastbatias				
	Aesinelics				
		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Exc Sec	cept as provided in Public Resources Code ction 21099, would the project:				
a.	Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?				•
b.	Substantially damage scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?				
c.	In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from a publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?			•	
d.	Create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime views in the area?			•	

a. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

The Fresno County General Plan Open Space and Conservation Element defines scenic vistas as an area designated, signed, and accessible to the public for purposes of viewing and sightseeing (County of Fresno 2000a). According to the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Fresno County General Plan, Fresno County contains a variety of terrain and vistas that could be considered scenic, particularly views of rural farmland, the foothills and the Sierra Nevada (County of Fresno 2000b). There are no designated scenic vistas in the viewshed of the project site. Therefore, no impact to a scenic vista would result from implementation of the project.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project substantially damage scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

The project site is not visible from a State-designated scenic highway, and no scenic resources, such trees, rock outcroppings, or historic buildings, are present on the project site. Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

c. Would the project, in non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from a publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

The project site is located in a non-urbanized area. Public views of the project site are primarily viewed by motorists traveling along West Adams Avenue. As shown in Figure 3, the project site consists of actively tilled agricultural lands with no native vegetation. Adjacent land uses feature agro-industrial equipment, such as water tanks, pumping systems, and silos. The surrounding landscape also includes other developed features such as power lines and road signage. The proposed project would introduce a solar array system with a low height profile into the visual landscape, and ruderal vegetation would continue to grow underneath the solar panels. The proposed solar PV array would have a similar visual character to that of the surrounding land uses and would therefore not result in a substantial degradation of the visual character or quality of the project site and its surroundings when completed. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

d. Would the project create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime views in the area?

Lighting

Construction and future decommissioning of the project would occur during daylight hours and would not require lighting. In addition, no permanent lighting is included as part of the proposed project. Therefore, the project would not create a new source of substantial light that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime views in the area, and no impact would occur.

Glare

The reflection of sunlight off solar panel surfaces would be the primary source of potential glare from the project. However, solar panels are comprised of cells designed to capture solar energy to convert it into usable energy. Therefore, solar panels are designed to absorb as much light as possible to maximize the efficiency of energy production. Additionally, PV panels are covered with a tempered glass layer treated with an anti-reflective coating that further reduces the reflectivity of the panels. When compared to common reflective surfaces, solar panels without an anti-reflective coating produce around the same amount of reflectivity as water, which is about half the amount of reflectivity as standard glass commonly used in residential or commercial applications (Shields 2010). Additional glare could be created by metal components of the proposed solar array system. The amount of glare created by such components would depend on the material type, surface area, and the orientation of the viewer. However, given the orientation of the panels and the low visual profile of the project, the period during which glare from panels or other metal components of the project could potentially be seen by motorists would be relatively short (i.e., a matter of minutes) and would be of relatively low intensity. Due to the relatively low intensity and low visibility of project-related glare during project operation, the project would not create a new source of substantial glare that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime views in the area. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	ould the project:				
a.	Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?				
b.	Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract?				•
C.	Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)); timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526); or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))?				
d.	Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?				•
e.	Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?				

- a. Would the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?
- b. Would the project conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract?

Although the project site has been historically used for agriculture, it is currently vacant and not actively used for agricultural activities. According to the California Department of Conservation's (2016) Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, the project site is classified as Urban and Built-Up Land. In addition, the project site is not currently under a Williamson Act land use contract (Data Basin 2022). Therefore, the project would not convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or

Farmland of Statewide Importance to non-agricultural use or conflict with any existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

- c. Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)); timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526); or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))?
- d. Would the project result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

The project site and the surrounding area are not designated, zoned, or used as forest or timberland. Therefore, the project would not conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland Production. In addition, the project would not result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

e. Would the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

As discussed under item (a), the project site has been historically used for agriculture but is currently vacant with no active agricultural operations. The surrounding properties are designated Urban and Built-Up Land and Other Land to the north, west, and east and Prime Farmland to the south by the California Department of Conservation's (2016) Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. As stated under items (c) and (d), the project site and the surrounding area are not designated, zoned, or used as forestland.

Construction of the project would involve temporary ground-disturbing activities, including the installation of piles for the solar array system. Installation of piles would not cause long-term impacts to the soil of the site, such as through paving, structural construction, or removal of substantial quantities of topsoil. In addition, during project operation, maintenance activities would occur approximately 10 times per year for vegetation maintenance and/or repairs and would not require the use of heavy-duty equipment. Because both construction and operation of the project would only temporarily impact on-site soils, the project would not convert Farmland to non-agricultural use. In addition, the project would not result in the conversion of nearby farmland to non-agricultural uses because it would not introduce uses on the project site that are incompatible with nearby agricultural uses, such as residents or school uses, that may be adversely affected by agricultural operations (dust generation, odors, or pesticide use). No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

3 Air Quality

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
W	ould the project:				
a.	Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?				-
b.	Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?			_	П
-				-	
C.	pollutant concentrations?			•	
d.	Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?				

Overview of Air Pollution

The federal and State Clean Air Acts (CAA) mandate the control and reduction of certain air pollutants. Under these laws, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) and the California Air Resources Board (CARB) have established the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and the California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) for "criteria pollutants" and other pollutants. Some pollutants are emitted directly from a source (e.g., vehicle tailpipe, an exhaust stack of a factory, etc.) into the atmosphere, including carbon monoxide, volatile organic compounds (VOC)/reactive organic gases (ROG),¹ nitrogen oxides (NO_X), particulate matter with diameters of ten microns or less (PM₁₀) and 2.5 microns or less (PM_{2.5}), sulfur dioxide, and lead. Other pollutants are created indirectly through chemical reactions in the atmosphere, such as ozone, which is created by atmospheric chemical and photochemical reactions primarily between ROG and NO_x. Secondary pollutants include oxidants, ozone, and sulfate and nitrate particulates (smog).

Air pollutant emissions are generated primarily by stationary and mobile sources. Stationary sources can be divided into two major subcategories:

Point sources occur at a specific location and are often identified by an exhaust vent or stack.
 Examples include boilers or combustion equipment that produce electricity or generate heat.

¹ CARB defines VOC and ROG similarly as, "any compound of carbon excluding carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic carbides or carbonates, and ammonium carbonate," with the exception that VOC are compounds that participate in atmospheric photochemical reactions. For the purposes of this analysis, ROG and VOC are considered comparable in terms of mass emissions, and the term ROG is used in this IS-MND.

 Area sources are widely distributed and include such sources as residential and commercial water heaters, painting operations, lawn mowers, agricultural fields, landfills, and some consumer products.

Mobile sources refer to emissions from motor vehicles, including tailpipe and evaporative emissions, and can also be divided into two major subcategories:

- On-road sources that may be legally operated on roadways and highways.
- Off-road sources include aircraft, ships, trains, and self-propelled construction equipment.

Air Quality Standards and Attainment

The project site is located in the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin (SJVAB), which is under the jurisdiction of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD). As the local air quality management agency, the SJVAPCD is required to monitor air pollutant levels to ensure that the NAAQS and CAAQS are met and, if they are not met, to develop strategies to meet the standards. Depending on whether the standards are met or exceeded, the SJVAB is classified as being in "attainment" or "nonattainment." In areas designated as nonattainment for one or more air pollutants, a cumulative air quality impact exists for those air pollutants, and the human health impacts associated with these criteria pollutants, presented in Table 1, are already occurring in that area as part of the environmental baseline condition. Under state law, air districts are required to prepare a plan for air quality improvement for pollutants for which the district is in non-compliance. The SJVAB is designated a nonattainment area for the state one-hour ozone standard as well as for the federal and state eight-hour ozone standards. The SJVAB is also designated as nonattainment for the state annual arithmetic mean and federal 24-hour PM_{2.5} standards as well as the state 24hour and annual arithmetic mean PM₁₀ standards. The nonattainment statuses of the SJVAB are the result of several factors, such as increased population and unique topographical and meteorological conditions that exacerbate the formation and retention of high levels of air pollution in the SJVAB (SJVAPCD 2016). The SJVAB is unclassified or in attainment for all other ambient air quality standards (SJVAPCD 2018).

Pollutant	Adverse Effects
Ozone	(1) Short-term exposures: (a) pulmonary function decrements and localized lung edema in humans and animals and (b) risk to public health implied by alterations in pulmonary morphology and host defense in animals; (2) long-term exposures: risk to public health implied by altered connective tissue metabolism and altered pulmonary morphology in animals after long-term exposures and pulmonary function decrements in chronically exposed humans; (3) vegetation damage; and (4) property damage.
Suspended particulate matter (PM ₁₀)	 Excess deaths from short-term and long-term exposures; (2) excess seasonal declines in pulmonary function, especially in children; (3) asthma exacerbation and possibly induction; adverse birth outcomes including low birth weight; (5) increased infant mortality; (6) increased respiratory symptoms in children such as cough and bronchitis; and (7) increased hospitalization for both cardiovascular and respiratory disease (including asthma).
Suspended particulate matter (PM _{2.5})	 (1) Excess deaths from short- and long-term exposures; (2) excess seasonal declines in pulmonary function, especially in children; (3) asthma exacerbation and possibly induction; (4) adverse birth outcomes, including low birth weight; (5) increased infant mortality; (6) increased respiratory symptoms in children, such as cough and bronchitis; and (7) increased hospitalization for both cardiovascular and respiratory disease, including asthma.
Source: U.S. EPA 2021a	

Table 1	Health Effects Associated with Non-Attainment Crite	ria Pollutants
	Redin Elects Associated with Non-Andinneth Chie	

Air Quality Management

Because the SJVAB is currently designated nonattainment for the ozone and PM_{2.5} NAAQS, the SJVAPCD is required to implement strategies to reduce pollutant levels to achieve attainment of the NAAQS. The SJVAPCD 2016 Ozone Plan and 2018 PM_{2.5} Plan include emissions inventories that identify sources of air pollutants, evaluations of the feasibility of implementing potential opportunities to reduce emissions, sophisticated computer modeling to estimate future levels of pollution, and a strategy for how air pollution will be further reduced. The plans also include innovative alternative strategies for accelerating attainment through non-regulatory measures. The 2016 Ozone Plan determines that, with implementation of the proposed control strategy, the SJVAB can expect to reach attainment of the 2008 eight-hour ozone NAAQS by December 31, 2031 (SJVAPCD 2016). The 2018 PM_{2.5} Plan for the 1997, 2006, and 2012 PM_{2.5} NAAQS includes a strategy for bringing SJVAB into attainment by the respective deadlines of 2023, 2024, and 2025 (SJVAPCD 2021).

Methodology

Air pollutant emissions generated by project construction were estimated using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), version 2020.4.0. CalEEMod uses project-specific information, including the project's land uses, square footages for different uses, and location to model a project's air pollutant and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The analysis reflects the construction and operation of the project as described under *Description of Project*.

Construction emissions modeled include emissions generated by construction equipment used onsite and emissions generated by vehicle trips associated with construction, such as worker and vendor trips. CalEEMod estimates construction emissions by multiplying the amount of time equipment is in operation by emission factors. Construction of the proposed project was analyzed based on the applicant-provided construction schedule and construction equipment list. Construction would occur on an approximately 8.8-acre portion of the project site over the course of approximately four months between February 2023 and May 2023. It is assumed that all construction equipment used would be diesel-powered, and no soil import or export would be required. In addition, the trip lengths for worker and vendor trips were increased from their default values to 30 miles because workers would likely travel to the project site from the closest major city, which is Fresno. This analysis assumes that the project would comply with all applicable regulatory standards. In particular, the project would comply with SJVAPCD Rule 8201 Construction, Demolition, Excavation, Extraction, And Other Earthmoving Activities. See Appendix A for the project's construction-related air pollutant emissions modeling and calculations.

Operational emissions of the project were not modeled in CalEEMod because the project would be operated and monitored remotely. Approximately 10 vehicle trips to the site would occur per year for vegetation maintenance and/or facility repairs, but no heavy equipment would be used during these visits. Therefore, minimal emissions would be generated by operational activities, and the significance of the project's operational emissions is evaluated qualitatively.

After 35 years, the solar array and associated equipment would likely be decommissioned and removed from the site via a series of activities that would be similar in nature and duration to project construction activities. Therefore, the project's decommissioning emissions were assumed to be approximately equal to the project's construction emissions for the purposes of this analysis.

Air Emission Thresholds

The SJVAPCD has adopted guidelines for quantifying and determining the significance of air quality emissions in its *Guidance for Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts* (GAMAQI; SJVAPCD 2015a). The SJVAPCD recommends the use of quantitative thresholds to determine the significance of temporary construction-related emissions of criteria air pollutant emissions, which are shown in Table 2.

Pollutant	NO _x	ROG	PM10	PM _{2.5}	SO _x	CO
Construction Thresholds (Tons Per Year)	10	10	15	15	27	100

 NO_x = nitrogen oxides; CO= carbon monoxide; SO_x = sulfur oxides; ROG = reactive organic gases; PM_{10} = particulate matter with a diameter of 10 microns or less; $PM_{1.5}$ = particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less Source: SJVAPCD 2015a

In addition to the annual SJVAPCD thresholds presented above, SJVAPCD has published the *Ambient Air Quality Analysis Project Daily Emissions Assessment* guidance, which is summarized in Section 8.4.2, *Ambient Air Quality Screening Tools*, of the SJVAPCD's GAMAQI (2015). The Ambient Air Quality Screening Tools guidance provides a screening threshold to evaluate construction activities of 100 pounds per day for any of the following pollutants: NO_X, ROG, PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}, SO_X, and carbon monoxide. Pursuant to the SJVAPCD's GAMAQI (2015), project impacts may be significant if on-site emissions from construction activities exceed the 100-pounds-per-day screening level after implementation of all enforceable mitigation measures. An ambient air quality assessment, which includes refined dispersion modeling, would be necessary if an exceedance occurs.

The SJVAPCD also recommends quantitative thresholds for evaluating a project's air quality impacts related to toxic air contaminants (TACs). Health effects from carcinogenic air toxics are usually described in terms of cancer risk. The SJVAPCD recommends a carcinogenic (cancer) risk threshold of 20 in a million. The Chronic Hazard Index is the sum of the individual substance chronic hazard indices for all TACs affecting the same target organ system. The SJVAPCD recommends a Chronic Hazard Index significance threshold of 1.0 and an Acute Hazard Index of 1.0.

a. Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Construction, operation, and decommissioning of the project would result in emissions of criteria pollutants including ozone precursors, such as ROG and NO_x, as well as particulate matter. The SJVAPCD has prepared several air quality attainment plans to achieve ozone and particulate matter standards, the most recent of which include the 2016 Plan for the 2008 8-Hour Ozone Standard and the 2018 Plan for the 1997, 2006, and 2012 PM_{2.5} Standards. The SJVAB is in attainment for carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide, and lead; therefore, the SJVAPCD has not developed attainment plans for these pollutants. The SJVAPCD has determined that projects with emissions above the thresholds of significance for criteria pollutants would conflict with and obstruct implementation of the SJVAPCD's air quality plans (SJVAPCD 2015b). As discussed under item (b), the project would not exceed the SJVAPCD's significance thresholds for criteria air pollutant emissions. Therefore, the project would not conflict with applicable air plans, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?

Construction Emissions

Project construction would generate temporary air pollutant emissions associated with fugitive dust (PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5}) and exhaust emissions from heavy construction equipment and construction vehicles. Table 3 summarizes the estimated annual emissions of criteria air pollutants during project construction. As shown therein, construction-related emissions would not exceed SJVAPCD thresholds.

		Annual Construction Emissions (tons/year)					
Construction Year	ROG	NO _x	со	SO _x	PM ₁₀	PM _{2.5}	
2023	<1	<1	1	<1	<1	<1	
SJVAPCD Thresholds of Significance	10	10	100	27	15	15	
Threshold Exceeded?	No	No	No	No	No	No	

Table 3 Project Construction Emissions

ROG = reactive organic gas, NO_x = nitrogen oxides, CO = carbon monoxide, SO_x = sulfur oxides, PM_{10} = particulate matter 10 microns in diameter or less, $PM_{2.5}$ = particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter

Notes: All calculations were made using CalEEMod v.2020.4.0. See Appendix A for calculations. Some numbers may not add up due to rounding. Emission data is pulled from CalEEMod's "mitigated" results, which is a term of art for the modeling output and is not equivalent to mitigation measures that may apply to the CEQA impact analysis. The CalEEMod "mitigated" results account for compliance with regulations (SJVAPCD Rule 8021) and project design features.

The SJVAB is a nonattainment area for the state one-hour ozone standard, the federal and state eight-hour ozone standards, the state PM_{2.5} standard, and the state PM₁₀ standard. The current nonattainment statuses of the SJVAB are the result of cumulative emissions from motor vehicles, off-road equipment, commercial and industrial facilities, and other emission sources. Projects that emit these pollutants or their precursors (e.g., ROG and NO_x for ozone) potentially contribute to this poor air quality. Therefore, project-related construction emissions must be compared to the SJVAPCD's 100-pounds-per-day ambient air quality screening threshold for ROG, NO_x, sulfur dioxide, carbon monoxide, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5}. As shown in Table 4, maximum daily emissions associated with project construction would not exceed the SJVAPCD's 100-pounds-per-day screening threshold during construction. Therefore, an ambient air quality assessment is not required for construction activities. Because the SJVAPCD annual and daily thresholds would not be exceeded, project construction would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard. Impacts would be less than significant.

Table 4 Maximum Daily Project Construction Emissions

	Emissions (lbs/day)					
	ROG	NO _x	СО	SO ₂	PM10	PM _{2.5}
Maximum Daily Emissions	1	11	15	<1	2	1
Screening Threshold	100	100	100	100	100	100
Screening Threshold Exceeded?	No	No	No	No	No	No

lbs/day = pounds per day, ROG = reactive organic gas, NO_x = nitrogen oxides, CO = carbon monoxide, SO_x = sulfur oxides, PM₁₀ = particulate matter 10 microns in diameter or less, PM_{2.5} = particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter

Notes: All calculations were made using CalEEMod v.2020.4.0. See Appendix A for calculations. Some numbers may not add up due to rounding. Emission data is pulled from CalEEMod's "mitigated" results, which is a term of art for the modeling output and is not equivalent to mitigation measures that may apply to the CEQA impact analysis. The CalEEMod "mitigated" results account for compliance with regulations (SJVAPCD Rule 8021) and project design features. Emissions presented are the highest of the winter and summer modeled emissions.

Operational Emissions

The proposed project would be operated and monitored remotely. Occasional passenger vehicle trips to the site for vegetation maintenance or repairs would occur approximately ten times per year. However, no heavy equipment would be required for vegetation maintenance. In addition, the project does not include the construction of structures or installation of lighting. Therefore, the project's operational emissions would be *de minimis*, and project operation would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is in non-attainment. Impacts would be less than significant.

Decommissioning Emissions

After 35 years, the solar array and associated equipment would likely be decommissioned and removed from the site via a series of activities that would be similar in nature and duration to project construction activities. As discussed above, the project's construction-related emissions would not exceed the SJVAPCD's daily or annual thresholds. Because the project's decommissioning activities would be similar to its construction activities, decommissioning emissions also would not exceed the SJVAPCD's daily or annual thresholds. Therefore, project decommissioning would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c. Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Certain population groups, such as children, the elderly, and people with health problems, are particularly sensitive to air pollution. Therefore, the majority of sensitive receptor locations are schools, hospitals, and residences. The nearest sensitive receptor to the project site is a single-family residence located approximately 0.5 mile southwest of the project site. Localized air quality impacts to sensitive receptors typically result from carbon monoxide hotspots and TACs, which are discussed in the following subsections.

Carbon Monoxide Hotspots

A carbon monoxide hotspot is a localized concentration of carbon monoxide that is above a carbon monoxide ambient air quality standard. Localized carbon monoxide hotspots can occur at

intersections with heavy peak hour traffic. Specifically, hotspots can be created at intersections where traffic levels are sufficiently high such that the local carbon monoxide concentration exceeds the federal one-hour standard of 35.0 ppm or the federal and state eight-hour standard of 9.0 ppm (CARB 2016).

The entire SJVAB is in conformance with state and federal carbon monoxide standards. In 2020, the maximum eight-hour average carbon monoxide concentration measured at the Fresno-Garland station, located approximately 25 miles northwest of project site, was 2.2 ppm, which is well below the state and federal 8-hour carbon monoxide standard of 9.0 ppm (SJVAPCD 2020). When operational, the proposed project would only require approximately ten vehicle trips per year for vegetation clearing and/or repairs because it would be operated remotely. Based on the low background level of carbon monoxide in the project area and the project's low number of vehicle trips, the project would not create new carbon monoxide hotspots or contribute substantially to existing carbon monoxide hotspots. Therefore, the proposed project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial carbon monoxide concentrations, and localized air quality impacts related to carbon monoxide hot spots would be less than significant.

Toxic Air Contaminants

TACs are defined by California law as air pollutants that may cause or contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in serious illness, or which may pose a present or potential hazard to human health. The following subsections discuss the project's potential to result in impacts related to TAC emissions during construction and operation.

Construction

Construction-related activities would result in temporary project-generated emissions of diesel particulate matter (DPM) exhaust emissions from off-road, heavy-duty diesel equipment for site preparation, grading, building construction, and other construction activities. DPM was identified as a TAC by CARB in 1998. The potential cancer risk from the inhalation of DPM (discussed in the following paragraphs) outweighs the potential non-cancer health impacts (CARB 2022) and is therefore the focus of this analysis.

Generation of DPM from construction projects typically occurs in a single area for a short period. Construction of the proposed project would occur over approximately four months. The dose to which receptors are exposed is the primary factor used to determine health risk. Dose is a function of the concentration of a substance or substances in the environment and the extent of exposure that person has with the substance. Dose is positively correlated with time, meaning that a longer exposure period would result in a higher exposure level for the Maximally Exposed Individual. The risks estimated for a Maximally Exposed Individual are higher if a fixed exposure occurs over a longer period of time. According to the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, health risk assessments, which determine the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic emissions, should be based on a 70-year exposure period; however, such assessments should be limited to the period/duration of activities associated with the project. Thus, the duration of proposed construction activities (i.e., four months) is approximately one percent of the total exposure period used for 30-year health risk calculations. Current models and methodologies for conducting health-risk assessments are associated with longer-term exposure periods of 9, 30, and 70 years, which do not correlate well with the temporary and highly variable nature of construction activities, resulting in difficulties in producing accurate estimates of health risk (Bay Area Air Quality Management District 2017).

The maximum PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} emissions would occur during the solar array installation phase, which would last for approximately 76 days. DPM generated by project construction would not create conditions where the probability is greater than 20 in one million of contracting cancer for the Maximally Exposed Individual (the SJVAPCD's carcinogenic risk threshold) or to generate ground-level concentrations of non-carcinogenic TACs that exceed a Chronic or Acute Hazard Index greater than one for the Maximally Exposed Individual (the SJVAPCD's carcinogenic the SHVAPCD's hazard index thresholds). Therefore, project construction would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial TAC concentrations, and impacts would be less than significant.

Operation

The proposed project does not include any stationary sources of TAC emissions, and operations and maintenance trips would be conducted using gasoline-powered vehicles, which do not generate TAC emissions. Therefore, project operation would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial TAC concentrations, and no impact would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

d. Would the project result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?

The project would generate oil and diesel fuel odors during construction and decommissioning activities from equipment use. The odors would be temporary and limited to these periods. With respect to operation, the SJVAPCD's GAMAQI (2015) identifies land uses associated with odor complaints to be wastewater treatment facilities, sanitary landfills, food processing facilities, and feed lot/dairy facilities. Solar PV systems are not listed in the guidance as a major odor-generating land use, and the project does not include components that would generate odors during operation. Therefore, the proposed project would not generate other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

4 Biological Resources

	Less than Significant		
Potentially Significant	with Mitigation	Less than Significant	
Impact	Incorporated	Impact	No Impact

Would the project:

- a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?
- a. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?
- b. Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?
- c. Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?
- d. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?
- e. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?



The following section is based primarily on the Biological Resources Assessment prepared by Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) for the proposed project in March 2022, which is included as Appendix B.

Existing Conditions

The project site contains an actively tilled agricultural field. Based on a review of historical aerial photographs, the site and surrounding areas have been intensively used for agriculture and disturbed since at least 1946. Soil on site consists of Merced clay loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes. Merced clay loam is listed as a hydric soil. No intact native vegetation communities are present within the project site, and no sensitive vegetation communities were observed within the project site. Two land cover types were identified within the project site during the field survey: Agricultural and Developed (Appendix B). The surrounding lands consist predominantly of heavily impacted agricultural fields and orchards.

The project site provides habitat for wildlife species which commonly occur in Fresno County. Avian species observed on or adjacent to the site during the reconnaissance survey include red-tailed hawk (*Buteo jamaicensis*), common raven (*Corvus corax*), western meadowlark (*Sturnella neglecta*), great egret (*Ardea alba*), Savannah sparrow (*Passerculus sandwichensis*), killdeer (*Charadrius vociferus*), great blue heron (*Ardea Herodias*), brewer's blackbird (*Euphagus cyanocephalus*), and black-necked stilt (*Himantopus mixicanus*). Terrestrial species observed/detected include botta's pocket gopher (*Thomomys bottae*), California ground squirrel (*Otospermophilus beecheyi*), and domestic dogs.

Methodology

The literature review included the background reports database research on special status biological resource occurrences within the Jamesan, California United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5minute quadrangle and surrounding eight quadrangles. Sources included the CDFW California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB); Biogeographic Information and Observation System; United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetlands Inventory; USFWS Information for Planning and Consultation; and USFWS Critical Habitat Portal. Other resources included the California Native Plant Society's online Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California; CDFW's Special Vascular Plants, Bryophytes, and Lichens List, and CDFW's Connectivity Areas-California Essential Habitat Connectivity Map. Aerial photographs, topographic maps, soil survey maps, geologic maps, and climatic data in the area were also examined. A review of the information contained within these databases, supported by the expert opinion of Rincon's biological staff, resulted in a list of special status species and other resources to be evaluated for their presence or potential to occur at the project site. In addition, a biological reconnaissance survey of the project site was conducted on February 8, 2022 and evaluated existing site conditions and the potential presence of special-status biological resources, including special-status plant and wildlife species, sensitive plant communities, jurisdictional waters and wetlands, wildlife movement, and habitat for nesting birds. The potential presence of special-status species is based on a literature review and reconnaissance site visit designed to assess habitat suitability only.

a. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Special status are species are those plants and animals listed, proposed for listing, or candidates for listing as Threatened or Endangered by the USFWS under the federal Endangered Species Act; those listed or candidates for listing as Rare, Threatened, or Endangered under the California Endangered Species Act or Native Plant Protection Act; those identified as Fully Protected by the California Fish

and Game Code (Sections 3511, 4700, 5050, and 5515); those identified as Species of Special Concern or Watch List species by the CDFW; and plants occurring on lists 1 and 2 of the California Native Plant Society California Rare Plant Rank system according to the following definitions:

- Rank 1A: Plants presumed extinct in California;
- Rank 1B.1: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere; seriously endangered in California (over 80 percent of occurrences threatened/high degree and immediacy of threat);
- Rank 1B.2: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere; fairly endangered in California (20 to 80 percent of occurrences threatened);
- Rank 1B.3: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere, not very endangered in California (less than 20 percent of occurrences threatened or no current threats known);
- Rank 2: Rare, threatened or endangered in California, but more common elsewhere.

The literature review identified 16 special-status plant species and 27 special-status wildlife species documented within the *Jamesan, California* USGS 7.5-minute quad and the eight surrounding quads.

Special-Status Plants

Sixteen special status plant species known to occur in the region were evaluated for their potential to occur in the study area. None of these 16 species are expected to occur within the project site. Species could be excluded based on known range and elevation, the lack of the species' specific habitat requirements within the study area, or due to the disturbed nature of the site and its lack of connectivity to natural vegetation communities (Appendix B). Therefore, the project would result in no impacts to special-status plant species.

Special-Status Wildlife

Of the 27 special-status wildlife species documented in the project site vicinity, 26 of these species are not expected to occur within the project site due to absence of suitable habitat. The one wildlife species with potential to occur within the site during foraging or dispersal is the Swainson's hawk (*Buteo swainsoni*) (Appendix B). In addition, one white-faced ibis was observed flying over the project site during a previous survey for the JID Solar Project #1 on December 9, 2021.

The white-faced ibis is on CDFW's watch list. It was only observed flying overhead and did not land on or nearby the project site. White-faced ibis use shallow freshwater marshes for foraging and dense tule thickets for nesting. No foraging or nesting habitat is present within or adjacent to the project site. The species is present in the region of the study area and may be spotted during dispersal but would be unlikely to use the project site due to lack of foraging and nesting habitat. No occurrences have been documented by the CNDDB within five miles of the project site (Appendix B). Despite the observation of this species flying overhead, the white-faced ibis is not likely to be present on the project site.

The Swainson's hawk is listed as a state threatened species. There are several records of Swainson's hawks nesting within five miles of the project site, last recorded in 2011. No Swainson's hawks or raptor nests were observed during the biological reconnaissance survey, and there are no trees present within the project site or in the immediate vicinity. Suitable nesting habitat within one mile of the project site is limited to isolated trees on the west side of Clayton Avenue. There is limited habitat for the species within the project site, but a stand of isolated trees along a canal to the west of the project site could provide marginal foraging and nesting habitat for the species. Therefore,

Swainson's hawk has a moderate potential to forage within the project site and a low potential to nest in the vicinity of the project site (Appendix B).

In addition, non-game migratory birds protected under the California Fish and Game Code Section 3503, such as native avian species common to grasslands, agricultural, developed, and ruderal areas, have the potential to breed and forage throughout the project. Nesting by a variety of common birds protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and California Fish and Game Code Section 3503 could occur in virtually any location throughout the study area on the ground surface or within native or non-native vegetation (Appendix B).

Impacts to the aforementioned special-status and protected species may occur through removal of vegetation if active nests are present. Impacts may also occur if active nests are present in undeveloped and landscaped areas adjacent to active construction or staging through disturbance and nest abandonment (Appendix B). Therefore, impacts to special-status wildlife would be potentially significant, and implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would be required to reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

The following mitigation measure would be required to reduce impacts to biological resources to a less than significant level.

BIO-1 Avoidance and Minimization of Impacts to Swainson's Hawk, Other Raptors and Nesting Birds

If construction activities occur during the non-nesting season (September 16 to January 31), no mitigation is required. If construction activities occur during the nesting bird season (February 1 to September 15), the following measures shall be implemented to reduce impacts to Swainson's hawk, other protected raptor species, and other nesting birds protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and California Fish and Game Code.

- A preconstruction nesting bird survey shall be conducted no more than 14 days prior to initiation of ground disturbance and vegetation removal. The survey shall be conducted within the project site and include a 150-foot buffer for passerines, 500-foot buffer for other raptors, and 0.5-mile buffer for active Swainson's hawk nests. The survey shall be conducted by a biologist familiar with the identification of avian species known to occur in the region.
- If the nesting bird survey results are negative, no further action shall be required. If nests are found, an appropriate avoidance buffer shall be determined and demarcated by the biologist with high visibility material. For Swainson's hawk nests, an avoidance buffer of up to 0.5 mile shall be established by a qualified biologist based on the nest location in relation to the project activity, the line-of-sight from the nest to the project activity and observed hawk behavior at the nest.
- All construction personnel shall be notified as to the existence of the buffer zones and to avoid entering buffer zones during the nesting season. No ground disturbing activities shall occur within the buffer until the avian biologist has confirmed that breeding/nesting is complete, and the young have fledged the nest. Encroachment into the buffer shall occur only at the discretion of the qualified biologist.
- Results of the preconstruction nesting bird survey shall be submitted in a brief letter report to JID no more than 30 days after completion of the survey.

Significance after Mitigation

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would minimize the potential for project construction activities to disturb Swainson's hawk, other raptors, and nesting birds by requiring nesting bird surveys prior to construction and the implementation of avoidance buffers if nests are found. Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would reduce project impacts to nesting birds to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

b. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Four sensitive natural communities are documented within the nine USGS quadrangles surrounding the project area: Coastal and Valley Freshwater Marsh, Valley Sink Scrub, Valley Sacaton Grassland, and Northern Claypan Vernal Pool. However, none of these sensitive plant communities or USFWS-designated critical habitat are present within the project site (Appendix B). Therefore, no impacts to sensitive natural communities or critical habitat would occur.

NO IMPACT

c. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

No jurisdictional wetlands or waters are mapped within the project site. The project site is an actively tilled agricultural field. One unnamed canal exists south of the project site and is classified as R5UBFx (Riverine [R], Unknown Perennial [5], Unconsolidated Bottom [UB], Semipermanently Flooded [F], and Excavated [x]). However, the proposed project would not impact this canal directly or indirectly (Appendix B). Therefore, the project would not have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

d. Would the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

Wildlife movement corridors, or habitat linkages, are generally defined as connections between habitat patches that allow for physical and genetic exchange between otherwise isolated animal populations. Such linkages may serve a local purpose, such as providing a linkage between foraging and denning areas, or they may be regional in nature. Some habitat linkages may serve as migration corridors, wherein animals periodically move away from an area and then subsequently return. Other corridors may be important as dispersal corridors for young animals. A group of habitat linkages in an area can form a wildlife corridor network (Appendix B).

In the vicinity of the project site, disked fields and existing roads could provide local scale opportunities for wildlife movement, particularly disturbance-tolerant species such as coyote. There are no Natural Landscape Blocks or Essential Connectivity Areas mapped within the project site, and surrounding land has long been disrupted by intensive agriculture. Because no significant wildlife movement corridors or habitat linkages are present within the project site, the project would not substantially alter existing wildlife movement or interfere with established resident or migratory wildlife corridors (Appendix B). Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

e. Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?

The Fresno County General Plan includes open space, conservation, and land use elements. Project activities would not in conflict with any elements of the General Plan because the proposed project is consistent with the agricultural zoning of the project site. In addition, no native trees were observed on site or are proposed for removal. Therefore, the project would not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

f. Would the project conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

The project site is not within any applicable habitat conservation plan areas. Therefore, the project would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

5 Cultural Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact				
Wo	Would the project:								
a.	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5?				•				
b.	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?								
c.	Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?			•					

The following section is based primarily on the Cultural Resources Assessment prepared by Rincon for the proposed project in February 2022, which is included as Appendix C.

This section provides an analysis of the project's impacts on cultural resources, including historical and archaeological resources as well as human remains. CEQA requires a lead agency determine whether a project may have a significant effect on historical resources (Public Resources Code [PRC] Section 21084.1). A historical resource is a resource listed in, or determined to be eligible for listing in, the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR); a resource included in a local register of historical resources; or any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or manuscript a lead agency determines to be historically significant (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5[a][1-3]).

A resource shall be considered historically significant if it:

- 1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage;
- 2. Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past;
- 3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or
- 4. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

In addition, if it can be demonstrated that a project would cause damage to a unique archaeological resource, the lead agency may require reasonable efforts be made to permit any or all of these resources to be preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state. PRC Section 21083.2(g) defines a unique archaeological resource as an archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, without merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it:

1. Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there is a demonstrable public interest in that information;

- 2. Has a special and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best available example of its type; or
- 3. Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or person.

To the extent that unique archaeological resources cannot be left undisturbed, mitigation measures are required (PRC Section 21083.2[a-b]).

Methodology

The Cultural Resources Assessment conducted by Rincon for the proposed project included a records search of the California Historical Resources Information System at the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center (SSJVIC), a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search from the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), and background and archival research. In addition, a pedestrian survey of the project site was conducted (Appendix C).

The SSJVIC records search was performed to identify previously conducted cultural resources studies, as well as previously recorded cultural resources within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius surrounding it. The records search included a review of available records at the SSJVIC, as well as the National Register of Historic Places, the CRHR, the Office of Historic Preservation Historic Properties Directory, the California Inventory of Historic Resources, the Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility list, and historical maps. The SSJVIC records search identified one cultural resources study conducted within a 0.5-mile radius of the project site, which did not evaluate the project site. The SSJVIC search also identified two previously recorded cultural resources within a 0.5-mile radius of the project site, neither of which are recorded within the project site. Both resources have been recommended as ineligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places (Baloian 2015a and 2015b).

On January 12, 2022, the NAHC responded to Rincon's SLF request, stating the SLF was returned with negative results for sacred lands in the vicinity of the project site.

a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5?

No buildings are present within the project site. The pedestrian survey did not identify potential cultural resources that may qualify as historical resources within the project site (Appendix C). Therefore, the project would not cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5, and no impact would occur.

b. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to §15064.5?

As part of the Cultural Resources Assessment (Appendix C), Rincon conducted a pedestrian survey of the project site on February 15, 2022. Rincon's assessment did not identify archaeological resources or archaeological deposits within the project site. However, the lack of surface evidence of archaeological materials does not preclude their subsurface existence. As discussed further in Section 18, *Tribal Cultural Resources*, JID received a response from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribal Government during Assembly Bill 52 consultation outreach efforts identifying the project site as sensitive for tribal cultural resources. Although there is an absence of recorded prehistoric or historic-period archaeological remains within the immediate vicinity and a high level of existing disturbance to the project site, the project site could have a moderate potential for

encountering intact subsurface archaeological deposits of Native American origin based on concerns from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribal Government (Berggren 2022). In addition, unanticipated archaeological discoveries are a possibility during project-related ground disturbance given that subsurface conditions are not fully known until excavation commences. If unanticipated archaeological resources are present underground, ground-disturbing construction activities could result in the damage or destruction of these resources. Therefore, in the unlikely event of an unanticipated discovery, impacts to unknown archaeological resources would be potentially significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1 through CR-3 would be required to reduce project impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

CR-1 Worker Environmental Awareness Program

Due to the identified level of sensitivity of the project site, an environmental professional shall conduct a Worker Environmental Awareness Program training on archaeological sensitivity for all construction personnel prior to the commencement of any ground-disturbing activities within the surveyed area. The training material shall be developed by an archaeologist who meets or exceeds the Secretary of Interior's Professional Qualification Standards for archaeology (National Park Service 1983). Archaeological sensitivity training shall include a description of the types of cultural material that may be encountered, cultural sensitivity issues, regulatory issues, and the proper protocol for treatment of the materials in the event of a find.

CR-2 Archaeological Monitoring

JID shall retain an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualification Standards for archaeology (National Park Service 1983) to conduct monitoring of all project-related ground disturbing activities. The monitor will have the authority to halt and redirect work should any archaeological resources be identified during monitoring. If archaeological resources are encountered during ground-disturbing activities, work within 60 feet of the find will halt, and the find will be evaluated for listing in the CRHR and National Register of Historic Places. Archaeological monitoring may be reduced to spot-checking or eliminated at the discretion of the monitor, in consultation with JID, as warranted by conditions such as encountering bedrock, sediments being excavated are fill, or negative findings during the first 60 percent of rough grading. If monitoring is reduced to spot-checking will occur when ground-disturbance moves to a new location within the project site and when ground disturbance will extend to depths not previously reached (unless those depths are within bedrock).

CR-3 Unanticipated Discovery of Cultural Resources

In the event that archaeological resources are encountered during ground-disturbing activities and monitoring has been reduced or halted, work in the immediate area should be halted and an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualifications Standards for archeology (National Park Service 1983) should be contacted immediately to evaluate the find. If the find is prehistoric, then a Native American representative should also be contacted to participate in the evaluation of the find. If necessary, the evaluation may require preparation of a treatment plan and archaeological testing for CRHR eligibility. If the discovery proves to be eligible for the CRHR and cannot be avoided by the proposed project, additional work, such as data recovery excavation, may be warranted to mitigate any significant impacts to historical resources.
Significance After Mitigation

Mitigation Measure CR-1 through CR-3 require the implementation of a worker environmental awareness program, archaeological and Native American monitoring, and avoidance measures for and evaluation of any unanticipated discoveries of cultural resources, which would reduce potential impacts to archeological resources to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

c. Would the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

No cemeteries, formal or otherwise, have been recorded within or are known to exist within the project site. Human burials outside of formal cemeteries often occur in prehistoric archaeological contexts. In addition to being potential archaeological resources, human burials have specific provisions for treatment in PRC Section 5097. Additionally, California Health and Safety Code Sections 7050.5, 7051, and 7054 contain specific provisions for the protection of human burial remains. Existing regulations address the illegality of interfering with human burial remains and protects them from disturbance, vandalism, or destruction. PRC Section 5097.98 also addresses the disposition of Native American burials, protects such remains, and establishes the NAHC as the entity to resolve any related disputes.

If human remains are found, California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states no further disturbance shall occur until the County coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to PRC Section 5097.98. In the event of an unanticipated discovery of human remains, the County coroner must be notified immediately. If the human remains are determined to be prehistoric, the coroner would notify the NAHC, which would determine and notify a most likely descendant (MLD). The MLD must complete the inspection of the site within 48 hours of being granted access to the site and may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. Compliance with PRC Section 5097.98 and California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 would reduce potential impacts to unknown human remains to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

6 Energy

	01				
		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
W	ould the project:				
a.	Result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?				•
b.	Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?				

As a state, California is one of the lowest per capita energy users in the United States, ranked 50th in the nation, due to its energy efficiency programs and mild climate (United States Energy Information Administration 2022). Electricity is primarily consumed by the built environment for lighting, appliances, heating and cooling systems, fireplaces, and other uses such as industrial processes in addition to being consumed by alternative fuel vehicles. The proposed project would generate electricity that would be supplied to the PG&E distribution system and would not require the usage of natural gas. Therefore, this section focuses on petroleum energy consumption. Petroleum fuels are primarily consumed by on-road and off-road equipment in addition to some industrial processes, with California being one of the top petroleum-producing states in the nation (CEC 2022a). Gasoline, which is used by light-duty cars, pickup trucks, and sport utility vehicles, is the most used transportation fuel in California with 12.6 billion gallons sold in 2020 (CEC 2022b). Diesel, which is used primarily by heavy-duty trucks, delivery vehicles, buses, trains, ships, boats and barges, farm equipment, and heavy-duty construction and military vehicles, is the second most used fuel in California with 1.7 billion gallons sold in 2020 (CEC 2022b). Table 5 summarizes the petroleum fuel consumption for Fresno County, in which the project site is located, as compared to statewide consumption.

		-	
Fuel Type	Fresno County (gallons)	California (gallons)	Proportion of Statewide Consumption ¹
Gasoline	347,000,000	12,572,000,000	3%
Diesel	66,000,000	1,700,000,000	4%

Table 52020 Annual Gasoline and Diesel Consumption

¹ For reference, the population of Fresno County (1,026,681 persons) is approximately three percent of the population of California (39,466,855 persons) (California Department of Finance 2021). Source: CEC 2022b

Energy consumption is directly related to environmental quality in that the consumption of nonrenewable energy resources releases criteria air pollutant and GHG emissions into the atmosphere. The environmental impacts of air pollutant and GHG emissions associated with the

project's energy consumption are discussed in detail in Section 3, *Air Quality*, and Section 8, *Greenhouse Gas Emissions*, respectively.

a. Would the project result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

Construction Energy Demand

The proposed project would use diesel and gasoline-fueled construction vehicles and equipment during the construction phase. Construction equipment, worker trips, and vendor trips information provided by White Pine Renewables as well as information from the air pollutant and GHG emissions modeling were used to estimate energy consumption associated with the proposed project (see Section 3, *Air Quality*, for additional modeling details). As shown in Table 6, project construction would require approximately 3,784 gallons of gasoline and approximately 8,345 gallons of diesel fuel. These energy estimates are conservative because they assume the construction equipment operates daily during the construction phases.

Table 6 Estimated Fuel Consumption during Construction

	Fue	Fuel Consumption (gallons)		
Source	Gasoline	Diesel		
Construction Equipment & Vendor Trips	0	8,345		
Construction Worker Vehicle Trips	3,784	0		
See Appendix D for energy calculation sheets.				

Energy use during construction would be temporary in nature, and equipment used would be typical of similar-sized projects in the region. In addition, construction contractors would be required to comply with the provisions of California Code of Regulations Title 13 Sections 2449 and 2485, which prohibit diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles and off-road diesel vehicles from idling for more than five minutes and would minimize unnecessary fuel consumption. Construction equipment would be subject to the U.S. EPA Construction Equipment Fuel Efficiency Standard, which would also minimize inefficient, wasteful, or unnecessary fuel consumption. These practices would result in efficient use of energy necessary to construct the project. Furthermore, in the interest of cost-efficiency, construction contractors also would not utilize fuel in a manner that is wasteful or unnecessary. Therefore, the project would not result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to the inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary consumption of energy resources during construction, and no impact would occur.

Operational Energy Demand

The proposed project would be operated and monitored remotely with occasional passenger vehicle trips to the site for vegetation maintenance and/or repairs approximately ten times per year. These trips would require minimal fuel consumption, and vehicles used to complete these trips would be subject to federal and state fuel efficiency regulations, which would minimize the potential for wasteful or inefficient fuel consumption.

The project site would experience an annual average solar radiation of 5.96 hours per day, which is approximately 25 percent of the day (National Renewable Energy Laboratories 2022). Therefore, the project would achieve approximately 2,175 operational hours per year. Based on the proposed

capacity of 1 MW (1,000 kilowatts), the proposed solar array system would thus generate approximately 2,175,000 kilowatt-hours of renewable energy per year,² which would offset an equivalent portion JID's current usage of nonrenewable energy resources for systemwide electricity demands. Thus, the minimal amount of nonrenewable fuel consumption required during project operation would be substantially offset by the generation of renewable electricity from the project. Therefore, project operation would not result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources. No impact would occur.

Decommissioning Energy Demand

After 35 years, the solar array and associated equipment would likely be decommissioned and removed from the site via a series of activities that would be similar in nature and duration to project construction activities. The project's decommissioning energy demand would therefore be similar to its construction energy demand, as shown in Table 6. Project decommissioning activities would be required to comply with the latest regulations in effect at the time, such as the California Code of Regulations and the U.S. EPA Construction Equipment Fuel Efficiency Standard. These practices would increase the energy efficiency of activities necessary to decommission the project. Also, as with project construction, decommissioning contractors would not utilize fuel in a manner that is wasteful or unnecessary. Therefore, project decommissioning would not result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

The project involves the construction and decommissioning of a solar array and would produce a new renewable energy source in Fresno County. The project would interconnect to Pacific Gas and Electric's (PG&E) distribution system via a new primary meter installed within the project site. The 2,175,000 kWh-per-year electricity generation by the proposed project would offset JID aggregated electricity usage for the canal and well pumps across JID-owned parcels. JID would collect credits from PG&E for solar power generated on the project site, which would be used to offset JID's electricity charges from PG&E under the Net Energy Metering Aggregation tariff. In addition, project would directly support California's Renewables Portfolio Standard goal of increasing the percentage of electricity procured from renewable sources to at least 50 percent.

In terms of mobile energy usage, the National Highway Traffic and Safety Administration required manufacturers of light-duty vehicles to meet a combined estimated average fuel economy level of 34.1 miles per gallon (mpg) by the model year 2016 for passenger vehicles and light trucks. Over 30-plus years, the National Energy Conservation Policy Act regulatory program has improved fuel economy throughout the United States vehicle fleet. In addition, it protected against inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary use of energy. The project's construction and decommissioning workers would comply with vehicle standards; therefore, the project would not impede the efficient use of mobile fuel.

The project would support the State's energy goals by providing a new renewable energy source. The renewable source would offset JID electricity usage and would comply with fuel and energy

² (1 MW grid size) x (2,175 operational hours per year) x (1,000 kilowatt-hours/MW) = 2,175,000 kilowatt-hours produced per year

efficiency regulations. Therefore, the project would not conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

7 Geology and Soils

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	ould t	the project:				
a.	Dire sub risk	ectly or indirectly cause potential stantial adverse effects, including the of loss, injury, or death involving:				
	1.	Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?				
	2.	Strong seismic ground shaking?			-	
	3.	Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?			-	
	4.	Landslides?				-
b.	Res loss	ult in substantial soil erosion or the of topsoil?			•	
C.	Be l is u uns pot land liqu	ocated on a geologic unit or soil that nstable, or that would become table as a result of the project, and entially result in on- or off-site dslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, efaction, or collapse?				
d.	Be l in T Cod or ii	ocated on expansive soil, as defined able 18-1-B of the Uniform Building le (1994), creating substantial direct ndirect risks to life or property?		-		
e.	Hav sup alte whe disp	re soils incapable of adequately porting the use of septic tanks or rnative wastewater disposal systems ere sewers are not available for the posal of wastewater?				
f.	Dire pale geo	ectly or indirectly destroy a unique eontological resource or site or unique logic feature?				

a.1. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?

Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones are regulatory zones established throughout California by the California Geological Survey. These zones identify areas where potential surface rupture along an active fault could prove hazardous and where special studies are required to characterize the fault rupture hazard potential to habitable structures (California Department of Conservation 2019). The nearest active faults are the Nunez Fault located approximately 32 miles southwest of the project site, the Ortigalita Fault located approximately 40 miles southeast of the project site, and the San Andreas Fault located approximately 44 miles southeast of the project site (California Department of Conservation 2022). The project does not involve the construction of habitable structures or placement of permanent on-site personnel because it will be operated and monitored remotely. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death, involving rupture of a known earthquake fault. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

a.2. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving strong seismic ground shaking?

Due to the project site's proximity to nearby fault zones, it may be subjected to seismic ground shaking in the event of an earthquake. Strong seismic ground shaking could potentially result in damage to the proposed solar array system. However, the project would be required to comply with the seismic design parameters for the project consistent with 2019 California Building Code standards. With incorporation of applicable seismic safety measures into project design and construction, the project would not cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death, involving strong seismic ground shaking. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

a.3. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Liquefaction is the process whereby soil is temporarily transformed to a fluid form during intense and prolonged ground shaking. The Fresno County General Plan Final EIR states no specific countywide assessments of liquefaction hazards have been formed. However, soil types within the San Joaquin Valley are not conducive to liquefaction because they are either too coarse or too high in clay content (County of Fresno 2000b). Additionally, project design and construction would incorporate standard safety measures from the California Building Code to address potential impacts from liquefaction. Thus, the project would not directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death, involving seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

a.4. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides?

The project site is relatively flat and not located in an area designated by the Fresno County General Plan Final EIR as a high landslide risk (County of Fresno 2000b). Additionally, the project would not involve the construction of habitable structures or placement of permanent on-site personnel because it will be operated and monitored remotely. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death involving landslides. There would be no impact.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

The project site is located on land that consists entirely of Merced clay loam, slightly saline (United Stated Department of Agriculture 2019). This soil's loss tolerance factor, which the maximum amount of erosion at which the quality of soil as a medium for plant growth can be maintained measured in tons per acre, is a rated a five on a one-to-five scale. Thus, the soil on the project site consists of deep soils that are the least subject to damage by erosion (United States Department of Agriculture 2019). Additionally, no grading, soil export/import, or vegetation clearing would be required during project construction. Therefore, the project would not result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c. Would the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

The project site is relatively flat and sits on alluvium (University of California, Davis 2022). According to the Fresno County General Plan Background Report, there is no risk of large landslides in the valley area of the Fresno County due to its relatively flat topography (County of Fresno 2000c). In addition, as discussed under items (a)(iii) and (a)(iv), the site is not located on an unstable geologic unit or soil. The project would not be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on-or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

d. Would the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?

Expansive soils are those that greatly increase in volume when they absorb water and shrink when they dry out (County of Fresno 2000). Soils with a high clay content exhibit greater shrink-swell potential than soils with low clay content. The project site is located on soil that consists entirely of Merced clay loam with a clay content of approximately 43.7 percent (United States Department of Agriculture 2019). The Fresno County General Plan Background Report identifies some Temple-Merced complex clays as having high to moderately high shrink-swell potential, primarily in the Fresno Slough which is northwest of the project site (County of Fresno 2000c). Policy HS-D.8 of the Fresno County General Plan states the County shall require a soils report for any proposed development that requires a County permit and is located in an area containing soils with high shrink-swell potential, and construction measures shall be incorporated that reduce the risks associated with expansive soils (County of Fresno 2000a). Although the project does not involve the construction of habitable structures or placement of permanent on-site personnel, it would still be

required to comply with these regulations because the project requires a building permit from the County of Fresno. Therefore, given the moderate to high shrink-swell potential of soils on the project site, impacts related to expansive soil would be potentially significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-1 would be required to reduce project impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

GEO-1 Expansion Index Test and Minimization Measures

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, JID shall retain a qualified geologist to conduct an Expansion Index Test on a bulk soil sample obtained from the project site to determine the expansion potential of on-site soil. If the Expansion Index value of the soil is greater than or equal to 51, the project shall include all applicable geotechnical recommendations made by the qualified geologist, such as design features consistent with 2019 California Building Code, Title 24, Part 2, Section 1808A.6. Features may include, but would not be limited to, specialized foundations, removal of expansive soils, and soil stabilization.

Significance After Mitigation

Mitigation Measure GEO-1 requires testing to determine the Expansion Index of soil on the project site and the incorporation of design features to minimize effects associated with expansive soils should on-site soils be determined to have moderate to high expansion potential, which would reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

e. Would the project have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

The project does not include the installation of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems on the project site and would not have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems. Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

f. Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Rincon evaluated the paleontological sensitivity of the geologic units that underlie the project site using the results of the paleontological locality search and a review of existing information in the scientific literature concerning known fossils within those geologic units. Following the literature review, a paleontological sensitivity classification was assigned to the geologic units within the project area. The Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP; 2010) has developed a system for assessing paleontological sensitivity and describes sedimentary rock units as having high, low, undetermined, or no potential for containing scientifically significant nonrenewable paleontological resources. This criterion is based on rock units within which vertebrate or significant invertebrate fossils have been determined by previous studies to be present or likely to be present. The potential for impacts to significant paleontological resources is based on the potential for ground disturbance to directly impact paleontologically sensitive geologic units. The project site is located in the Great Central Valley geomorphic province, one of the eleven major geomorphic provinces in California (California Geological Survey 2002). The Great Central Valley is an over 400-mile-long, asymmetrical, northwestwardly-trending structural trough formed between the uplands of the Coast Ranges to the west and the Sierra Nevada to the east. The valley is filled with up to six vertical miles of sediment, including marine, alluvial, and lacustrine (lake) deposits that have been deposited almost continuously since the Jurassic period (approximately 160 million years ago). The project site lies within the Jameson USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle and is mapped at a scale of 1:250,000 by Jennings and Strand (1958). The project site contains one geologic unit mapped at ground surface - Recent (late Holocene) basin deposits (Qb), which consist of late Holocene-aged sediments laid down during flooding events. Late Holocene sediments are too young to preserve scientifically significant paleontological resources (SVP 2010), but they may grade into older, more paleontologically sensitive sediments in the subsurface. However, the project site is located far from the edges of the basin that forms the Great Central Valley, so the late Holocene layers, which have a low paleontological sensitivity, are likely tens to hundreds of feet thick at the project site. Ground-disturbing activities associated with the project would consist of driving piles to depths of approximately eight feet, where the sediment is expected to be late Holocene in age and thus low in paleontological sensitivity. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic features, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:					
a.	Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?				
b.	Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?				

Overview of Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

Climate change is the observed increase in the average temperature of the Earth's atmosphere and oceans along with other substantial changes in climate (such as wind patterns, precipitation, and storms) over an extended period of time. Climate change is the result of numerous, cumulative sources of GHG emissions contributing to the "greenhouse effect," a natural occurrence which takes place in Earth's atmosphere and helps regulate the temperature of the planet. The majority of radiation from the sun hits Earth's surface and warms it. The surface, in turn, radiates heat back towards the atmosphere in the form of infrared radiation. Gases and clouds in the atmosphere trap and prevent some of this heat from escaping into space and re-radiate it in all directions.

GHG emissions occur both naturally and as a result of human activities, such as fossil fuel burning, decomposition of landfill wastes, raising livestock, deforestation, and some agricultural practices. GHGs produced by human activities include carbon dioxide (CO₂), methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride. Different types of GHGs have varying global warming potentials (GWP). The GWP of a GHG is the potential of a gas or aerosol to trap heat in the atmosphere over a specified timescale (generally, 100 years). Because GHGs absorb different amounts of heat, a common reference gas (CO₂) is used to relate the amount of heat absorbed to the amount of the gas emitted, referred to as "carbon dioxide equivalent" (CO₂e), which is the amount of GHG emitted multiplied by its GWP. Carbon dioxide has a 100-year GWP of one. By contrast, methane has a GWP of 30, meaning its global warming effect is 30 times greater than CO₂ on a molecule per molecule basis (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [IPCC] 2021).³

The United Nations IPCC expressed that the rise and continued growth of atmospheric CO_2 concentrations is unequivocally due to human activities in the IPCC's Sixth Assessment Report (2021). Human influence has warmed the atmosphere, ocean, and land, which has led the climate to

³ The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's (2021) *Sixth Assessment Report* determined that methane has a GWP of 30. However, the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan published by the California Air Resources Board uses a GWP of 25 for methane, consistent with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's (2007) *Fourth Assessment Report*. Therefore, this analysis utilizes a GWP of 25.

warm at an unprecedented rate in the last 2,000 years. It is estimated that between the period of 1850 through 2019, a total of 2,390 gigatons of anthropogenic CO₂ was emitted. It is likely that anthropogenic activities have increased the global surface temperature by approximately 1.07 degrees Celsius between the years 2010 through 2019 (IPCC 2021). Furthermore, since the late 1700s, estimated concentrations of CO₂, methane, and nitrous oxide in the atmosphere have increased by over 43 percent, 156 percent, and 17 percent, respectively, primarily due to human activity (U.S. EPA 2021b). Emissions resulting from human activities are thereby contributing to an average increase in Earth's temperature. Potential climate change impacts in California may include loss of snowpack, sea level rise, more extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, and more drought years (State of California 2018).

Regulatory Framework

California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006

In response to climate change, California implemented Assembly Bill (AB) 32, the "California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006." AB 32 required the reduction of statewide GHG emissions to 1990 emissions levels (essentially a 15 percent reduction below 2005 emission levels) by 2020 and the adoption of rules and regulations to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and costeffective GHG emissions reductions. On September 8, 2016, the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) 32 into law, extending AB 32 by requiring the State to further reduce GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 (the other provisions of AB 32 remain unchanged). On December 14, 2017, CARB adopted the 2017 Scoping Plan, which provides a framework for achieving the 2030 target. The 2017 Scoping Plan relies on the continuation and expansion of existing policies and regulations, such as the Cap-and-Trade Program and the Low Carbon Fuel Standard, and implementation of recently adopted policies and legislation, such as SB 1383 (aimed at reducing short-lived climate pollutants including methane, hydrofluorocarbon gases, and anthropogenic black carbon) and SB 100 (discussed further below). The 2017 Scoping Plan also puts an increased emphasis on innovation, adoption of existing technology, and strategic investment to support its strategies. As with the 2013 Scoping Plan Update, the 2017 Scoping Plan does not provide projectlevel thresholds for land use development. Instead, it recommends local governments adopt policies and locally appropriate quantitative thresholds consistent with a statewide per capita goal of six metric tons (MT) of CO₂e by 2030 and two MT of CO₂e by 2050 (CARB 2017).

Senate Bill 100

Other relevant state laws and regulations include SB 100, which was adopted on September 10, 2018 and supports the reduction of GHG emissions from the electricity sector by accelerating the state's Renewables Portfolio Standard Program. SB 100 requires electricity providers to increase procurement from eligible renewable energy resources to 33 percent of total retail sales by 2020, 60 percent by 2030, and 100 percent by 2045.

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Climate Change Action Plan

In August 2008, the SJVAPCD Governing Board adopted the Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) (SJVAPCD 2008a). The CCAP directed the SJVAPCD Air Pollution Control Officer to develop guidance to assist lead agencies, project proponents, permit applicants, and interested parties in assessing and reducing the impacts of project-specific GHG emissions on global climate change. In 2009, the SJVAPCD adopted the *Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for New Projects Under CEQA* and the *District Policy – Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for*

Stationary Source Projects Under CEQA When Serving as the Lead Agency. The guidance and policy rely on the use of performance-based standards, otherwise known as Best Performance Standards, to assess significance of project-specific GHG emissions on global climate change during the CEQA review process (SJVAPCD 2009a and 2009b).

The use of Best Performance Standards is a method for streamlining the process of determining the significance of a project's GHG emissions under CEQA and is not a required emission reduction measure. Projects that implement Best Performance Standards are determined to have a less-than-significant GHG emissions impact. Otherwise, the demonstration of a 29-percent reduction in GHG emissions from business-as-usual is required to determine that a project would have a less-than-significant impact and would be consistent with the 2020 GHG emissions reduction targets under AB 32. However, the guidance does not limit a lead agency's authority in establishing its own process and guidance for determining significance of project-related impacts on global climate change (SJVAPCD 2008b).

SJVAPCD's adopted Best Performance Standards are specifically directed at reducing GHG emissions from stationary sources that require a permit from the SJVAPCD. Therefore, the adopted Best Performance Standards would not generally be applicable to the project because the project would not be a stationary source of emissions.

Methodology

GHG emissions associated with project construction and operation were estimated using CalEEMod, version 2020.4.0, with the assumptions described under Section 3, *Air Quality*. In addition, construction emissions were amortized over the project's estimated 35-year lifetime pursuant to guidance from the Association of Environmental Professionals (2016).

Operation of the project would generate renewable energy over its anticipated 35-year lifetime. This energy would offset GHG emissions that are currently produced by JID's systemwide electricity consumption from PG&E, which is supplied by a mix of renewable and nonrenewable power generation resources. The annual energy generation and associated offset GHG emissions of the proposed solar array system were estimated based on solar radiation at the project site and annual operational time as well as PG&E's current power generation portfolio.⁴ See Appendix A for the project's construction-related GHG emissions modeling and calculations.

Significance Thresholds

Most individual projects do not generate sufficient GHG emissions to directly influence climate change. However, physical changes caused by a project can contribute incrementally to cumulative effects that are significant, even if individual changes resulting from a project are limited. The issue of climate change typically involves an analysis of whether a project's contribution towards an impact would be cumulatively considerable. "Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of an individual project are significant when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15064[h][1]).

⁴ PV cell capacity is rated in terms of megawatts or kilowatts and indicates the amount of instantaneous power produced when operating at peak sun exposure. The total amount of electricity produced is measured in watt-hours and is dependent on operational time. The operational time of a solar panel is defined by the amount of time that the photovoltaic cells are actively converting solar energy into power, which depends on solar radiation. Solar radiation is the measure of energy emitted from the sun and varies daily depending on the time of day, season, local landscape, and geography.

According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5, projects can tier off a qualified GHG reduction plan, which allows for project-level evaluation of GHG emissions through the comparison of the project's consistency with the GHG reduction policies included in a qualified GHG reduction plan. However, JID has not developed a qualified GHG reduction plan that can be used for project-level evaluation. Another approach is to use a quantitative threshold recommended by the local air district. However, the SJVAPCD has not adopted a numeric threshold to address project-level GHG emissions, and SJVAPCD's Best Performance Standards approach does not include measures to address the 2030 target established by SB 32. Therefore, for the purposes of this analysis, the project's GHG emissions would be less than significant if the project would contribute to a net decrease in GHG emissions.

a. Would the project generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

The project would generate GHG emissions directly and indirectly during construction, operation, and decommissioning of the project. Table 7 presents total estimated emissions from construction and decommissioning activities. As shown therein, estimated GHG emissions would be 98 MT of CO₂e during project construction and 98 MT CO₂e during project decommissioning. Total GHG emissions generated from project activities would be approximately 198 MT CO₂e, or approximately 6 MT CO₂e per year when amortized over the 35-year project lifetime. Operation of the project is not expected to be a substantial source of GHG emissions because the project would be unmanned operated remotely, and minimal vehicle trips would be needed for maintenance and repair purposes. Therefore, operational GHG emissions would be *de minimis* and are excluded from this analysis.

Project Emissions (MT of CO ₂ e)			
Construction Emissions	98		
Decommissioning Emissions ¹	98		
Total Emissions	196		
Amortized over 35 Years	6 per year		
Annual Displaced GHG Emissions	(178)		
Net Annual GHG Emissions	(172)		
Total Displaced GHG Emissions ²	(6,230)		
Net Total GHG Emissions	(6,034)		

Table 7 Estimated Project-Related GHG Emissions

¹ After 35 years, the solar array and associated equipment would likely be decommissioned and removed from the site via a series of activities that would be similar in nature and duration to project construction activities. Therefore, the project's decommissioning emissions were assumed to be approximately equal to the project's construction emissions for the purposes of this analysis.

² Assumes a 35-year project lifetime

MT = metric ton; CO₂e = carbon dioxide equivalent

See Appendix A for calculations

Although the project would emit approximately 6 MT CO₂e per year when the construction and decommissioning emissions are amortized over the project's 35-year lifetime, the project would offset these emissions by supplying renewable energy to the PG&E grid, thereby replacing some of energy supplied by PG&E from nonrenewable resources with clean energy. Based on the project's anticipated annual electricity generation and the GHG emissions generated using PG&E's 2020 power mix, the project has the potential to result in a net reduction of 178 MT of CO₂e per year

(Appendix A). Therefore, the proposed project would result in a net decrease of approximately 174 MT of CO₂e per year, as shown in Table 7. Furthermore, the project would result in an overall lifetime GHG emissions reduction of approximately 6,034 MT of CO₂e. Therefore, the project would result in a beneficial impact to regional, statewide, and global GHG emissions, and no adverse environmental impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

The primary plans, policies, and regulations adopted for the purposes of reducing GHG emissions applicable to the proposed project consist of SB 100 and the 2017 Scoping Plan. SB 100 accelerated the state's Renewables Portfolio Standard Program by increasing California's procurement of electricity from renewable sources to 33 percent of total retail sales by 2020, 60 percent by 2030, and 100 percent by 2045. The project would generate approximately 2.1 gigawatt-hours of electricity each year, or approximately 76.1 gigawatt-hours over the project's lifetime.⁵ This additional solar-generated energy would be added to the power grid and would offset electricity generated by fossil-fuel sources, thereby directly furthering the goals of SB 100. In addition, the project would be consistent with the following goals outlined in the 2017 Scoping Plan Update for the electricity sector:

- Per SB 350, increase the Renewable Portfolio Standard to 50 percent of retail sales by 2030 and ensure grid reliability.
- Per SB 350, efforts to evaluate, develop, and deploy regionalization of the grid and integration of renewables via regionalization of the California Independent System Operator shall continue while maintaining the accounting accuracy and rigor of California's GHG policies.

Furthermore, as discussed under item (a), the proposed project would offset the use of fossil fuel energy sources with renewable solar energy generation, which would result in a net reduction in GHG emissions of approximately 172 MT of CO_2e per year and 6,034 MT of CO_2e over the project's lifetime. This net reduction would further the State's overall goal of the 2017 Scoping Plan to reduce GHG emissions by 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. Therefore, the project would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions. The project's impact related GHG emissions would be beneficial, and no adverse environmental impacts would occur.

NO IMPACT

⁵ ([(1 MW grid size) x (2,175 operational hours per year)] / (1,000 MW/GW)) x 35 years = 76.1 GWh over the project lifetime (See Section 6, *Energy*, for the calculation of the project's estimated operational hours.)

This page intentionally left blank.

9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	uld the project:				
a.	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?			•	
а.	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?			-	
b.	Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within 0.25 mile of an existing or proposed school?				
c.	Be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?				•
d.	For a project located in an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?				•
e.	Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				
f.	Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires?			•	

- a. Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?
- b. Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Construction of the proposed project would temporarily increase the transport and use of hazardous materials during the use of construction vehicles and equipment. Construction activities could cause an upset or accident condition. If such conditions result in a release of hazardous materials into the environment, potential impacts could occur. Limited quantities of miscellaneous hazardous substances, such as diesel fuel, oil, solvents, and other similar materials, would be brought onto the project site, used, and stored during the construction period. These materials would be disposed off-site in accordance with applicable laws pertaining to the handling and disposal of hazardous waste. The transport, use, and storage of hazardous materials during construction would be conducted in accordance with applicable federal and State laws, such as the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, California Hazardous Material Management Act, and California Code of Regulations, Title 22. Once the project is constructed, the project would be unmanned and remotely operated. No hazardous materials would be used or stored on site. While the solar PV panels may contain small quantities of hazardous materials, they would be completely encapsulated within the panels and would not be removed from the panels or exposed to air or water on site during operation. Therefore, the project would not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c. Would the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within 0.25 mile of an existing or proposed school?

There are no existing or proposed schools within 0.25 mile of the project site. In addition, the project would not involve the handling of hazardous materials and would not generate hazardous emissions. Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

d. Would the project be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

The following databases were checked for known hazardous materials contamination at the project site:

- State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) GeoTracker database (SWRCB 2022a)
- U.S. EPA Envirofacts database (U.S. EPA 2022a)
- U.S. EPA Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System (Superfund site) database (U.S. EPA 2022b)
- California Department of Toxic Substances Control EnviroStor database (California Department of Toxic Substances Control 2022)

- SWRCB Disposal Sites Identified with Waste Constituents Above Hazardous Waste Levels Outside the Waste Management Unit (SWRCB 2022b)
- List of "active" Cease and Desist Orders and Clean-Up and Abatement Orders from State Water Board (California Environmental Protection Agency 2022a)
- California Environmental Protection Agency's List of Hazardous Waste Facilities Subject to Corrective Action Pursuant to Section 25187.5 of the Health and Safety Code, identified by the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (California Environmental Protection Agency 2022b)

Based on the database review, the project site and properties in its immediate vicinity are not included on the list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. The nearest listed sites are located in the city of San Joaquin, approximately 1.8 miles southwest of the project site (SWRCB 2022b). Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

The nearest public airport is the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport, located approximately 13.6 miles northwest of the project site. The project site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport. The project does not include the construction of housing and would not require on-site personnel during operation. Therefore, the project would not result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

f. Would the project impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

The proposed project is within the jurisdiction of the Master Emergency Services Plan under the County of Fresno (Fresno County Office of Emergency Services 2017). The proposed project would not involve the development of structures or infrastructure that would potentially impair implementation of or physically interfere with the Master Emergency Services Plan. Access to the site would be provided by South Placer Avenue, and the minimal, infrequent vehicle trips associated with vegetation clearing and repair activities during project operation would not disturb traffic patterns along South Placer Avenue or West Adams Avenue in such a manner that could affect emergency response or evacuations as a result of this project. Therefore, the project would not impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

g. Would the project expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires?

The project site is located in a Local Responsibility Area and is not within a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022). In addition, the project site is surrounded by irrigated agricultural lands. The project consists of solar PV panels and

associated equipment and would not place users of the project or surrounding occupants in a high fire hazard severity zone. The project would include installation of a solar PV array with a 20-footwide compacted access path installed along the perimeter of the project site to allow for access to the facility. After construction, the facility would be operated and monitored remotely, and staff would only be present on-site for maintenance on an as-needed basis. Vegetation within the project site would be maintained approximately 10 times per year to minimize wildfire risk. These maintenance events would not require the use of heavy-duty equipment that may result in spillage of diesel or other flammable material. Therefore, the project would not expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

10 Hydrology and Water Quality

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
W	ould the project:				
a.	Violate any water quality standards waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade su or ground water quality?	or rface		•	
b.	Substantially decrease groundwate supplies or interfere substantially w groundwater recharge such that th project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the b	r vith e asin?□			
C.	Substantially alter the existing drain pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course stream or river or through the addi impervious surfaces, in a manner w would:	nage g e of a tion of rhich			
	 Result in substantial erosion o siltation on- or off-site; 	r □		•	
	 Substantially increase the rate amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site; 	e or			
	(iii) Create or contribute runoff way which would exceed the capacity existing or planned stormwate drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources polluted runoff; or	ater city of er of			
	(iv) Impede or redirect flood flows	5? □		-	
d.	In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche risk release of pollutants due to pro inundation?	zones, Þject		-	
e.	Conflict with or obstruct implemen of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater managem plan?	tation lent			

a. Would the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?

Construction

As stormwater flows over a construction site, it can pick up sediment, debris, and chemicals and transport them to receiving water bodies. Although no grading would be required during project construction, contaminants released during construction could be transported to the existing uncovered irrigation canal that runs adjacent to the project site's southern boundary. However, on-site construction activities would be required to comply with the requirements of the statewide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Construction General Permit (Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ) because project construction would disturb more than one acre of land. Compliance with the Construction General Permit would require the creation and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that would include best management practices to prevent polluted stormwater runoff during construction. With regulatory compliance, project construction would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality, and impacts would be less than significant.

Operation

The project site is located in a floodplain designated as Zone A (Federal Emergency Management Agency [FEMA] 2009). Zone A is characterized as a special flood hazard area subject to inundation by the one percent annual chance flood. However, all electrical equipment would be located above the base flood elevation line. Thus, the project would not release pollutants into discharged stormwater or degrade surface or groundwater quality in the event of flooding. The project would be required to obtain a Floodplain Development permit prior to ground disturbance in order to operate within the Special Flood Hazard Area (FEMA 2020). With regulatory compliance, project operation would not the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

- b. Would the project substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?
- e. Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?

The project site overlies the Tulare Lake Basin (USGS 2022a) and is currently undeveloped. The project site also falls within the jurisdiction of the Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin Third Edition (Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 2018). The project would minimally increase impervious surface areas on the site through the introduction of PV panels and associated electrical equipment. However, the land below the solar PV panels would remain undeveloped and the proposed access path would be unpaved. Precipitation falling onto the solar PV panels would run off to the pervious ground below where it would follow existing drainage patterns and infiltrate into the groundwater basin. Additionally, the project would require minimal water usage during construction and operation and therefore would not substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project

would impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin. The water quality objectives in the Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin are enforced through state and Regional Water Quality Control Board policies with which the project would be required to comply, such as the implementation of a SWPPP with best management practices that would limit indirect discharges to groundwater. Consequently, the project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

- c.(i) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?
- c.(ii) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site?
- c.(iii) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner that would create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?
- c.(iv) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would impede or redirect flood flows?

As discussed under item (b) the project would result in a minimal alteration of drainage patterns at the project site by introducing solar PV panels and associated electrical equipment. The project would leave a majority of the site as pervious surfaces because impervious surfaces would only be added at the footings for PV panels, fencing, and inverter and transformer pad. Precipitation that falls on the solar PV panels would run off to the pervious ground below where it would follow existing drainage patterns. In addition, the project would not interfere with flooding patterns because the bottom of the PV modules, inverter, and all electrical equipment would be located above the base line flood elevation. As a result, the project would not alter existing drainage patterns of the project site in a manner which would result in substantial erosion, increase flooding on or off site, exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems, provide substantial additional sources of pollutant runoff, or impede or redirect flood flows. Therefore, impacts related to existing drainage patterns would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

d. In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, would the project risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

The project is not located near a coast or a large inland body of water and is therefore not subject to potential effects from tsunamis and seiches. The project site is located in a floodplain designated as Zone A (FEMA 2009). Zone A is characterized as a special flood hazard area subject to inundation by the one percent annual chance flood. However, the bottom of the PV modules, inverter, and all electrical equipment would be elevated above the base flood elevation line. Therefore, the project would not have the potential to risk release of pollutants due to project inundation, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

11 Land Use and Planning

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	ould the project:				
a.	Physically divide an established community?				
b.	Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?				

a. Would the project physically divide an established community?

The project involves the installation of a solar array system on an undeveloped parcel that is actively tilled for agricultural activities in a rural area of unincorporated Fresno County. Site access would be provided via South Placer Avenue, and there are no proposed design features, such as roads or walls, that would physically divide an established community. Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

The project site consists of actively tilled agricultural land on an undeveloped parcel. The project site is designated Agriculture and zoned by Fresno County as Exclusive Agricultural. JID has sole discretionary authority over the proposed project. As discussed throughout this IS-MND, the proposed project would not result in significant environmental impacts, including those that could result from conflicts with land use plans, policies , or regulations such as the Fresno County General Plan, Fresno County Ordinance Code, Fresno Council of Governments Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy, and Fresno County Congestion Management Plan (see Section 1, *Aesthetics*; Section 4, *Biological Resources*; Section 13, *Noise*; and Section 17, *Transportation*, for specific analyses). Therefore, the project would not cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

12 Mineral Resources

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project:					
a.	Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?				
b.	Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?				

- a. Would the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?
- b. Would the project result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

There are no known mineral resources or resource recovery sites located on the project site (County of Fresno 2021a). In addition, the project site is not located in a mineral resource zone as defined by the California Geological Survey (California Department of Conservation 2015). Furthermore, the project site is not located on, adjacent to, or near mineral resources or recovery sites according to the USGS Mineral Resources Data System (USGS 2022b). The project would not entail construction of structures or facilities for the purposes of extraction or exploration of mineral resources. Therefore, the project would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state or result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan. No impact would occur with respect to mineral resources.

NO IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

13 Noise

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
W	ould the project result in:				
a.	Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?				
b.	Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?			-	
c.	For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				•

Overview of Noise and Vibration

Noise

Sound is a vibratory disturbance created by a moving or vibrating source, which is capable of being detected by the hearing organs. Noise is defined as sound that is loud, unpleasant, unexpected, or undesired and may therefore be classified as a more specific group of sounds. The effects of noise on people can include general annoyance, interference with speech communication, sleep disturbance, and, in the extreme, hearing impairment (California Department of Transportation [Caltrans] 2013). Noise levels are commonly measured in decibels (dB) using the A-weighted sound pressure level (dBA). The A-weighting scale is an adjustment to the actual sound pressure levels so that they are consistent with the human hearing response. Decibels are measured on a logarithmic scale that quantifies sound intensity in a manner similar to the Richter scale used to measure earthquake magnitudes. A doubling of the energy of a noise source, such as doubling of traffic volume, would increase the noise level by 3 dB; dividing the energy in half would result in a 3 dB decrease (Caltrans 2013).

Sound changes in both level and frequency spectrum as it travels from the source to the receiver. The most obvious change is the decrease in the noise level as the distance from the source increases. The manner by which noise reduces with distance depends on factors such as the type of sources (e.g., point or line), the path the sound will travel, site conditions, and obstructions. Noise levels from a point source (e.g., construction, industrial machinery, air conditioning units) typically attenuate, or drop off, at a rate of 6 dBA per doubling of distance. Noise from a line source (e.g., roadway, pipeline, railroad) typically attenuates at about 3 dBA per doubling of distance (Caltrans 2013). Noise levels may also be reduced by intervening structures; the amount of attenuation provided by this "shielding" depends on the size of the object and the frequencies of the noise levels.

The impact of noise is not a function of loudness alone. The time of day when noise occurs and the duration of the noise are also important factors of project noise impact. Most noise that lasts for more than a few seconds is variable in its intensity. Consequently, a variety of noise descriptors have been developed. The noise descriptor used in this report is the equivalent noise level (L_{eq}). L_{eq} is one of the most frequently used noise metrics; it considers both duration and sound power level. The L_{eq} is defined as the single steady-state A-weighted sound level equal to the average sound energy over a time period. When no time period is specified, a 1-hour period is assumed. The L_{max} is the highest noise level within the sampling period, and the L_{min} is the lowest noise level within the measuring period. Normal conversational levels are in the 60 to 65-dBA L_{eq} range; ambient noise levels greater than 65 dBA L_{eq} can interrupt conversations (Federal Transit Administration [FTA] 2018).

Groundborne Vibration

Groundborne vibration of concern in environmental analysis consists of the oscillatory waves that move from a source through the ground to adjacent buildings or structures and vibration energy may propagate through the buildings or structures. Vibration may be felt, may manifest as an audible low-frequency rumbling noise (referred to as groundborne noise), and may cause windows, items on shelves, and pictures on walls to rattle. Although groundborne vibration is sometimes noticeable in outdoor environments, it is almost never annoying to people who are outdoors. The primary concern from vibration is that it can be intrusive and annoying to building occupants at vibration-sensitive land uses and may cause structural damage.

Typically, ground-borne vibration generated by manmade activities attenuates rapidly as distance from the source of the vibration increases. Vibration amplitudes are usually expressed in peak particle velocity (PPV) or root mean squared (RMS) vibration velocity. The PPV and RMS velocity are normally described in inches per second (in/sec). PPV is defined as the maximum instantaneous positive or negative peak of a vibration signal. PPV is often used as it corresponds to the stresses that are experienced by buildings (Caltrans 2020).

High levels of groundborne vibration may cause damage to nearby building or structures; at lower levels, groundborne vibration may cause minor cosmetic (i.e., non-structural damage) such as cracks. These vibration levels are nearly exclusively associated with high impact activities such as blasting, pile-driving, vibratory compaction, demolition, drilling, or excavation. The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) has determined vibration levels with potential to damage nearby buildings and structures; these levels are identified in Table 8.

Type of Situation	Limiting Velocity (in/sec)	
Historic sites or other critical locations	0.1	
Residential buildings, plastered walls	0.2–0.3	
Residential buildings in good repair with gypsum board walls	0.4–0.5	
Engineered structures, without plaster	1.0–1.5	
in/sec = inches per second		
Source: Caltrans 2020		

Table 8 AASHTO Maximum Vibration Levels for Preventing Damage

Numerous studies have been conducted to characterize the human response to vibration. The vibration annoyance potential criteria recommended for use by Caltrans, which are based on the general human response to different levels of groundborne vibration velocity levels, are described in Table 9.

Table 9 Vibration Annoyance Potential Criteria

	Vibration Level (in/sec PPV)		
Human Response	Transient Sources	Continuous/Frequent Intermittent Sources ¹	
Severe	2.0	0.4	
Strongly perceptible	0.9	0.10	
Distinctly perceptible	0.25	0.04	
Barely perceptible	0.04	0.01	

¹ Continuous/frequent intermittent sources include impact pile drivers, pogo-stick compactors, crack-and-seat equipment, vibratory pile drivers, and vibratory compaction equipment.

in/sec = inches per second; PPV = peak particle velocity

Source: Caltrans 2020

Project Noise Setting

Noise exposure goals for various types of land uses reflect the varying noise sensitivities associated with those uses. The Noise Element of the Fresno County General Plan (2000) identifies residential, school, library, church, hospital, and nursing home uses as noise-sensitive land uses within the County. Other sensitive receivers include transient lodging, motel, and hotel uses.

Vibration-sensitive receivers, which are similar to noise-sensitive receivers, include residences and institutional uses, such as schools, churches, and hospitals. However, vibration-sensitive receivers also include buildings where vibrations may interfere with vibration-sensitive equipment that is affected by vibration levels that may be well below those associated with human annoyance (e.g., recording studies or medical facilities with sensitive equipment).

The Fresno County General Plan Background Report recorded average noise levels ranging from the low 40s dBA to the low-to-mid 50s dBA within the western area of the county (County of Fresno 2000c). The nearest sensitive receivers to the project site are residential uses. The closest residential property line is located approximately 0.4 mile southwest of the project site boundary.

Regulatory Setting

Fresno County General Plan Noise Element

The Fresno County General Plan's Health and Safety Element identifies goals, policies, and implementation programs that guide development in unincorporated Fresno County with regard to noise. The policies in the Health and Safety Element set noise standards and seek to protect noise-sensitive land uses from excessive noise either through noise-reducing project design features or by allowing noise-sensitive land uses to be located only in areas with ambient noise levels below specified thresholds (County of Fresno 2000a). The following goals and policies are applicable to the projects:

- **Goal HS-G:** To protect residential and other noise-sensitive uses from exposure to harmful or annoying noise levels; to identify maximum acceptable noise levels compatible with various land use designations; and to develop a policy framework necessary to achieve and maintain a healthful noise environment.
 - **Policy HS-G.1:** The County shall require that all proposed development incorporate design elements necessary to minimize adverse noise impacts on surrounding land uses.
 - **Policy HS-G.4:** So that noise mitigation may be considered in the design of new projects, the County shall require an acoustical analysis as part of the environmental review process where:
 - b. Proposed projects are likely to produce noise levels exceeding the levels shown in the County's Noise Control Ordinance at existing or planned noise sensitive uses.
 - **Policy HS-G.5:** Where noise mitigation measures are required to achieve acceptable levels according to land use compatibility or the Noise Control Ordinance, the County shall place emphasis of such measures upon site planning and project design. These measures may include, but are not limited to, building orientation, setbacks, earthen berms, and building construction practices. The County shall consider the use of noise barriers, such as sound walls, as a means of achieving the noise standards after other design-related noise mitigation measures have been evaluated or integrated into the projects.
 - **Policy HS-G.6:** The County shall regulate construction-related noise to reduce impacts on adjacent uses in accordance with the County's Noise Control Ordinance.

Fresno County Ordinance Code

Section 8.40.040 (Exterior Noise Standards) in Chapter 8.40 (Noise Control) of the Fresno County Ordinance Code prohibits the creation of noise that causes exterior noise levels at single- or multiple-family residences, schools, hospitals, churches, or public libraries situated in either the incorporated or unincorporated area to exceed the noise level standards as set forth below in Table 10.

		Noise Level Standard (dBA L_{eq})	
Category	Cumulative Number of Minutes in Any One-Hour Time Period	Daytime 7:00 a.m.to 10:00 p.m.	Nighttime 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.
1	30	50	45
2	15	55	50
3	5	60	55
4	1	65	60
5	0	70	65

Table 10 Fresno County Exterior Noise Standards

Notes: In the event the measured ambient noise level exceeds the applicable noise level standard in any category above, the applicable standard shall be adjusted so as to equal the ambient noise level. Each of the noise level standards specified above shall be reduced by 5 dBA for simple tone noises, noises consisting primarily of speech or music, or for recurring impulsive noises. If the intruding noise source is continuous and cannot reasonably be discontinued or stopped for a time period whereby the ambient noise level can be measured, the noise level measured while the source is in operation shall be compared directly to the noise level standards. Source: Fresno County Code of Ordinances Section 8.40.040

Under Section 8.40.060 of the Fresno County Noise Ordinance, noise sources associated with construction are exempt from compliance with the noise standards, provided such activities do not take place before 6:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m. on any day except Saturday or Sunday, or before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.40.040, noise sources associated with the operation of electrical substations shall not exceed 50 dBA when measured within 50 feet of the affected residence, school, hospital, church, or public library.

Noise Level Increases over Ambient Noise Levels

The operational and construction noise limits used in this analysis are set at reasonable levels at which a substantial noise level increase as compared to ambient noise levels would occur. Operational noise limits are lower than construction noise limits to account for the fact that permanent noise level increases associated with continuous operational noise sources typically result in adverse community reaction at lower magnitudes of increase than temporary noise level increases associated with construction activities that occur during daytime hours and do not affect sleep. Furthermore, these noise limits are tailored to specific land uses; for example, the noise limits for residential land uses are lower than those for commercial land uses. The difference in noise limits for each land use indicates that the noise limits inherently account for typical ambient noise levels associated with each land use. Therefore, an increase in ambient noise levels that exceeds these absolute limits would also be considered a substantial increase above ambient noise levels. As such, a separate evaluation of the magnitude of noise level increases over ambient noise levels would not provide additional analytical information regarding noise impacts and, therefore, is not included in this analysis.

a. Would the project result in generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Construction and Decommissioning Noise

Construction and decommissioning activity would generate temporary noise in the project site vicinity, exposing nearby sensitive receivers to increased noise levels. Noise would be generated by heavy-duty diesel construction equipment used for solar array installation and decommissioning.

Each phase of construction has a specific equipment mix and associated noise characteristics, depending on the equipment used during that phase. Construction noise was estimated using reference noise levels and equipment use factors from the FHWA Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM; 2006).

Noise impacts from construction equipment are typically assessed from the center of the equipment activity area over the time period of a construction day. Due to the size of the project site and the use of vibratory pile driving equipment, modeling conservatively assumes simultaneous operation of a vibratory pile driver, a front-end loader, and a trencher operating simultaneously during pile installation at the nearest proposed pile location. Maximum hourly noise levels were estimated to be 88 dBA L_{eq} at a distance of 100 feet (RCNM calculations are included in Appendix E).

Pursuant to Section 8.40.060 of the Fresno County Ordinance Code, noise sources associated with construction are exempt from noise standards, provided such activities do not take place before 6:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m. on any day except Saturday or Sunday, or before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. However, for purposes of analyzing impacts from this project, the FTA *Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual* (FTA 2018) criteria were used. The FTA provides reasonable criteria for assessing construction noise impacts based on the potential for adverse community reaction. For residential uses, the daytime noise threshold is 80 dBA L_{eq} (FTA 2018).

The closest sensitive receiver to project construction would be a residence located approximately 0.4 mile southwest of the nearest pile to be driven on the project site. Construction noise levels would be approximately 61 dBA L_{eq} at this residence, which would not exceed the FTA daytime construction noise threshold of 80 dBA L_{eq}. After 35 years, the solar array and associated equipment would likely be decommissioned and removed from the site via a series of activities that would be similar in nature and duration to project construction activities. Decommissioning activities would generate similar, if not lower, noise levels as project construction activities because a vibratory pile driver would not be operating. Therefore, decommissioning noise levels would be approximately 10 dBA lower than construction noise levels and would also not exceed the daytime construction noise threshold of 80 dBA L_{eq}. Therefore, construction and decommissioning noise impacts would be less than significant.

Operational Noise

Stationary noise sources during project operation would include PV solar panel tracking motors and associated electrical equipment, such as a transformer and inverter. Electrical equipment produces a discrete low-frequency humming noise. The noise from transformers is specifically produced by alternating current flux in the core, which causes it to vibrate. Operational noise would result in a significant impact if it would exceed County of Fresno's daytime exterior noise level standard for stationary noise sources of 50 dBA L_{eq} at the boundary of areas planned and zoned for residential or other noise-sensitive land uses (see Table 10). (Because the operation of the project is dependent on sunlight, substantial operational noise would not be generated during nighttime hours. Therefore, the nighttime exterior noise level standards are not utilized in this analysis.)

PV solar panel tracking systems use motors to make brief, incremental adjustments to track the arc of the sun to maximize the solar effect. While these motors may generate noise of up to 44 dBA at 50 feet (Ldn Consulting 2015), these motors would operate briefly throughout an hour (e.g., several minutes per hour) as the sun moves west across the sky, and then would reset at night to face an easterly direction. Given that these motors would operate only for several minutes per hour and be

dispersed throughout the project site, noise associated with this project component would be negligible at the nearest noise-sensitive receivers.

One step-up transformer would be co-located with an inverter on the southeast corner of the project site approximately 80 feet north of the proposed 20-foot-wide access path that would line the perimeter of the project site. The project would install one CPS SCH275KTL-DO/US-800 string inverter and one transformer pad. The CPS SCH275KTL-DO/US-800 string inverter would generate a noise level of 80 dBA at 3 feet (see Appendix E for equipment specifications). Noise from the proposed step-up transformer was modeled using the noise reference level of 80 dBA L_{eq} at 6 feet, consistent with manufacturer specifications for an ABB step-up transformer under the conservative "all cooling fans on" scenario (see Appendix E for equipment specifications). The combined noise levels from the inverter and transformer, which are assumed to operate simultaneously, were analyzed at the closest noise-sensitive receiver, which is a residence located approximately 0.5-mile from the proposed inverter and transformer location on the project site. At these distances, the combined noise level of the inverter and transformer equipment would be approximately 27 dBA L_{eq} at the nearest noise-sensitive receiver. This noise level would be below County of Fresno's daytime standard of 50 dBA L_{eq} for noise-sensitive land uses. Therefore, operational noise impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b. Would the project result in generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Construction activities known to generate excessive ground-borne vibration, such as vibratory pile driving, would be conducted as part of the project during solar array post installation. Vibratory pile driving construction equipment would be used more than 2,100 feet away from the nearest off-site structure (a single-family residence), at which distance vibration would be imperceptible. A secondary source of vibration during project construction would be the dozer used to construct unpaved access roads; however, at a distance of 2,100 feet, vibration from dozer operation at the nearest off-site structure would similarly be imperceptible. Therefore, temporary impacts associated with construction vibration would be less than significant. Operation of the project would not include substantial vibration sources. Therefore, no operational vibration impacts would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT

c. For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

The airport nearest to the project site is the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport located approximately 13.6 miles to the northwest. The project would not be located within the noise contours of the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport, and the intermittent flights at the San Joaquin Airport would not create substantial noise levels at the project site. Therefore, the project would not expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels from airport operations. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT
This page intentionally left blank.

14 Population and Housing

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would	the project:				
a. Ind gro pro ind roa	duce substantial unplanned population owth in an area, either directly (e.g., by oposing new homes and businesses) or directly (e.g., through extension of ads or other infrastructure)?				
b. Dis peo cor els	splace substantial numbers of existing ople or housing, necessitating the nstruction of replacement housing sewhere?				

a. Would the project induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

The project would not include any new homes or businesses and would not directly induce substantial unplanned population growth. The project would be unmanned and operated remotely with periodic maintenance and repair activities approximately ten times per year. As a result, the project would require few to no new employees during operation. In addition, the project does not include features that would indirectly induce unplanned population growth, such as extended roads or utilities serving undeveloped areas. Furthermore, although the project would develop a new energy supply source, which could indirectly support population growth, energy generated by the project is intended to offset JID's current non-renewable electricity usage and its associated GHG emissions, not to create a new source of base-load power in response to growth in demand for electricity. Therefore, the project would not induce substantial unplanned population growth in the area, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No housing or other occupied structures are present on the project site. Therefore, the project would not displace any housing or people, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

15 Public Services

			Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
a.	Wo adv the gov faci cau in c rati per put	uld the project result in substantial rerse physical impacts associated with provision of new or physically altered rernmental facilities, or the need for v or physically altered governmental lities, the construction of which could se significant environmental impacts, order to maintain acceptable service os, response times or other formance objectives for any of the plic services:				
	1	Fire protection?			-	
	2	Police protection?			-	
	3	Schools?				-
	4	Parks?				-
	5	Other public facilities?				-

a.1. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered fire protection facilities, or the need for new or physically altered fire protection facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives?

The project site currently contains undeveloped agricultural land. Fire protection for the project site is provided by the Fresno County Fire Protection District, and the nearest fire station is the Fresno County Fire Protection District Station #95 located approximately 5.9 miles northwest of the project site at 25101 West Morton Avenue in Tranquility. The project would include installation of a solar PV array with a 20-foot-wide compacted access path installed along the perimeter of the project site. Vegetation within the project site would be maintained approximately 10 times per year to minimize wildfire risk. The project is not located in a State Responsibility Area or Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2022). In addition, as discussed in Section 14, *Population and Housing*, the proposed project does not include housing or permanent on-site employees and therefore would not result in substantial population growth. Therefore, minimal fire protection services would be required for the project, and the project would not result in the need for new or physically altered facilities for fire protection that could cause significant environmental impacts in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

a.2. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered police protection facilities, or the need for new or physically altered police protection facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives?

Police protection services for the project site are provided by the Fresno County Sheriff's Department. The project site is located in Patrol Area 1 of the Fresno County Sheriff's Department, and the nearest Patrol Area 1 Substation is located at 21925 West Manning Ave in San Joaquin, approximately 2.3 miles south of the project site (Fresno County Sheriff's Office 2022). The proposed project includes installation of a solar array system with no permanent on-site personnel. In addition, as mentioned in under *Description of Project*, the project site would be secured by a fence and gate. Furthermore, as discussed in Section 14, *Population and Housing*, the proposed project does not include housing or permanent on-site employees and therefore would not result in substantial population growth. Therefore, minimal police protection services would be required for the project, and the project would not result in the need for new or physically altered facilities for police protection that could cause significant environmental impacts in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

- a.3. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered schools, or the need for new or physically altered schools, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios or other performance objectives?
- a.4. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered parks, or the need for new or physically altered parks, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios or other performance objectives?
- a.5. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of other new or physically altered public facilities, or the need for other new or physically altered public facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives?

As discussed in Section 14, *Population and Housing*, the proposed project does not include housing or permanent on-site employees and therefore would not result in substantial population growth. As a result, the project would not increase demand of schools, parks, or other public facilities such as libraries and would not result in the need for new or physically altered facilities that could cause significant environmental impacts in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

16 Recreation

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
a.	Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?				
a.	Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?				

- a. Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?
- b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

The proposed project involves the installation of a solar array system and does not include construction of recreational facilities. Furthermore, as discussed in Section 14, *Population and Housing*, the project would not directly or indirectly result in population growth. Therefore, no increase in use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities would occur, and no construction or expansion of recreational facilities would be required. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

17 Transportation

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	ould the project:				
a.	Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?			•	
b.	Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?				
c.	Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible use (e.g., farm equipment)?				
d.	Result in inadequate emergency access?				-

a. Would the project conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

Regional and local plans and policies addressing the circulation system include the Fresno County General Plan Circulation Element, Fresno Council of Governments Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy, and Fresno County Congestion Management Plan. Access to the project site during construction and operation would be provided by South Placer Avenue, which is a two-lane road. No transit stops are located adjacent to the project site. There are no sidewalks or bicycle lanes along West Adams Avenue and South Placer Avenue. Based on information provided by White Pine Renewables, maximum daily construction traffic would consist of approximately 40 roundtrip construction worker commutes, two roundtrip material delivery trips, and one other roundtrip truck trip (e.g., water truck). Construction traffic would be temporary and limited to the duration of the construction schedule (approximately four months). After construction is complete, operation of the project would not generate substantial amounts of traffic because the project would be monitored and operated remotely. Periodic vehicle trips would occur to the project site approximately 10 times per year for vegetation maintenance, repairs, and panel washing. The minimal level of additional trips generated as a result of the project would not have the potential to conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b. Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b) identifies criteria for evaluating transportation impacts. Specifically, the guidelines state vehicle miles travelled (VMT) exceeding an applicable threshold of significance may indicate a significant impact. According to Section 15064.3(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, a lead agency may include a qualitative analysis of operational and construction traffic. Pursuant to Section 15064.3(c) although a lead agency may elect to immediately apply the provisions of the updated guidelines. The Fresno Council of Governments has published a guidance document for evaluating VMT impacts, which includes a recommended screening criterion of 500 average daily trips (ADT). Projects that generate fewer than 500 ADT are presumed to result in a less-than-significant VMT impact (Fresno Council of Governments 2020). For the specific purpose of evaluating the VMT impacts of the proposed project, JID has chosen to apply the screening criteria and thresholds recommended by the Fresno Council of Governments' VMT guidance.

A VMT calculation is typically conducted on a daily or annual basis, for long-range planning purposes. As discussed under item (a), traffic on local roadways may be temporarily increased during project construction due to the presence of construction vehicles and equipment. Increases in VMT from construction would be short-term, minimal and temporary and would be under the recommended screening threshold of 500 trips per day. In addition, maintenance of the proposed project would consist of 10 vehicle trips per year, which also would not exceed the recommended screening threshold of 500 trips per day. Therefore, the project would not conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b), and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

- c. Would the project substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible use (e.g., farm equipment)?
- d. Would the project result in inadequate emergency access?

The project site would be accessed by an existing unpaved access road off South Placer Avenue running parallel to West Adams Avenue. As discussed under item(a), construction and operational traffic would be minimal. No geometric design features or incompatible land uses would be introduced to the project site and local roadway network as a result of the project. In addition, the project does not include modifications to the local roadway network that could result in inadequate emergency access and includes construction of 20-foot-wide access path around the perimeter of the solar PV array to allow for on-site emergency access. Therefore, the project would not substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature or incompatible use or result in inadequate emergency access. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

18 Tribal Cultural Resources

	Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in a Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, or cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:				
 a. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)? 		-		
b. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1? In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native				
American tribe.				

On July 1, 2015, California Assembly Bill 52 of 2014 (AB 52) went into effect, expanding CEQA by defining a new resource category of "tribal cultural resources." AB 52 establishes that "a project with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource is a project that may have a significant effect on the environment" (PRC Section 21084.2). It further states the lead agency shall establish measures to avoid impacts that would alter the significant characteristics of a tribal cultural resource, when feasible (PRC Section 21084.3). PRC Section 21074 (a)(1)(A-B) defines tribal cultural resources as "sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a California Native American tribe" and is:

- 1. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in PRC Section 5020.1(k), or
- 2. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in PRC Section 5024.1(c). In applying

these criteria, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

AB 52 establishes a formal consultation process for California tribes regarding those resources. The consultation process must be completed before a CEQA document can be certified. Under AB 52, lead agencies are required to "begin consultation with a California Native American tribe that is traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area of the proposed project," specifically with those Native American tribes that have requested notice of projects proposed within the jurisdiction of the lead agency.

Pursuant to Public Resources 21080.3.1 and AB 52, JID sent notification letters via email and certified mail on February 17, 2022 to the following 10 Native American tribes that are traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project site:

- Big Sandy Rancheria of Western Mono Indians
- Cold Springs Rancheria of Mono Indians
- Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government
- Kings River Choinumni Farm Tribe
- North Valley Yokuts Tribe
- Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribe
- Table Mountain Rancheria
- Traditional Choinumni Tribe
- Tule River Indian Tribe
- Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band

On March 18, 2022, the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribal Government responded to JID stating that the Tribe has concerns related to the cultural sensitivity of the project site. Because the area is identified as sensitive for tribal cultural resources, the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Government requested tribal monitoring for the project and requested a curation agreement for any discovery of cultural resources and/or burials in the area. JID did not received responses from any other Tribes, and the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribal Government has not provided any further comment. Native American Tribes wishing to partake in AB 52 consultation were required to respond by March 21, 2022.

- a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource as defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 that is listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)?
- b. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource as defined in Public Resources Code 21074 that is a resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1?

The SLF search was returned on January 12, 2022 with negative results for sacred lands within the project site, and no Native American Tribes requested consultation under AB 52. Although the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Government has expressed concerns due to the sensitivity of the project site and requested tribal monitoring by the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribal

Government monitors and a curation agreement, no official consultation request has been received. There is also always the possibility of encountering unanticipated tribal cultural resource deposits and/or human remains during ground-disturbing activities associated with construction (such as grading and excavation), especially if those activities occur in less-disturbed buried sediments. Consequently, impacts to tribal cultural resources would be potentially significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measures TCR-1 and TCR-2, as well as Mitigation Measures CR-1 through CR-3 as discussed in Section 5, *Cultural Resources*, would be required to reduce impacts to tribal cultural resources to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

TCR-1 Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources

In the event that cultural resources of Native American origin are identified during grounddisturbing activities, all ground-disturbing work within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily suspended or redirected until a qualified archaeologist has evaluated the nature and significance of the find; an appropriate Native American representative(s), based on the nature of the find, is consulted; and mitigation measures are put in place for the disposition and protection of any find pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21083.2. If JID, in consultation with local Native Americans, determines the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with local Native American group(s) prior to continuation of any ground-disturbing work within the vicinity of the find. The plan shall include avoidance of the resource or, if avoidance of the resource is infeasible, shall outline the appropriate treatment of the resource in coordination with the appropriate local Native American tribal representative and, if applicable, a qualified archaeologist. Examples of appropriate mitigation for tribal cultural resources include, but are not limited to, protecting the cultural character and integrity of the resource, protecting traditional use of the resource, protecting the confidentiality of the resource, or heritage recovery.

TCR-2 Native American Monitoring

JID shall retain a Native American consultant to conduct Native American monitoring of all projectrelated ground disturbing activities. Native American monitoring should be provided by a locally affiliated tribal member. Monitors will have the authority to halt and redirect work should any tribal cultural resources be identified during monitoring. Native American monitoring may be reduced to spot-checking or eliminated at the discretion of the monitor, in consultation with JID, as warranted by conditions such as encountering bedrock, sediments being excavated are fill, or negative findings during the first 60 percent of rough grading. If monitoring is reduced to spot-checking, spotchecking will occur when ground-disturbance moves to a new location within the project site and when ground disturbance will extend to depths not previously reached (unless those depths are within bedrock).

Significance After Mitigation

Mitigation Measures TCR-1 and TCR-2 require Native American monitoring of ground disturbance activities related to the project as well as the implementation of avoidance measures for and evaluation of any unanticipated discoveries of tribal cultural resources, which would reduce potential impacts to tribal cultural resources to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

This page intentionally left blank.

19 Utilities and Service Systems

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
Wo	ould the project:				
a.	Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?			-	
b.	Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?				
c.	Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?				•
d.	Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?				
e.	Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?			•	

a. Would the project require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Water

The project would not require permanent on-site personnel, and no water service connections or groundwater wells would be installed. The minimal quantities of water required during construction and panel washing activities would be delivered to the site via water trucks as needed.

Consequently, the project would not require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water facilities, and impacts would be less than significant.

Wastewater Treatment

The project would not require permanent on-site personnel and does not include the installation of on-site restroom facilities. Therefore, no wastewater would be generated, and no impact to wastewater treatment facilities would occur.

Stormwater Drainage

The project site is currently undeveloped and was formerly used for agricultural activities. As discussed in Section 10, *Hydrology and Water Quality*, implementation of the proposed project would not substantially increase impervious surfaces on the project site because the land below the solar PV panels would remain undeveloped and because the proposed access paths would be unpaved. Stormwater would run off the surfaces of the solar PV panels and fall onto the unpaved, pervious ground surface, where it would follow existing stormwater drainage patterns. Therefore, no new or expanded stormwater drainage facilities would be required, and no impact would occur.

Electric Power

The proposed project is itself an electric power facility, the environmental effects of which are analyzed and mitigated throughout this IS-MND. No additional new or expanded electric power facilities would be required other than those analyzed herein. Consequently, no additional impact to electric power facilities would occur.

Natural Gas

The proposed project would not involve any components requiring natural gas service. Consequently, no impact related to natural gas facilities would occur.

Telecommunications

The proposed project includes remote data collection systems for monitoring production, system health, and weather conditions, the environmental effects of which are analyzed and mitigated throughout this IS-MND. No additional new or expanded telecommunications facilities would be required other than those analyzed herein. Therefore, no additional impact to telecommunications facilities would occur.

NO IMPACT

b. Would the project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

As discussed under item (a), the project would not require permanent on-site personnel and does not include the installation of water service connections or groundwater wells. Water demand during construction would be temporary and minimal and primarily for dust suppression. In addition, the project would use approximately 1,823 gallons (0.006 acre-feet) of water per year for panel washing, which would be delivered to the site by water trucks. The minimal quantities of water required during construction and periodic panel washing activities would not substantially impact regional water supplies. Therefore, the project would have sufficient water supplies available

to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years, and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c. Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

As discussed under item (a), the project would not require permanent on-site personnel and does not include the construction of on-site restroom facilities. Therefore, no wastewater would be generated, and no impact related to wastewater treatment would occur.

NO IMPACT

- d. Would the project generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?
- e. Would the project comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

The nearest landfill to the project site is the American Avenue Disposal Site, which is located approximately 2.7 miles to the northeast of the project site at 18950 West American Avenue in Kerman. The project site is currently undeveloped; therefore, no demolition waste would be generated during construction. The proposed project would adhere to state and local regulations pertaining to construction waste diversion and recycling. In addition, the project site would be operated and monitored remotely with personnel on-site only for periodic panel washing, vegetation maintenance, and as-needed repairs. Therefore, the project would not generate solid waste in excess of state or local standards, in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste regulation goals and would comply with applicable statutes and regulations related to solid waste. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

20 Wildfire

		Potentially Significant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project:					
a.	Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				•
b.	Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks and thereby expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?				
c.	Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?				-
d.	Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslopes or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?				

- a. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?
- b. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project, due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks and thereby expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?
- c. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

d. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslopes or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

According to the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (2022), the project site is not located in a State Responsibility Area or a Very Fire Hazard Severity Zone. Because the project is not located in or near an SRA or a VHFHSZ, no impacts related to wildfire would occur.

NO IMPACT

21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

		Pc Si	otentially gnificant Impact	Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated	Less than Significant Impact	No Impact
-	 					

Does the project:

- a. Have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?
- b. Have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?
- c. Have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

	•	
		•

a. Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

As discussed in Section 4, *Biological Resources*, the project would not have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, or substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal. Furthermore, as discussed in Section 5, *Cultural Resources*, the project site does not contain any known cultural resources, and there is no evidence that important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory are present at the site. As a result,

the proposed project would not eliminate an important example of major periods of California history or prehistory. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

As described in the discussion of environmental checklist Sections 1 through 20, with respect to all environmental issues, the proposed project would not result in significant and unmitigable impacts to the environment. All anticipated impacts associated with project construction and operation would be either less than significant or less than significant with mitigation incorporated. This is largely due to the fact project construction activities would be temporary, and project operational activities would not significantly alter the environmental baseline condition.

Cumulatively considerable impacts could occur if the construction of other projects occurs at the same time as the proposed project and in the same vicinity, such that the effects of similar impacts of multiple projects combine to expose adjacent sensitive receptors to greater levels of impact than would occur under the proposed project. For example, if the construction of other projects in the area occurs at the same time as construction of the proposed project, potential impacts associated with noise and traffic to residents in the project area may be more substantial. The only other planned project in the vicinity of the project site is JID Solar Project #1, a 3.5-MW solar PV array that would be installed on the parcel immediately adjacent to the proposed project. However, JID Solar Project #1 is expected to finish construction in November 2022, and the proposed project would commence construction in February 2023. Therefore, the two projects would not be constructed concurrently, and they would not combine to create cumulative construction-related impacts. There are no other planned or pending projects within the immediate vicinity of the project site that could combine with the project to result in cumulative construction-related impacts (County of Fresno 2022b).

The project would not require permanent on-site personnel during operation; therefore, it would not contribute to cumulative impacts related to direct or indirect population growth, such as impacts to public services, recreation, and population and housing. Impacts related to cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, land use and planning, mineral resources, and tribal cultural resources are inherently restricted to the project site and would not contribute to cumulative impacts associated with existing and future developments. In addition, air quality and GHG impacts are cumulative by nature, and as discussed in Section 3 Air Quality, and Section 8, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, the project would not generate air pollutant emissions in excess of SJVAPCD thresholds and would have a beneficial project-level impact in terms of GHG emissions; therefore, it would not contribute to the existing significant cumulative air quality impacts related to the SJVAB's nonattainment status for ozone, PM₁₀, and PM_{2.5} or the existing significant cumulative climate change impact. Furthermore, the project's operational impacts to resources such as aesthetics, agriculture and forestry resources, biological resources, hydrology and water quality, noise, transportation, and utilities and service systems would be minimal and would not have the potential to constitute a cumulatively considerable contribution to cumulative impacts that may occur due to existing and future development in the region. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant impact.

NO IMPACT

c. Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

In general, impacts to human beings are associated with such issues as air quality, hazards and hazardous materials, and noise impacts. As detailed under Section 3, *Air Quality*, Section 9, *Hazards and Hazardous Materials*, and Section 13, *Noise*, the proposed project would not result, either directly or indirectly, in substantial adverse effects related to air quality, hazardous materials, and noise. Therefore, impacts to human beings would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

This page intentionally left blank.

References

Bibliography

- Association of Environmental Professionals. 2016. Final White Paper Beyond 2020 and Newhall: A field guide to new CEQA greenhouse gas thresholds and Climate Action Plan targets for California. October 18, 2016. [https://califaep.org/docs/AEP-2016_Final_White_Paper.pdf] (accessed April 2022).
- Baloian, Randy. 2015a.Resource Record for P-10-006617. Report on file at the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center, California State University, Bakersfield.

______. 2015b. Resource Record for P-10-006632. Report on file at the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center, California State University, Bakersfield.

- Bay Ambient Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2017. California Environmental Quality Act Air Quality Guidelines. May 2017. https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/planning-andresearch/ceqa/ceqa_guidelines_may2017-pdf.pdf?la=en (accessed April 2022).
- Berggren, Paige. 2022. Cultural Specialist Monitor I, Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut Tribe. Personal communication via email regarding the tribal cultural resource sensitivity of the project site with Manny Amorelli, General Manager, James Irrigation District. March 8, 2022.
- California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2016. Ambient Air Quality Standards. May 2016. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-07/aaqs2.pdf (accessed April 2022).

_____. 2017. California's 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan. December 14, 2017. https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf (accessed April 2022).

- _____. 2022. "Overview: Diesel Exhaust & Health." https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/overviewdiesel-exhaust-and-health (accessed April 2022).
- California Department of Conservation. 2015. CGS Information Warehouse: Mineral Land Classification.

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/index.html?map=mlc (accessed April 2022).

- _____. 2016. "California Important Farmland Finder." https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/ (accessed April 2022).
- _____. 2019. Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones. https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/alquistpriolo (accessed April 2022).

_____. 2022. EQ Zapp: California Earthquake Hazards Zone Application. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/ (accessed April 2022).

- California Department of Finance. 2021. "E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State, 2011-2021 with 2010 Census Benchmark." May 2021. https://dof.ca.gov/forecasting/Demographics/estimates/estimates-e5-2010-2021/ (accessed April 2022).
- California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2022. Fire Hazard Severity Zone Viewer. https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/ (accessed April 2022).

- California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2022. EnviroStor. https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/ (accessed April 2022).
- California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2013. Technical Noise Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. (CT-HWANP-RT-13-069.25.2) September. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/noise/pub/TeNS Sept 2013B.pdf (accessed April 2022).
 - . 2020. Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual (CT-HWANP-RT-20-365.01.01). April. https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/environmentalanalysis/documents/env/tcvgm-apr2020-a11y.pdf (accessed April 2022).
- California Energy Commission (CEC). 2022a. "California's Petroleum Market." https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-petroleum-market (accessed April 2022).
- . 2022b. "California Retail Fuel Outlet Annual Reporting (CEC-A15) Results." https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/transportation-energy/californiaretail-fuel-outlet-annual-reporting (accessed April 2022).
- California Environmental Protection Agency (CAL EPA). 2022a. List of "active" Cease and Desist Orders and Clean-Up and Abatement Orders from State Eater Board. https://calepa.ca.gov/SiteCleanup/CorteseList/ (accessed April 2022).
- . 2022b. List of Hazardous Waste Facilities Subject to Corrective Action Pursuant to Section 25187.5 of the Health and Safety Code, identified by DTCS. https://calepa.ca.gov/sitecleanup/corteselist/section-65962-5a/ (accessed April 2022).

California Geological Survey (CGS). 2002. Note 36: California Geomorphic Provinces.

- Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board. 2018. Water Quality Control Plan for the Tulare Lake Basin Third Edition. https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/tlbp_201805.pdf (accessed April 2022).
- Data Basin. 2022. Fresno County Williamson Act Parcels, California, 2015. https://databasin.org/maps/new/#datasets=6871c77c876d421b985b1b70ee1640f5 (accessed April 2022).
- Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 2009. Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 06019C2050H.

https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=6808%20s%20placer%20avenue%2C%2 0san%20joaquin%2C%20ca (accessed April 2022)

- ___. 2020. Permit for Floodplain Development. https://www.fema.gov/glossary/permitfloodplain-development (accessed April 2022).
- Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 2018. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual. https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/researchinnovation/118131/transit-noise-and-vibration-impact-assessment-manual-fta-report-no-0123_0.pdf (accessed April 2022).
- Fresno, County of. 2000a. *Fresno County General Plan*. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showpublisheddocument/18117/636753797422170000 (accessed April 2022).

__. 2000b. County of Fresno General Plan Update 2000 Final Environmental Impact Report. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-works-planning/divisions-of-public-worksand-planning/development-services-division/planning-and-land-use/general-plan-maps (accessed April 2022).

_____.2000c. Fresno County General Plan Background Report. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showpublisheddocument/8398/636379166183770000 (accessed April 2022)

_____. 2017. Solar Facility Guidelines. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-worksplanning/divisions-of-public-works-and-planning/development-services-division/planningand-land-use/photovoltaic-facilities-p-1621 (accessed April 2022).

_____. 2018. Zoning Ordinance of the County of Fresno-Section 853. https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/home/showpublisheddocument/20197/636467627459170000 (accessed April 2022).

_____. 2022a. "Photovoltaic Solar Facilities and Processing." https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-works-planning/divisions-of-public-worksand-planning/development-services-division/planning-and-land-use/photovoltaic-facilitiesp-1583 (accessed April 2022).

_____.2022b. "Project Review." https://www.co.fresno.ca.us/departments/public-worksplanning/divisions-of-public-works-and-planning/development-services-division/planningand-land-use/land-use-applications/pro (accessed April 2022).

- Fresno Council of Governments. 2020. Fresno County SB 743 Implementation Regional Guidelines. https://2ave3l244ex63mgdyc1u2mfp-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wpcontent/uploads/2020/07/Fresno-COG-VMT-Report-1.pdf (accessed April 2022).
- Fresno County Office of Emergency Services. 2017. Master Emergency Services Plan. www.co.fresno.ca.us/Home/ShowDocument?id=30146 (accessed April 2022).
- Fresno County Sheriff's Office. 2022. "Area 1." https://www.fresnosheriff.org/area-1.html (accessed April 2022).
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. 2007. Summary for Policymakers. In: Climate Change 2007: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.
- 2021. Climate Change 2021: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Masson-Delmotte, V., P. Zhai, A. Pirani, S. L. Connors, C. Péan, S. Berger, N. Caud, Y. Chen, L. Goldfarb, M. I. Gomis, M. Huang, K. Leitzell, E. Lonnoy, J.B.R. Matthews, T. K. Maycock, T. Waterfield, O. Yelekçi, R. Yu and B. Zhou (eds.)] Cambridge University Press. https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg1/downloads/report/IPCC_AR6_WGI_Full_Report.pdf (accessed April 2022).
- Jennings, C.W. and R.G. Strand. 1958. Geologic map of California: Santa Cruz sheet. California Division of Mines and Geology, scale 1:250,000.

Ldn Consulting. 2015. Noise Assessment NLP Valley Center Solar.

National Park Service. 1983. Archaeological and Historic Preservation: Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines. https://www.nps.gov/subjects/historicpreservation/upload/standards-guidelinesarcheology-historic-preservation.pdf (accessed April 2022). National Renewable Energy Laboratory, 2022, PVWatts Calculator. https://pvwatts.nrel.gov/pvwatts.php (assessed April 2022). San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD). 2008a. "Climate Change Action Plan." www.valleyair.org/programs/CCAP/CCAP_menu.htm (accessed April 2022). . 2008b. Action Summary Minutes, San Joaguin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing Board. Modesto, CA. August 21, 2008. (accessed April 2022). . 2009a. District Policy Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for Stationary Source Projects Under CEQA When Serving as the Lead Agency. December 17, 2009. https://www.valleyair.org/Programs/CCAP/12-17-09/2%20CCAP%20-%20FINAL%20District%20Policy%20CEQA%20GHG%20-%20Dec%2017%202009.pdf (accessed April 2022). . 2009b. Guidance for Valley Land-use Agencies in Addressing GHG Emission Impacts for New Projects under CEQA. December 17, 2009. https://www.valleyair.org/Programs/CCAP/12-17-09/3%20CCAP%20-%20FINAL%20LU%20Guidance%20-%20Dec%2017%202009.pdf (accessed April 2022). . 2015a. Guidance for Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts. March 2015. http://valleyair.org/transportation/GAMAQI.pdf (accessed April 2022). . 2015b. Air Quality Thresholds of Significance – Criteria Pollutants. March 2015. http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/0714-GAMAQI-Criteria-Pollutant-Thresholds-of-Significance.pdf (accessed April 2022). . 2016. 2016 Ozone Plan for 2008 8-Hour Ozone Standard. July 2016. http://valleyair.org/Air Quality Plans/Ozone-Plan-2016/Adopted-Plan.pdf (accessed April 2022). .2018. Ambient Air Quality Standards & Valley Attainment Status. www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/attainment.htm (accessed April 2022). .2020. 2020 Air Monitoring Network Assessment. June 2020. https://www.valleyair.org/aqinfo/Docs/2020-Air-Monitoring-Network-Assessment.pdf (accessed April 2022). .2021. Attainment Plan Revisions for 1997 Annual PM2.5 Standard. August 2021. https://ww2.valleyair.org/media/spjlsext/attainment-plan-revision.pdf (accessed April 2022). Shields, Mark. 2010. PV Systems: Low Levels of Glare and Reflectance vs. Surrounding Environment. https://ww5.cityofpasadena.net/planning/wpcontent/uploads/sites/56/2017/10/Sunpower-Corporation.-PV-Systems-Low-Levels-of-Glare-and-Reflectance-vs.-Surrounding-Environment-.pdf (accessed April 2022). Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP). 2010. Standard Procedures for the Assessment and Mitigation of Adverse Impacts to Paleontological Resources. Society of Vertebrate Paleontology Impact Mitigation Guidelines Revision Committee.

State of California. 2018. California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment Statewide Summary Report. August 27, 2018. http://www.climateassessment.ca.gov/state/ (accessed April 2022).
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 2022a, GeoTracker https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ (accessed April 2022).
.2022b. Sites Identified With Waste Constituents Above Hazardous Waste Levels Outside the Waste Management Unit. https://calepa.ca.gov/wp- content/uploads/sites/6/2016/10/SiteCleanup-CorteseList-CurrentList.pdf (accessed April 2022).
University of California, Davis. 2022. "SoilWeb." https://casoilresource.lawr.ucdavis.edu/gmap/ (accessed April 2022).
United States Department of Agriculture. 2019. Web Soil Survey. https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx (accessed April 2022).
United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA). 2022a. Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Info site https://www3.epa.gov/enviro/facts/rcrainfo/search.html (accessed April 2022).
2022b. Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System (Superfund site) database https://cumulis.epa.gov/supercpad/CurSites/srchsites.cfm (accessed April 2022)
2021a. "Criteria Air Pollutants." Last modified: August 16, 2021. https://www.epa.gov/criteria- air-pollutants (accessed April 2022).
2021b. "Climate Change Indicators: Atmospheric Concentrations of Greenhouse Gases." Last modified: July 21, 2021. epa.gov/climate-indicators/climate-change-indicators- atmospheric-concentrations-greenhouse-gases (accessed April 2022).
United States Energy Information Administration. 2022. California State Profile and Energy Estimates. March 17, 2022. https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA (accessed April 2022).
United States Geological Survey (USGS). 2022a. California's Central Valley. https://ca.water.usgs.gov/projects/central-valley/about-central-valley.html (accessed April 2022).
2022a. Mineral Resources Online Spatial Data. https://mrdata.usgs.gov/general/map- us.html#home (accessed April 2022).

List of Preparers

Rincon Consultants, Inc. prepared this IS-MND under contract to White Pine Renewables. Persons involved in data gathering analysis, project management, and quality control are listed below.

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.

Brenda Eells, Director, Environmental Planning - Renewable Energy Infrastructure Annaliese Miller, Senior Environmental Planner Ethan Knox, Environmental Planner Nicholas Carter, Environmental Planner Andrew McGrath, Associate Paleontologist Audrey Brown, GIS Analyst James Irrigation District
James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

Isabelle Radis, GIS Analyst Yaritza Ramirez, Publishing Specialist

Appendix A

Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Modeling

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	8.80	Acre	8.80	383,328.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Rural	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.7	Precipitation Freq (Days)	45
Climate Zone	3			Operational Year	2023
Utility Company	Pacific Gas and Electric Company				
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	203.98	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.033	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.004

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - Construction only model

Land Use - Construction activity area.

Construction Phase - Based on applicant construction schedule

Off-road Equipment - Construction equipment provided by the applicant

Trips and VMT - Number of trips provided by the applicant. Assuming trip length of 30 miles since Fresno is the closest urban city.

Grading - Soil is balanced

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - Based on applicant information

Water Mitigation -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Fleet Mix -

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblAreaCoating	Area_Parking	23000	52533
tblConstDustMitigation	WaterUnpavedRoadVehicleSpeed	0	5
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	230.00	76.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	3.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	3.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblProjectCharacteristics	UrbanizationLevel	Urban	Rural
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.60	30.00
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	63.00	3.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	16.80	30.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	161.00	40.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

2.1 Overall Construction

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
2023	0.0467	0.4165	0.5704	1.0800e- 003	0.0368	0.0202	0.0570	9.8600e- 003	0.0185	0.0284	0.0000	97.1812	97.1812	0.0205	1.9100e- 003	98.2630
Maximum	0.0467	0.4165	0.5704	1.0800e- 003	0.0368	0.0202	0.0570	9.8600e- 003	0.0185	0.0284	0.0000	97.1812	97.1812	0.0205	1.9100e- 003	98.2630

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
2023	0.0467	0.4165	0.5704	1.0800e- 003	0.0368	0.0202	0.0570	9.8600e- 003	0.0185	0.0284	0.0000	97.1811	97.1811	0.0205	1.9100e- 003	98.2629
Maximum	0.0467	0.4165	0.5704	1.0800e- 003	0.0368	0.0202	0.0570	9.8600e- 003	0.0185	0.0284	0.0000	97.1811	97.1811	0.0205	1.9100e- 003	98.2629

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

Quarter	Start Date	End Date	Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)	Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)
1	2-1-2023	4-30-2023	0.3883	0.3883
2	5-1-2023	7-31-2023	0.0739	0.0739
		Highest	0.3883	0.3883

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	ī/yr		
Area	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	 	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004
Energy	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Mobile	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Waste						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Water						0.0000	0.0000	 	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

2.2 Overall Operational

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Area	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004
Energy	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Mobile	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Waste						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Water						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Solar Array Installation	Building Construction	2/1/2023	5/17/2023	5	76	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 8.8

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Solar Array Installation	Cranes	0	7.00	231	0.29
Solar Array Installation	Forklifts	0	8.00	89	0.20
Solar Array Installation	Generator Sets	0	8.00	84	0.74
Solar Array Installation	Other Construction Equipment	1	8.00	172	0.42
Solar Array Installation	Rough Terrain Forklifts	2	8.00	100	0.40
Solar Array Installation	Skid Steer Loaders	1	8.00	65	0.37
Solar Array Installation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	0	7.00	97	0.37
Solar Array Installation	Trenchers	1	8.00	78	0.50
Solar Array Installation	Welders	0	8.00	46	0.45

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment	Worker Trip	Vendor Trip	Hauling Trip	Worker Trip	Vendor Trip	Hauling Trip	Worker Vehicle	Vendor	Hauling
	Count	Number	Number	Number	Length	Length	Length	Class	Vehicle Class	Vehicle Class
Solar Array Installation	5	40.00	3.00	0.00	30.00	30.00	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

Reduce Vehicle Speed on Unpaved Roads
EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

3.2 Solar Array Installation - 2023

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.0369	0.3927	0.4771	7.0000e- 004		0.0199	0.0199	1	0.0183	0.0183	0.0000	61.8293	61.8293	0.0200	0.0000	62.3292
Total	0.0369	0.3927	0.4771	7.0000e- 004		0.0199	0.0199		0.0183	0.0183	0.0000	61.8293	61.8293	0.0200	0.0000	62.3292

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					tons	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	2.9000e- 004	0.0164	2.8900e- 003	9.0000e- 005	3.1000e- 003	1.3000e- 004	3.2300e- 003	8.9000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	1.0200e- 003	0.0000	8.5009	8.5009	3.0000e- 005	1.2700e- 003	8.8792
Worker	9.4700e- 003	7.4500e- 003	0.0905	2.9000e- 004	0.0337	1.7000e- 004	0.0339	8.9600e- 003	1.5000e- 004	9.1100e- 003	0.0000	26.8511	26.8511	5.1000e- 004	6.4000e- 004	27.0547
Total	9.7600e- 003	0.0238	0.0933	3.8000e- 004	0.0368	3.0000e- 004	0.0371	9.8500e- 003	2.8000e- 004	0.0101	0.0000	35.3520	35.3520	5.4000e- 004	1.9100e- 003	35.9338

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

3.2 Solar Array Installation - 2023

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.0369	0.3927	0.4771	7.0000e- 004		0.0199	0.0199		0.0183	0.0183	0.0000	61.8292	61.8292	0.0200	0.0000	62.3291
Total	0.0369	0.3927	0.4771	7.0000e- 004		0.0199	0.0199		0.0183	0.0183	0.0000	61.8292	61.8292	0.0200	0.0000	62.3291

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					tons	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	2.9000e- 004	0.0164	2.8900e- 003	9.0000e- 005	3.1000e- 003	1.3000e- 004	3.2300e- 003	8.9000e- 004	1.3000e- 004	1.0200e- 003	0.0000	8.5009	8.5009	3.0000e- 005	1.2700e- 003	8.8792
Worker	9.4700e- 003	7.4500e- 003	0.0905	2.9000e- 004	0.0337	1.7000e- 004	0.0339	8.9600e- 003	1.5000e- 004	9.1100e- 003	0.0000	26.8511	26.8511	5.1000e- 004	6.4000e- 004	27.0547
Total	9.7600e- 003	0.0238	0.0933	3.8000e- 004	0.0368	3.0000e- 004	0.0371	9.8500e- 003	2.8000e- 004	0.0101	0.0000	35.3520	35.3520	5.4000e- 004	1.9100e- 003	35.9338

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ate	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	0.00	0.00	0.00		

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	14.70	6.60	6.60	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	0.505022	0.051937	0.170337	0.165963	0.030143	0.007880	0.013096	0.025463	0.000664	0.000317	0.023954	0.001505	0.003719

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Electricity Mitigated				 		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Electricity Unmitigated						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Unmitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	8	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		MT	/yr	
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

Mitigated

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		MT	/yr	
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Mitigated	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004
Unmitigated	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Unmitigated

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					ton	s/yr							MT	'/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.0183					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Consumer Products	0.0248					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004
Total	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.0183			 	 	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Consumer Products	0.0248					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004
Total	0.0431	0.0000	8.0000e- 005	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.6000e- 004	1.6000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	1.7000e- 004

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Apply Water Conservation Strategy

Use Water Efficient Irrigation System

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		МТ	/yr	
Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

7.2 Water by Land Use <u>Unmitigated</u>

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		МТ	/yr	
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

7.2 Water by Land Use

Mitigated

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		МТ	/yr	
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Category/Year

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
		МТ	7/yr	
Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

8.2 Waste by Land Use

Unmitigated

Total	Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	Land Use	
	0	tons	Waste Disposed
0.0000	0.0000		Total CO2
0.0000	0.0000	MT	CH4
0.0000	0.0000	'/yr	N20
0.0000	0.0000		CO2e

Mitigated

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type

Number

Hours/Day

Days/Year

Horse Power

Load Factor

Fuel Type

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces

0

0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

Land Use

tons

MT/yr

Waste Disposed

Total CO2

CH4

N20

CO2e

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
Boilers						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						-
Equipment Type	Number					
11.0 Vogotation						

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

James Irrigation District Solar Project #2

San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	8.80	Acre	8.80	383,328.00	0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Rural	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.7	Precipitation Freq (Days)	45
Climate Zone	3			Operational Year	2023
Utility Company	Pacific Gas and Electric Co	mpany			
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	203.98	CH4 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.033	N2O Intensity 0 (Ib/MWhr)	.004

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - Construction only model

Land Use - Construction activity area.

Construction Phase - Based on applicant construction schedule

Off-road Equipment - Construction equipment provided by the applicant

Trips and VMT - Number of trips provided by the applicant. Assuming trip length of 30 miles since Fresno is the closest urban city.

Grading - Soil is balanced

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - Based on applicant information

Water Mitigation -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Fleet Mix -

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblAreaCoating	Area_Parking	23000	52533
tblConstDustMitigation	WaterUnpavedRoadVehicleSpeed	0	5
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	230.00	76.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	3.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	3.00	0.00
tblOffRoadEquipment	OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount	1.00	0.00
tblProjectCharacteristics	UrbanizationLevel	Urban	Rural
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripLength	6.60	30.00
tblTripsAndVMT	VendorTripNumber	63.00	3.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripLength	16.80	30.00
tblTripsAndVMT	WorkerTripNumber	161.00	40.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
2023	1.2499	10.9887	14.8993	0.0282	0.9954	0.5302	1.5256	0.2658	0.4879	0.7537	0.0000	2,793.350 1	2,793.350 1	0.5959	0.0565	2,825.089 6
Maximum	1.2499	10.9887	14.8993	0.0282	0.9954	0.5302	1.5256	0.2658	0.4879	0.7537	0.0000	2,793.350 1	2,793.350 1	0.5959	0.0565	2,825.089 6

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
2023	1.2499	10.9887	14.8993	0.0282	0.9954	0.5302	1.5256	0.2658	0.4879	0.7537	0.0000	2,793.350 1	2,793.350 1	0.5959	0.0565	2,825.089 6
Maximum	1.2499	10.9887	14.8993	0.0282	0.9954	0.5302	1.5256	0.2658	0.4879	0.7537	0.0000	2,793.350 1	2,793.350 1	0.5959	0.0565	2,825.089 6

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003
Energy	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Mobile	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0500e- 003

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003
Energy	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Mobile	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005	0.0000	2.0500e- 003

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Solar Array Installation	Building Construction	2/1/2023	5/17/2023	5	76	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 8.8

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Solar Array Installation	Cranes	0	7.00	231	0.29
Solar Array Installation	Forklifts	0	8.00	89	0.20
Solar Array Installation	Generator Sets	0	8.00	84	0.74
Solar Array Installation	Other Construction Equipment	1	8.00	172	0.42
Solar Array Installation	Rough Terrain Forklifts	2	8.00	100	0.40
Solar Array Installation	Skid Steer Loaders	1	8.00	65	0.37
Solar Array Installation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	0	7.00	97	0.37
Solar Array Installation	Trenchers	1	8.00	78	0.50
Solar Array Installation	Welders	0	8.00	46	0.45

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment	Worker Trip	Vendor Trip	Hauling Trip	Worker Trip	Vendor Trip	Hauling Trip	Worker Vehicle	Vendor	Hauling
	Count	Number	Number	Number	Length	Length	Length	Class	Vehicle Class	Vehicle Class
Solar Array Installation	5	40.00	3.00	0.00	30.00	30.00	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

Reduce Vehicle Speed on Unpaved Roads

3.2 Solar Array Installation - 2023

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Off-Road	0.9717	10.3344	12.5546	0.0185		0.5224	0.5224	1	0.4806	0.4806		1,793.554 7	1,793.554 7	0.5801	8	1,808.056 5
Total	0.9717	10.3344	12.5546	0.0185		0.5224	0.5224		0.4806	0.4806		1,793.554 7	1,793.554 7	0.5801		1,808.056 5

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

3.2 Solar Array Installation - 2023

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/o	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	7.5400e- 003	0.4394	0.0765	2.3300e- 003	0.0833	3.4600e- 003	0.0868	0.0240	3.3100e- 003	0.0273		246.6678	246.6678	7.5000e- 004	0.0368	257.6475
Worker	0.2706	0.2149	2.2681	7.3600e- 003	0.9121	4.3600e- 003	0.9164	0.2418	4.0200e- 003	0.2458		753.1276	753.1276	0.0151	0.0197	759.3856
Total	0.2781	0.6543	2.3446	9.6900e- 003	0.9954	7.8200e- 003	1.0032	0.2658	7.3300e- 003	0.2731		999.7954	999.7954	0.0159	0.0565	1,017.033 1

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
Off-Road	0.9717	10.3344	12.5546	0.0185		0.5224	0.5224	 	0.4806	0.4806	0.0000	1,793.554 7	1,793.554 7	0.5801		1,808.056 5
Total	0.9717	10.3344	12.5546	0.0185		0.5224	0.5224		0.4806	0.4806	0.0000	1,793.554 7	1,793.554 7	0.5801		1,808.056 5

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

3.2 Solar Array Installation - 2023

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	7.5400e- 003	0.4394	0.0765	2.3300e- 003	0.0833	3.4600e- 003	0.0868	0.0240	3.3100e- 003	0.0273		246.6678	246.6678	7.5000e- 004	0.0368	257.6475
Worker	0.2706	0.2149	2.2681	7.3600e- 003	0.9121	4.3600e- 003	0.9164	0.2418	4.0200e- 003	0.2458		753.1276	753.1276	0.0151	0.0197	759.3856
Total	0.2781	0.6543	2.3446	9.6900e- 003	0.9954	7.8200e- 003	1.0032	0.2658	7.3300e- 003	0.2731		999.7954	999.7954	0.0159	0.0565	1,017.033 1

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Aver	age Daily Trip Ra	ite	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	0.00	0.00	0.00		

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	14.70	6.60	6.60	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces	0.505022	0.051937	0.170337	0.165963	0.030143	0.007880	0.013096	0.025463	0.000664	0.000317	0.023954	0.001505	0.003719

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Unmitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/o	day		
Other Non- Asphalt Surfaces	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	8	0.0000	0.0000	-	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	lay							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003
Unmitigated	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1001					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.1358					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	8.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003
Total	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	0.1001					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	0.1358					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Landscaping	8.0000e- 005	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003
Total	0.2359	1.0000e- 005	9.0000e- 004	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		1.9300e- 003	1.9300e- 003	1.0000e- 005		2.0500e- 003

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Apply Water Conservation Strategy

Use Water Efficient Irrigation System

EMFAC Off-Model Adjustment Factors for Gasoline Light Duty Vehicle to Account for the SAFE Vehicle Rule Applied

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
----------------	--------	-----------	------------	-------------	-------------	-----------

Boilers

Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year Boiler Rating Fuel Type	Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type
--	----------------	--------	----------------	-----------------	---------------	-----------

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type

Number

11.0 Vegetation

JID Solar Project #2 (8.8 Acres, 1 MW)

Displaced Energy Production during 35-year Project life

Annual Energy Production		Annual Average Solar Radiation Hours/Day/Year
Grid Size (MW)	1.0	5.96
Total hrs/year	8,760	
% Operational time ¹	25%	
Operational hours/year	2,175	
KWh produced per year	2,175,400	
Assumed Heat Rate (Btu/KWh)	10,000	
Annual Fuel Equivalent (MMBtu) ²	21,754	

	CA Power Mix ³	Annual Fuel Displacement (MMBtu)
Coal ⁴	0.00%	(
Large Hydro	10.10%	2,19
Natural Gas ⁴	16.40%	3,568
Nuclear	42.80%	9,311
Oil	0.00%	(
Other (petroleum coke/waste heat)	0.00%	(
Renewables	30.60%	6,65
Unspecified sources of Power	0.00%	(
Total	99.9%	21,732

			Annual Pollutant Displacement [*]		
Natural Gas Turbine Emissions					
Pollutant	AP-42 Emission Factor (lb/MMBtu) ⁵	Controlled Emission Factor (lb/MMBtu)	Controlled Emissions (lb)	Controlled Emissions (ton)	AP-42 Emission Factor Source Notes ⁵
CO ₂	110	110	392,442	196.22	Table 3.1-2a

Coal Combustion Emissions					
Pollutant	AP-42 Emission Factor (lb/ton) ⁶	Controlled Emission Factor (lb/ton)	Emissions (Ib) ⁷	Emissions (ton)	AP-42 Emission Factor Source Notes ⁶
CO ₂	6040	6040	0	0.00	Table 1.1-20

445.03

15576.07426

Total	Displaced	Emissions	Associated	With	Direct	Combustion

CO ₂ E (Metric Ton) 178 6,230	Pollutant	tons/year ⁸	tons/lifetime (35 years)
	CO ₂ E (Metric Ton)	178	6,230

Notes:

1. Operational time is based on annual average solar radiation hours per day per year (5.96) for the project area. Source: National Renewable Energy Laboratories, U.S. Department of Energy (https://pvwatts.nrel.gov/pvwatts.hp)

2. The Project is assumed to displace existing power generation equivalent to the current power mix each year of operation.

3. CA Power Mix assumptions are based on data from the 2020 Total System Electric Generatin Table. https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/california-electricity-data/2020-total-system-electric-generation

4. Combustion of natural gas and coal for power are of the greatest concern related to the generation of criteria pollutants and GHG emissions, therefore only fuel displacement of natural

gas and coal due to electricty production from the Solar Scarlet facility are considered in this assessment.

5. EPA Air Pollution Emission Factors AP-42 Section 3.1, Stationary Gas Turbines

6. EPA Air Pollution Emission Factors AP-42 Section 1.1, Bituminous and Subbituminous Coal Combustion

7. Coal characteristics used for conversion: Assumed coal heat content = 24 MMBtu/ton

8. Total particulate matter (CPM-TOT) is expressed in terms of coal ash content therefore emission factor is determined by multiplying % ash content of coal (assumed to be 20% herein) by value listed in Table 1.1.4. Organic fraction of

particulate matter is 20% of total CPM-TOT (Table 1.1-5) and listed as controlled emission factor.

9. SO_x emission factor calculated by multiplying the weight percent of sulfur (assumed to be 7.5%) by the value listed in Table 1.1-3

10. $\mbox{CO}_2\mbox{E}$ volumes are in metric tons rather than short (US) tons



Biological Resource Assessment



Rincon Consultants, Inc.

7080 North Whitney Avenue Suite 101 Fresno, California 93720

559 228 9925

info@rinconconsultants.com www.rinconconsultants.com

March 2, 2022 Project No: 21-11333

Ms. Cate Parker White Pine Renewables Via email: <u>cate.parker@whitepinerenew.com</u>

Subject: Biological Resources Assessment for the James Irrigation District Solar Project #2, Fresno County, California

Dear Ms. Parker:

This report documents the findings of a biological resources assessment conducted by Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) for the James Irrigation District (JID) Solar Project #2 (project) in Fresno County, California. The purpose of this report is to document the existing conditions of the project site and to evaluate the potential for impacts to special status biological resources for compliance with James Irrigation District California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review process.

Project Location and Description

The project site is located in Fresno County (see Attachment 1; Figure 1). The 8.8-acre site is located between South Placer Avenue and West Adams Avenue (see Attachment 1; Figure 2) and is located 0.25-mile east of the JID 1 project site. The site is located on assessor parcel number 030-170-033. The project site is bordered by South Placer Avenue to the west, and recently tilled agricultural lands and various row crops to the north, east, and west. West Adams Avenue and grape vineyards are located to the south of the site.

The proposed project would involve the development of a solar photovoltaic facility on previously disturbed agricultural lands. The proposed project will provide power to JID through PG&E's RES_BCT program.

Regulatory Background

Regulatory authority over biological resources is shared by federal, state, and local authorities under a variety of statutes and guidelines. Primary authority for general biological resources lies within the land use control and planning authority of local jurisdictions (in this instance, Fresno County). The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) is a trustee agency for biological resources throughout the state under CEQA and also has direct jurisdiction under the California Fish and Game Code (CFGC). Under the California and federal Endangered Species Acts (CESA/ESA), CDFW and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) also have direct regulatory authority over species formally listed as Threatened or Endangered as well as native bird species listed under the Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), and the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has regulatory authority over specific biological resources—namely, wetlands and waters of the United States, under Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act. The CDFW, under CFGC Sections 1600-1617, and Regional Water Quality



Control Boards (RWQCB), under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, protect waters and streambeds at the state level. The analysis in this biological resources assessment is guided by the requirements of these laws, and by the operating standards of the implementing agencies. The project site does not occur in Natural Community Conservation Planning or Habitat Conservation Plan areas.

Methods

The biological resources study for the project consisted of a review of the relevant literature and databases, a field reconnaissance survey to confirm existing conditions and determine which sensitive biological resources are present or may occur at the site, and an evaluation of the development to determine potentially significant impacts to biological resources under CEQA. The potential presence of special status species is based on the literature review and a field survey designed to assess habitat suitability and presence of, or potential for presence of target species. The potential for impacts to biological resources was evaluated based on these findings and the assumption of full build-out of the project site. The study area evaluated for this analysis includes the 8.8-acre project site (see Attachment 1; Figure 2).

Literature Review

Rincon reviewed the results of the database searches conducted from the JID Solar Project #1 for the JID Solar Project #2 literature review. The literature review included the background reports database research on special status biological resource occurrences within the *Jamesan, California* U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5-minute quadrangle and surrounding eight quadrangles. Sources included the CDFW California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB) (CDFW 2021a); Biogeographic Information and Observation System (CDFW 2021b); USFWS National Wetlands Inventory (USFWS 2021a); USFWS Information for Planning and Consultation (USWFS 2021b); and USFWS Critical Habitat Portal (USFWS 2021c). Other resources included the California Native Plant Society's (CNPS) online Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California (CNPS 2021); CDFW's Special Vascular Plants, Bryophytes, and Lichens List (CDFW 2021d), and CDFW's Connectivity Areas- California Essential Habitat Connectivity Map (CDFW 2021f). Aerial photographs, topographic maps, soil survey maps, geologic maps, and climatic data in the area were also examined. References are included at the end of this letter. A review of the information contained within these databases, supported by the expert opinion of Rincon's biological staff, resulted in a list of special status species and other resources to be evaluated for their presence or potential to occur at the project site.

Field Survey

Rincon biologist Morgan Craig conducted a reconnaissance-level survey to confirm the evaluation of biological resources in the literature review, assess the habitat suitability for potential special status species, and map vegetation communities and land cover types. Rincon documented and mapped the vegetation communities, land cover types, presence of any sensitive biological resources, potential jurisdictional waters and wetlands, and wildlife connectivity/movement features, and recorded all observations of plant and wildlife species within the study area. Ms. Craig conducted the site visit on February 8, 2022, between the hours of 0920 and 1110. The temperature onsite was approximately 57°F. The biologists walked meandering transects over the entire 8.8-acre study area and associated 0.5-mile buffer for raptor and bird nesting. Site photos from the survey are included as Attachment 2.





Rincon biologists mapped vegetation communities observed within the study area and conducted a focused search for special status plants that would have been apparent and identifiable during the nonblooming season; however, the survey did not constitute a protocol-level floristic survey. The compilation of a comprehensive floral checklist was limited by survey timing, and the analysis of potential impacts to rare plants is based on a habitat assessment and not protocol survey results. Floral nomenclature for native and non-native plants in this report follows the treatments within the second edition of *The Jepson Manual* (Baldwin et al. 2012).

Wildlife species observed directly or detected from calls, tracks, scat, nests, or other signs were documented. The detection of wildlife species was limited by seasonal and temporal factors. As the survey was performed during the day, identification of nocturnal animals was limited to sign, if present on site.

Existing Setting

Topography and Soils

At an elevation range of approximately 165 feet above mean sea level, the topography of the site is relatively flat. The study area is depicted over the *Jamesan, California* USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle. Adjacent land uses include agricultural development.

The study area contains the following soil map unit (USDA NRCS 2022a): Merced clay loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, a poorly drained soil that occurs on basin floors. It is formed from alluvium derived from granite. This soil type is typically used for agriculture if irrigated and reclaimed of excess salts and sodium. Merced clay loam is a hydric soil (USDA NRCS 2022b).

Vegetation/Land Cover Types

There are no intact native vegetation communities within the study area. Two (2) land cover types were identified within the study area during the field survey: Agricultural and Developed. A map of the land-cover types within the study area is shown in Figure 3.

The vegetation community characterizations for this analysis were based on the classification systems presented in *A Manual of California Vegetation, Second Edition* (Sawyer et al. 2009) but have been modified slightly to reflect the existing site conditions most accurately. Although this manual has been superseded by the publication *Preliminary Description of Terrestrial Natural Communities of California* (Holland 1986), it is included for comparison.

Representative photographs of the study area are included as Attachment 2 and a complete list of plant and animal species observed during the field surveys are presented in Attachment 4.

Agricultural

This land cover type is not naturally occurring and is not described in either the Holland (1986) or Sawyer et al. (2009) classification systems. This land cover type within the study area includes an actively tilled field. No signs of plant or animal species activity were observed within the field.



Developed/Ruderal

This land cover type is not naturally occurring and is not described in either the Holland (1986) or Sawyer et al. (2009) classification systems. Developed and ruderal portions of the study area include paved and dirt roads, a man-made levy bordering the agricultural field, and a man-made sedimented culvert along the dirt road on the southeastern corner of the site (Attachment 1; Photo 4). The culvert was likely used for past agricultural uses, such as flood irrigation. Patches of ruderal vegetation occur within the developed land cover type. Tumbleweed (*Amaranthus albus*) and horseweed (*Erigeron canadensis*) were observed near the culvert.

General Wildlife

The project area and surrounding lands consist predominantly of heavily impacted agricultural fields and orchards. Avian species observed on or adjacent to the site include red-tailed hawk (*Buteo jamaicensis*), common raven (*Corvus corax*), western meadowlark (*Sturnella neglecta*), great egret (*Ardea alba*), Savannah sparrow (*Passerculus sandwichensis*), killdeer (*Charadrius vociferus*), great blue heron (*Ardea Herodias*), brewer's blackbird (*Euphagus cyanocephalus*), and black-necked stilt (*Himantopus mixicanus*). Terrestrial species observed/detected include botta's pocket gopher (*Thomomys bottae*), California ground squirrel (*Otospermophilus beecheyi*), and domestic dogs (*Canis lupus familiaris*).

Special Status Biological Resources

This section discusses sensitive biological resources observed on the study area and evaluates the potential for the study area to support other sensitive biological resources.

Special Status Species

Local, state, and federal agencies regulate special status species and may require an assessment of their presence or potential presence to be conducted prior to the approval of development on a property. Assessments for the potential occurrence of special status species are based upon known ranges, habitat preferences for the species, species occurrence records from the CNDDB species occurrence records from other sites in the vicinity of the study area (2021a), and previous reports for the study area. The potential for each special status species to occur in the study area was evaluated according to the following criteria:

- Not expected. Habitat on and adjacent to the site is clearly unsuitable for the species' requirements (foraging, breeding, cover, substrate, elevation, hydrology, plant community, site history, disturbance regime).
- **Observed but not expected.** Specific to bird species observed flying over the site, however habitat on and adjacent to the site is clearly unsuitable for the species' requirements.
- Low Potential. Few of the habitat components meeting the species' requirements are present, and/or the majority of habitat on and adjacent to the site is unsuitable or of very poor quality. The species is not likely to be found on the site.
- Moderate Potential. Some of the habitat components meeting the species' requirements are
 present, and/or only some of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is unsuitable. The species has a
 moderate probability of being found on the site.



- High Potential. All of the habitat components meeting the species' requirements are present and/or
 most of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is highly suitable. The species has a high probability of
 being found on the site.
- Present. Species is observed on the site or has been recorded (e.g., CNDDB, other reports) on the site recently (within the last 5 years).

For the purpose of this report, special status species are those plants and animals listed, proposed for listing, or candidates for listing as Threatened or Endangered by the USFWS under the ESA; those listed or candidates for listing as Rare, Threatened, or Endangered under the CESA or Native Plant Protection Act; those identified as Fully Protected by the California Fish and Game Code (Sections 3511, 4700, 5050, and 5515); those identified as Species of Special Concern or Watch List species by the CDFW; and plants occurring on lists 1 and 2 of the California Native Plant Society (CNPS) California Rare Plant Rank (CRPR) system per the following definitions:

Rank 1A: Plants presumed extinct in California;

rincon

- Rank 1B.1: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere; seriously endangered in California (over 80% of occurrences threatened/high degree and immediacy of threat);
- Rank 1B.2: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere; fairly endangered in California (20-80% occurrences threatened);
- Rank 1B.3: Rare or endangered in California and elsewhere, not very endangered in California (<20% of occurrences threatened or no current threats known);
- **Rank 2**: Rare, threatened or endangered in California, but more common elsewhere.

Based on a query of the CNDDB (2021a), there are 16 special status plant species, 27 special status wildlife species, and four sensitive natural communities documented within the *Jamesan, California* USGS 7.5-minute quad and the eight surrounding quads. The forty-three special status species have been evaluated for potential to occur within the study area (Attachment 3). Only species with present, high, or moderate potential to occur will be evaluated in this document.

Special Status Plant Species

Sixteen (16) special status plant species known to occur in the region were evaluated for their potential to occur in the study area (see Attachment 3). None of these 16 species would be expected to occur within the project site. The species could be excluded based on known range and elevation, the lack of the species' specific habitat requirements within the study area, or due to the disturbed nature of the site and its lack of connectivity to natural vegetation communities.

Special Status Wildlife Species

Rincon identified 27 special status wildlife species that have been documented within the ninequadrangle search radius. These species were reviewed for potential to occur within the study area (see Attachment 3); one species was present during a previous reconnaissance survey at the adjacent site for the JID #1 project, one species has moderate potential to occur, and three have low potential to occur in the study area. Tricolored blackbird, burrowing owl, and San Joaquin kit fox were determined to have a low potential to occur, and therefore will not be discussed further. Special status species that were present or are considered to have moderate potential to occur are discussed in detail below.



White-Faced Ibis

The white-faced ibis (*Plegadis chihi*) is on CDFW's watch list (WL). One white-faced ibis was observed flying over the project site during a previous survey for JID #1 on December 9, 2021. It was observed flying overhead and did not land on or near the study area. White-faced ibis use shallow freshwater marshes for foraging and dense tule thickets for nesting. No foraging or nesting habitat is present within the study area. The species is present in the region of the study area and may be spotted during dispersal but would be unlikely to use the project site due to lack of foraging and nesting habitat. In addition, no occurrences have been documented by the CNDDB within 5 miles of the study area. Despite the recent observation of this species flying overhead, the white-faced ibis is not likely to be present on the project site or within the study area.

Swainson's Hawk

The Swainson's hawk is listed as a state threatened species. The historical breeding range of Swainson's hawk in California included the Great Basin, Sacramento and San Joaquin Basins, the coast from Marin County to San Diego County, and scattered sites in the Mojave and Colorado Deserts (England et al., 1997). The species continues to breed across its entire historical range, but in significantly lower numbers than historically. In the Central Valley, much of the native habitat has been converted to agricultural and urban uses, thereby limiting nesting and foraging opportunities for Swainson's hawk. This species is often found nesting in trees associated with scattered rural residences, particularly in relation to grasslands or dry-land grain fields. Throughout its range the species nest almost exclusively in trees, typically on the edges of woodland adjacent to grass or shrubland habitat (England et al., 1997).

There are several records of Swainson's hawks nesting within 5 miles of the study area, last recorded in 2011. No Swainson's hawks or raptor nests were observed during the site survey and there are no trees present within the study area or in the immediate vicinity. Suitable nesting habitat within 1 mile of the study area is limited to isolated trees on the west side of Clayton Ave. Although there is limited habitat for the species within the study area, a stand of isolated trees along a canal to the west of the study area could provide marginal foraging and nesting habitat for the species. Therefore, Swainson's hawk has a moderate potential to forage and low potential to nest within the study area.

Nesting Birds

Non-game migratory birds protected under the CFGC Section 3503, such as native avian species common to grasslands, agricultural, developed, and ruderal areas, have the potential to breed and forage throughout the study area. Nesting by a variety of common birds protected by the MBTA and CFGC Section 3503 could occur in virtually any location throughout the study area on the ground surface, within native or non-native vegetation, or along transmission lines located within one mile of the project site.

Special Status Vegetation Communities and Critical Habitat

Four (4) sensitive natural communities are documented in the CNDDB within the nine USGS quadrangles surrounding the project area: Coastal and Valley Freshwater Marsh, Valley Sink Scrub, Valley Sacaton Grassland, and Northern Claypan Vernal Pool (CDFW 2021b). None of these communities, nor other sensitive plant communities, occur within the project area.

There is no USFWS designated critical habitat within the project area (USFWS 2021c).



Jurisdictional Waters and Wetlands

No jurisdictional wetlands or waters were mapped within the project area. The project site was originally used as agricultural land and flood-irrigated agricultural production. According to the NWI, one unnamed canal exists south of the project area. The canal is classified as R5UBFx (Riverine [R], Unknown Perennial [5], Unconsolidated Bottom [UB], Semipermanently Flooded [F], and Excavated [x]).

Wildlife Movement

Wildlife movement corridors, or habitat linkages, are generally defined as connections between habitat patches that allow for physical and genetic exchange between otherwise isolated animal populations. Such linkages may serve a local purpose, such as providing a linkage between foraging and denning areas, or they may be regional in nature. Some habitat linkages may serve as migration corridors, wherein animals periodically move away from an area and then subsequently return. Other corridors may be important as dispersal corridors for young animals. A group of habitat linkages in an area can form a wildlife corridor network.

In the vicinity of the study area, disked fields and existing roads could provide local scale opportunities for wildlife movement, particularly disturbance-tolerant species such as coyote. There are no Natural Landscape Blocks or Essential Connectivity Areas mapped within the study area and surrounding land has long been disrupted by intensive agriculture, therefore, the project is not expected to substantially alter existing wildlife movement or interfere with established resident or migratory wildlife corridors.

Local Policies and Ordinances

The project is located in unincorporated Fresno County. Project activities are subject to the Fresno County's General Plan and Municipal Code. The Fresno County General Plan includes open space, conservation, and land use elements. Proposed project activities are not in conflict with any elements of the General Plan as the site is located in agricultural zoning. No native trees were observed on site or are proposed for removal. The project will not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources.

Habitat Conservation Plans

The study area is not within any Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan areas.



Impact Analysis and Mitigation Measures

This section discusses the potential impacts and effects to biological resources that may occur from project implementation.

Special Status Species

The project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

Special Status Plants

Literature review and database searches identified 16 special status plants have the potential to occur within the study area. None are expected to occur within the study area; therefore, impacts to special status plant species are not expected.

Special Status Wildlife

One (1) of the twenty-seven special status wildlife species have potential to occur within the study area based upon known ranges, habitat preferences, species occurrence records in the vicinity of the study area, and presence of suitable habitat. The white-faced ibis was spotted flying overhead during a previous reconnaissance survey at the adjacent site for the JID #1 project. However, due to lack of foraging and nesting habitat, this species is not likely to be present in the study area, and thus no impacts to the white-faced ibis are expected. The one special status wildlife species that has potential to occur is the Swainson's hawk. Impacts to this species may occur through removal of vegetation if active nests are present. Impacts may also occur if active nests are present in undeveloped and landscaped areas adjacent to active construction or staging through disturbance and nest abandonment.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1 Mitigation Measures for Swainson's Hawk, Other Raptors and Nesting Birds

Ground disturbance and vegetation removal activities should be restricted to the non-breeding season (September 16 to January 31) when feasible. If construction activities occur during the nesting bird season (February 1 to September 15), the following mitigation measures are recommended to reduce impacts to Swainson's hawk, other protected raptor species, tricolored blackbirds, and other nesting birds protected by the MBTA and CFGC.

A preconstruction nesting bird survey should be conducted no more than 14 days prior to initiation
of ground disturbance and vegetation removal. The survey should be conducted within the study
area and include a 150-foot buffer for passerines, 500-foot buffer for other raptors, and ½ mile
buffer for active Swainson's hawk nests. The survey should be conducted by a biologist familiar with
the identification of avian species known to occur in the region.


- If the nesting bird survey results are negative, no further action is required. If nests are found, an appropriate avoidance buffer will be determined and demarcated by the biologist with high visibility material. For Swainson's hawk nests, an avoidance buffer of up to ½ mile should be established by a qualified biologist based on the nest location in relation to the project activity, the line-of-sight from the nest to the project activity and observed hawk behavior at the nest.
- All construction personnel should be notified as to the existence of the buffer zones and to avoid entering buffer zones during the nesting season. No ground disturbing activities should occur within the buffer until the avian biologist has confirmed that breeding/nesting is complete, and the young have fledged the nest. Encroachment into the buffer should occur only at the discretion of the qualified biologist.
- Results of the preconstruction nesting bird survey will be submitted in a brief letter report to James Irrigation District no more than 30 days after completion of the survey.

Sensitive Plant Communities and Critical Habitat

The project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

b) Have a substantial adverse impact on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife Service.

No sensitive plant communities or critical habitat are present within the study area. Therefore, no impacts to sensitive natural communities or critical habitat are expected.

Jurisdictional Waters and Wetlands

The project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means.

The project would have no effect on jurisdictional waters and wetlands as there are none located in the project area.

Wildlife Movement

The project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established resident or migratory wildlife corridors or impede the use of wildlife nursery sites.

No significant wildlife movement corridors or habitat linkages are present in the study area. The location within the study area and surrounding land has long been disrupted by intensive agriculture. The project is not expected to substantially alter existing wildlife movement or interfere with established resident or migratory wildlife corridors. Therefore, impacts to wildlife movement would be less than significant.



Local Policies and Ordinance

The proposed project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance

The Fresno County General Plan includes open space, conservation, and land use elements. Proposed project activities are not in conflict with any elements of the General Plan as the site is located in agricultural zoning. No native trees were observed on site or are proposed for removal. The project will not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources.

Habitat Conservation Plan

The proposed project would have a significant effect on biological resources if it would:

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Conservation Community Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan.

The project is not within any applicable habitat conservation plan areas; therefore, no conflicts with state, regional, or local habitat conservation plans would occur.

Sincerely, Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Morgan Craig Associate Biologist

. David Daitch, Ph.D. Principal/Senior Ecologist

Attachments

- Attachment 1 Figures
- Attachment 2 Representative Site Photographs
- Attachment 3 Special Status Species Evaluation Tables
- Attachment 4 Floral and Faunal Compendium



References

- Baldwin, B.G., D.H. Goldman, D.J. Keil, R. Patterson, T.J. Rosatti, and D.H. Wilken, editors. 2012. The Jepson Manual: Vascular Plants of California, second edition. University of California Press, Berkeley.
- Calflora. 2021. Information on wild California plants for conservation, education, and appreciation. Berkeley, CA. Updated online and accessed via: www.calflora.org.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2021a. Natural Diversity Database. (Accessed December 2021). Special Animals List. Periodic publication. 67 pp.
- _____. 2021b. Biogeographic Information and Observation System (BIOS). http://bios.dfg.ca.gov. (Accessed December 2021).
- _____. 2021c. California Natural Diversity Database, Rarefind 5. https://wildlife.ca.gov/data/cnddb/maps-and-data (Accessed December 2021).
- . 2021d. Special Vascular Plants, Bryophytes, and Lichens List. Biogeographic Data Branch, California Natural Diversity Database. (Accessed December 2021).
- ______. 2021f. Essential Connectivity Areas- California Essential Habitat Connectivity Map. (Accessed December 2021).
- California Native Plant Society. 2021. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants. V8-02. http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/. (Accessed December 2021).
- Cornell Lab of Ornithology. 2021. All About Birds. Updated online and accessed via: https://www.allaboutbirds.org/.
- County of Fresno. 2000. General Plan Policy Document. co.fresno.ca.us. (Accessed December 2021).
- England, A.S., M.J. Bechard, and C.S. Houston. 1997. Swainson's Hawk (*Buteo swainsoni*). *In*: A. Poole and F. Gill (eds.), The Birds of North America, No. 265. The Academy of Natural Sci., Philadelphia, PA, and The American Ornithologists' Union, Washington, D.C.
- Holland, Robert F. 1986. Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of California. California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Nongame Heritage Program. 156 pgs.
- Sawyer, J.O., T. Keeler-Wolf, and J.M. Evens. 2009. A Manual of California Vegetation, Second Edition. California Native Plant Society, Sacramento, CA.
- United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2022a. Web Soil Survey. Soil Survey Area: Fresno County, California. Soil Survey Data: Version 8. Available at: http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/. (Accessed February 2022).
- . 2022b. Lists of Hydric Soils. National Cooperative Soil Survey, U.S. Department of Agriculture. Available at: https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/use/hydric/. (Accessed February 2022).
- United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2021a. National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) Wetlands mapper. Available at: https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/data/mapper.html (Accessed December 2021).



. 2021b. Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC). Available at: https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/. (Accessed December 2021).

. 2021c. Critical Habitat Portal. Available at: http://criticalhabitat.fws.gov. (Accessed December 2021).

United States Geological Survey (USGS). 2021. National Hydrography Dataset. Available at: https://www.usgs.gov/core-science-systems/ngp/national-hydrography. (Accessed December 2021).

Attachment 1

Figures













Figure 2 Study Area



Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2022.







Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2022.

Attachment 2

Representative Site Photographs





Photograph 2. View of southeastern corner of the project site, facing west.



Photograph 3. View of southeastern corner of the project site, facing southwest.



Photograph 4. View of sedimented culvert at southeastern corner of the project site, facing southwest.





Photograph 5. View of southwestern corner of the project site, facing east.



Photograph 6. View of southwestern corner of the project site, facing north.



Photograph 7. View of northwestern corner of the project site, facing northeast.



Photograph 8. View of northeastern corner of the project site, facing south.

Attachment 3

Special Status Species Evaluation Tables

Special Status	Plant Spe	cies in the R	Regional Vicinity	(Nine Quad)	of the Study Area
special status	i iuni spe		regional vicinity		of the stody Alea

Scientific Name Common Name	Status Fed/State ESA CRPR	Habitat Requirements	Potential to Occur	Rationale
<i>Atriplex cordulata</i> var. <i>cordulata</i> heartscale	None/None G3T2/S2 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Meadows and seeps, Valley and foothill grassland (sandy). saline or alkaline. 0 - 560 m. annual herb. Blooms Apr- Oct	Not Expected	Native grasslands and suitable soils are not present, and the project site is heavily disturbed. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Atriplex cordulata var. erecticaulis Earlimart orache	None/None G3T1/S1 1B.2	Valley and foothill grassland. 40-100m. Blooms Aug-Sep(Nov)	Not Expected	Native grasslands and suitable elevation are not present at the project site. Twenty-three occurrences have been reported within 5 miles in 1990, although species is presumed extirpated.
<i>Atriplex coronata var. vallicola</i> Lost Hills crownscale	None/None G4T3/S3 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Valley and foothill grassland, Vernal pools. Alkaline 50- 635m. Blooms Apr-Sep	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Atriplex depressa brittlescale	None/None G2/S2 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Meadows and seeps, Playas, Valley and foothill grassland, Vernal pools. Alkaline, Clay 1-320m. Blooms Apr-Oct	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Atriplex minuscula lesser saltscale	None/None G2/S2 1B.1	Chenopod scrub, Playas, Valley and foothill grassland. Alkaline, Sandy 15-200m. Blooms May- Oct	Not Expected	Native grasslands and suitable soils are not present, and the project site is heavily disturbed. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Atriplex persistens vernal pool smallscale	None/None G2/S2 1B.2	Vernal pools. Alkaline vernal pools. 10-115m. Blooms Jun-Oct.	Not Expected	Suitable habitat and elevation are not present at the project site.
<i>Atriplex subtilis</i> subtle orache	None/None G1/S1 1B.2	Valley and foothill grassland. Alkaline 40- 100m. Blooms (Apr)Jun- Sep(Oct)	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. Suitable elevation is not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
<i>Chloropyron palmatum</i> palmate-bracted bird's-beak	FE/SCE G1/S1 1B.1	Chenopod scrub, Valley and foothill grassland. Alkaline 5-155m. Blooms May-Oct	Not Expected	Suitable elevation and habitat are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.

Scientific Name Common Name	Status Fed/State ESA CRPR	Habitat Requirements	Potential to Occur	Rationale
Delphinium recurvatum recurved larkspur	None/None G2?/S2? 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Cismontane woodland, Valley and foothill grassland. Alkaline 3- 790m. Blooms Mar-Jun	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Eriastrum hooveri Hoover's eriastrum	FD/None G3/S3 4.2	Chenopod scrub, Pinyon and juniper woodland, Valley and foothill grassland. Gravelly (sometimes) 50-915m. Blooms Mar-Jul	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Eryngium spinosepalum spiny-sepaled button-celery	None/None G2/S2 1B.2	Valley and foothill grassland, Vernal pools. Some sites on clay soil of granitic origin; vernal pools, within grassland. 80-975m. Blooms Apr-Jun	Not Expected	Suitable habitat is not present at the project site.
Lasthenia chrysantha alkali-sink goldfields	None/None G2/S2 1B.1	Vernal pools. Alkaline 0- 200m. Blooms Feb-Ap	Not Expected	Suitable habitat is not present at the project site.
<i>Layia munzii</i> Munz's tidy-tips	None/None G2/S2 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Valley and foothill grassland. Hillsides, in white-grey alkaline clay soils, w/grasses and chenopod scrub associates. 150- 700m. Blooms Mar-Apr	Not Expected	Native grasslands are not present, and the project site is heavily disturbed.
<i>Monolopia congdonii</i> San Joaquin woollythreads	FE/None G2/S2 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Valley and foothill grassland. Alkaline or loamy plains; sandy soils, often with grasses and within chenopod scrub. 60- 800m. Blooms Feb-May	Not Expected	Suitable soils are not present at the project site. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Puccinellia simplex California alkali grass	None/None G3/S2 1B.2	Chenopod scrub, Meadows and seeps, Valley and foothill grassland, Vernal pools. Alkaline, vernally mesic. Sinks, flats, and lake margins. 2-930m. Blooms Mar-May	Not Expected	Disturbance history of study area limits the possibility of occurrence. Vernal pools are not present at the project site. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.

Scientific Name Common Name	Status Fed/State ESA CRPR	Habitat Requirements	Potential to Occur	Rationale		
Sagittaria sanfordii Sanford's arrowhead	None/None G3/S3 1B.2	Marshes and swamps. In standing or slow-moving freshwater ponds, marshes, and ditches. 0- 650m. Blooms May- Oct(Nov)	Not Expected	Suitable habitat is not present at the project site. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.		
Regional Vicinity refers to	o within a 9-quad search ra	dius of site.				
FE = Federally Endangere	ed FT = Federally Threa	atened FC = Federal Candidate	Species			
SE = State Endangered	ST = State Threatene	ed SC = State Candidate	SR = State Rare			
CRPR (CNPS California Ra 1A=Presumed Extinct in (CRPR (CNPS California Rare Plant Rank): 1A=Presumed Extinct in California					

1B=Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in California and elsewhere

2A=Plants presumed extirpated in California, but more common elsewhere

2B=Plants Rare, Threatened, or Endangered in California, but more common elsewhere

CRPR Threat Code Extension:

.1=Seriously endangered in California (over 80% of occurrences threatened / high degree and immediacy of threat)

.2=Fairly endangered in California (20-80% occurrences threatened)

.3=Not very endangered in California (<20% of occurrences threatened)

Scientific Name Common Name Invertebrates	Status Fed/State ESA CDFW	Habitat Requirements	Potential to Occur	Rationale
Branchinecta longiantenna longhorn fairy shrimp	FE/None G1/S1S2	Endemic to the eastern margin of the Central Coast mountains in seasonally astatic grassland vernal pools. Inhabit small, clear- water depressions in sandstone and clear-to- turbid clay/grass-bottomed pools in shallow swales.	Not Expected	Vernal pools are not present.
<i>Branchinecta lynchi</i> vernal pool fairy shrimp	FT/None G3/S3	Endemic to the grasslands of the Central Valley, Central Coast mountains, and South Coast mountains, in astatic rain-filled pools. Inhabit small, clear-water sandstone- depression pools and grassed swale, earth slump, or basalt-flow depression pools.	Not Expected	Vernal pools are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
<i>Linderiella occidentalis</i> California linderiella	None/None G2G3/S2S3	Seasonal pools in unplowed grasslands with old alluvial soils underlain by hardpan or in sandstone depressions. Water in the pools has very low alkalinity, conductivity, and total dissolved solids.	Not Expected	Vernal pools are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Amphibians				
Spea hammondii western spadefoot	None/None G2G3/S3 SSC	Occurs primarily in grassland habitats, but can be found in valley-foothill hardwood woodlands. Vernal pools are essential for breeding and egg-laying.	Not Expected	Vernal pools are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Reptiles				
Anniella pulchra northern California legless lizard	None/None G3/S3 SSC	Sandy or loose loamy soils under sparse vegetation. Soil moisture is essential. They prefer soils with a high moisture content.	Not Expected	Suitable sandy soils are not present, and disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Emys marmorata western pond turtle	None/None G3G4/S3 SSC	A thoroughly aquatic turtle of ponds, marshes, rivers, streams and irrigation ditches, usually with aquatic vegetation, below 6000 ft elevation. Needs basking sites and suitable (sandy banks or grassy open fields) upland habitat up to 0.5 km from water for egg-laying.	Not Expected	Suitable aquatic habitats are not present, and disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.

Special Status Animal Species in the Regional Vicinity (Nine Quad) of the Study Area

Scientific Name	Status Fed/State ESA CDFW	Habitat Requirements	Potential	Rationale
Gambelia sila blunt-nosed leopard lizard	FE/SE G1/S1 FP	Resident of sparsely vegetated alkali and desert scrub habitats, in areas of low topographic relief. Seeks cover in mammal burrows, under shrubs or structures such as fence posts; they do not excavate their own burrows.	Not Expected	Suitable habitats are not present, and disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Masticophis flagellum ruddocki San Joaquin coachwhip	None/None G5T2T3/S2? SSC	Open, dry habitats with little or no tree cover. Found in valley grassland and saltbush scrub in the San Joaquin Valley. Needs mammal burrows for refuge and oviposition sites.	Not Expected	Disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. Little to no burrows were observed to potentially use as refuge. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Phrynosoma blainvillii coast horned lizard	None/None G3G4/S3S4 SSC	Frequents a wide variety of habitats, most common in lowlands along sandy washes with scattered low bushes. Open areas for sunning, bushes for cover, patches of loose soil for burial, and abundant supply of ants and other insects.	Not Expected	Suitable sandy soils are not present, and disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
<i>Thamnophis gigas</i> giant gartersnake	FT/ST G2/S2	Prefers freshwater marsh and low gradient streams. Has adapted to drainage canals and irrigation ditches. This is the most aquatic of the gartersnakes in California.	Not Expected	Relatively low water source availability could potentially discourage the species. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Thamnophis hammondii two-striped gartersnake	None/None G4/S3S4 SSC	Coastal California from vicinity of Salinas to northwest Baja California. From sea to about 7,000 ft elevation. Highly aquatic, found in or near permanent fresh water. Often along streams with rocky beds and riparian growth.	Not Expected	Relatively low water source availability could potentially discourage the species. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.

Scientific Name Common Name	Status Fed/State ESA CDFW	Habitat Requirements	Potential to Occur	Rationale
Birds				
Agelaius tricolor tricolored blackbird	None/ST G2G3/S1S2 SSC	Highly colonial species, most numerous in Central Valley & vicinity. Largely endemic to California. Requires open water, protected nesting substrate, and foraging area with insect prey within a few km of the colony.	Low Potential	Relatively low water source availability and minimal nesting habitat could potentially discourage the species. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Athene cunicularia burrowing owl	None/None G4/S3 SSC	Open, dry annual or perennial grasslands, deserts, and scrublands characterized by low- growing vegetation. Subterranean nester, dependent upon burrowing mammals, most notably, the California ground squirrel.	Low Potential	Suitable habitat is not present due to the disturbance history of site and lack of mammal burrows required for the species, although there have been occurrences within 5 miles of the project site, last documented in 2016.
<i>Buteo swainsoni</i> Swainson's hawk	None/ST G5/S3	Breeds in grasslands with scattered trees, juniper-sage flats, riparian areas, savannahs, & agricultural or ranch lands with groves or lines of trees. Requires adjacent suitable foraging areas such as grasslands, or alfalfa or grain fields supporting rodent populations.	Moderate	No nests observed and marginal suitable nesting habitat was observed nearby the project site. The species may occasionally use the site for foraging.
Charadrius montanus mountain plover	None/None G3/S2S3 SSC	Short grasslands, freshly plowed fields, newly sprouting grain fields, and sometimes sod farms. Short vegetation, bare ground, and flat topography. Prefers grazed areas and areas with burrowing rodents.	Not Expected	No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
<i>Coccyzus americanus occidentalis</i> western yellow-billed cuckoo	FT/SE G5T2T3/S1	Riparian forest nester, along the broad, lower flood-bottoms of larger river systems. Nests in riparian jungles of willow, often mixed with cottonwoods, with lower story of blackberry, nettles, or wild grape.	Not Expected	Suitable habitats are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
<i>Falco columbarius</i> merlin	None/None G5/S3S4 WL	Seacoast, tidal estuaries, open woodlands, savannahs, edges of grasslands and deserts, farms and ranches. Clumps of trees or windbreaks are required for roosting in open country.	Not Expected	Suitable habitat is not present. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.

Scientific Name	Status Fed/State ESA		Potential	
Common Name	CDFW	Habitat Requirements	to Occur	Rationale
Plegadis chihi white-faced ibis	None/None G5/S3S4 WL	Shallow freshwater marsh. Dense tule thickets for nesting, interspersed with areas of shallow water for foraging.	Observed but not Expected	Observed flying overhead during previous site survey. Suitable nesting and foraging habitat is not present at the project site due to disturbance history of site and lack of suitable freshwater marsh vegetation.
Riparia riparia bank swallow	None/ST G5/S2	Colonial nester; nests primarily in riparian and other lowland habitats west of the desert. Requires vertical banks/cliffs with fine-textured/sandy soils near streams, rivers, lakes, ocean to dig nesting hole.	Not Expected	Suitable habitat is not present. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.
Mammals				
Ammospermophilus nelson Nelson's (=San Joaquin) antelope squirrel	None/ST G2G3/S2S3	Occurs in Western San Joaquin Valley from 200-1200 feet elevation. Uses dry, sparsely vegetated areas with a variety of soils suitable for digging. Digs burrows or uses kangaroo rat or other small mammal burrows. Needs widely scattered shrubs, forbs, and grasses in broken terrain, often with gullies and washes.	Not Expected	Suitable elevation and habitat are not present. Little to no mammal burrows were observed at the project site. No occurrences have been reported within 5 miles.
Dipodomys nitratoides exilis Fresno kangaroo rat	FE/SE G3TH/SH	Alkali sink-open grassland habitats in western Fresno County. Bare alkaline clay-based soils subject to seasonal inundation, with more friable soil mounds around shrubs and grasses.	Not Expected	Disturbance history of site limits the possibility of occurrence. Little to no burrows were observed at the project site.
Eumops perotis californicus western mastiff bat	None/None G4G5T4/S3S4 SSC	Roosts in trees in forests and woodlands of varying elevations. Forages in grasslands, shrublands, open woodlands and forests, and agriculture. Typically found in riparian habitats, does not occur in deserts.	Not Expected	Suitable roost habitats are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.
<i>Lasiurus blossevillii</i> western red bat	None/None G4/S3 SSC	Roosts in trees in forests and woodlands of varying elevations. Forages in grasslands, shrublands, open woodlands and forests, and agriculture. Typically found in riparian habitats, does not occur in deserts.	Not Expected	Suitable roost habitats are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.

Scientific Name Common Name Myotis yumanensis Yuma myotis	Status Fed/State ESA CDFW None/None G5/S4	Habitat Requirements Occurs in a variety of lowland and upland habitats including desert scrub, riparian, and woodlands and forests. Distribution is closely tied to bodies of water. Roosts in a variety of areas including caves, cliffs, mines, crevices in live trees, and buildings and other man-made structures.	Potential to Occur Not Expected	Rationale Suitable roost habitats are not present. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.
Perognathus inornatus San Joaquin pocket mouse	None/None G2G3/S2S3	Grassland, oak savanna and arid scrubland in the southern Sacramento Valley, Salinas Valley, San Joaquin Valley and adjacent foothills, south to the Mojave Desert. Associated with fine-textured, sandy, friable soils.	Not Expected	Suitable habitat and soil are not present at the project site. Little to no burrows were observed at the project site. No occurrences have been reported within 10 miles.
<i>Taxidea taxus</i> American badger	None/None G5/S3 SSC	Most abundant in drier open stages of most shrub, forest, and herbaceous habitats, with friable soils. Needs sufficient food, friable soils and open, uncultivated ground. Preys on burrowing rodents. Digs burrows.	Not Expected	No burrows of sufficient size were observed at the project site. Badgers do not occupy agricultural areas subject to plowing.
Vulpes macrotis mutica San Joaquin kit fox	FE/ST G4T2/S2	Annual grasslands or grassy open stages with scattered shrubby vegetation. Need loose- textured sandy soils for burrowing, and suitable prey base.	Low Potential	No suitable burrows were observed at the project site. Site is within range, but ongoing agricultural activities discourage occupancy. Likely only to occur as a transient.
Regional Vicinity refers to FE = Federally Endangered SE = State Endangered SSC = CDFW Species of Sp.	within a 9-quad set FT = Federally ST = State Th ecial Concern	arch radius of site. y Threatened FC = Federal Candidate Species FS= reatened SC = State Candidate SS=State Sensi SFP = State Fully Protected WL = Watch List	Federally Sensi	tive

Attachment 4

Floral and Faunal Compendium



Scientific Name	Common Name	Status	Native or Introduced
Vines			
Vitis vinifera	grape	None	Introduced; Cultivated
Herbs			
Erigeron canadensis	horseweed	None	Native
Salsola australis	tumbleweed	None	Introduced
Grasses			
Cynodon dactylon	Bermuda grass	None	Introduced, Cal-IPC: Moderate

Plant Species Observed within the Study Area on February 8, 2022

CRPR= California Rare Plant Rank

1B= Rare, threatened, or endangered in California and elsewhere, 0.2= Moderately threatened in California

Cal-IPC=California Invasive Plant Council Rank

Wildlife Species Observed Within the Study Area on February 8, 2022

Scientific Name	Common Name	Status	Native or Introduced			
Birds						
Ardea alba	great egret	None	Native			
Ardea Herodias	great blue heron	None	Native			
Buteo jamaicensis	red-tailed hawk	None	Native			
Charadrius vociferus	killdeer	None	Native			
Corvus corax	common raven	None	Native			
Euphagus cyanocephalus	brewer's blackbird	None	Native			
Himantopus mexicanus	black-necked stilt	None	Native			
Passerculus sandwichensis	Savannah sparrow	None	native			
Sturnella neglecta	western meadowlark	None	Native			
Zenaida macroura	mourning dove	None	Native			
Mammals						
Canis lupus familiaris	domestic dog*	None	Native			
Otospermophilus beecheyi	California ground squirrel*	None	Native			
Thomomys bottae	botta's pocket gopher*	None	Native			
* observed sign by species only (i.e., tracks, scat, burrow)						



Cultural Resources Assessment



Rincon Consultants, Inc.

7080 North Whitney Avenue Suite 101 Fresno, California 93720

559 228 9925

info@rinconconsultants.com www.rinconconsultants.com

March 3, 2022 Project No: 21-11333

Ms. Cate Parker White Pine Renewables 498 Carl Street, Suite 3 San Francisco, CA 94117 Via email: <u>cate.parker@whitepinerenew.com</u>

Subject: Cultural Resources Assessment for James Irrigation District Solar Projects 1 and 2, Fresno County, California

Dear Ms. Parker:

This letter report presents the findings of a cultural resources assessment completed in support of James Irrigation District (James ID) Solar Projects 1 and 2 (proposed projects) located in unincorporated Fresno County, California. Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) was retained by White Pine Renewables to support the proposed projects' compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). This letter report documents the results of the tasks performed by Rincon, specifically a cultural resources records search, archival and background research, and field survey. All work was completed in accordance with CEQA and applicable local regulations. James ID is the lead agency under CEQA.

Project Sites and Description

The project sites are located 1.3 miles northeast of the city of San Joaquin at the northeast corner of the intersection of West Adams Avenue and South Placer Avenue. The proposed projects consist of two separate but adjacent parcels: one parcel totaling 36.5 acres (Assessor's Parcel Number [APN] 030-170-32T), and the other parcel totaling 120.6 acres (APN 030-170-33T) in unincorporated Fresno County. Specifically, the proposed projects encompass portions of Sections 12 and 13 of Township 15 South, Range 16 East on the *Jamesan, California* United States Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Attachment 1: Figure 1). The project sites are bordered by South Placer Avenue to the west, recently tilled agricultural lands to the north, and West Adams Avenue and grape vineyards to the south (see Attachment 1: Figure 2).

The proposed projects involve the development of two solar photovoltaic facilities on a total of 45.3 acres of previously disturbed agricultural lands on the two aforementioned parcels. Two separate solar arrays would be installed, which would include direct current photovoltaic (PV) modules, steel support structures, alternating current electrical inverters, cabling, and other system components. Solar Project 1 would consist of a 3.5-megawatt (MW) solar array system on approximately 36.5 acres of land on APN 030-170-32T (referred to herein as the "western site"), and Solar Project 2 would consist of a 1-MW solar array system on approximately 8.8 acres of land on the eastern parcel (referred to herein as the "eastern site"). The projects also include service boards and step-up transformers as well as metering facilities, conductors, and safety equipment for interconnection to Pacific Gas and Electric's (PG&E) distribution system. No off-site construction would be required to support connections to the PG&E



system. Solar PV panels would be located on piles driven into the ground to depth of eight feet and supports would be bolted onto the piles. All electrical equipment would be elevated above the base flood elevation line.

Methods

Background and Archival Research

Rincon completed background and archival research in support of this assessment in December 2021. A variety of primary and secondary source materials were consulted. Sources included, but were not limited to, historical maps, aerial photographs, and written histories of the area. The following sources were utilized to develop an understanding of the project sites and its context:

- Fresno County Assessor's Office
- Historical aerial photographs accessed via NETR Online
- Historical aerial photographs accessed via University of California, Santa Barbara Library FrameFinder
- Historical U.S. Geological Survey topographic maps

California Historical Resources Information System Records Search

On December 7, 2021, Rincon received records search results (Records Search File No.: 21-463) from the Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center (Attachment 2). The Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center is the official state repository for cultural resources records and reports for the county in which the project falls. The purpose of the records search was to identify previously recorded cultural resources, as well as previously conducted cultural resources studies within the project sites and a 0.5-mile radius. Rincon also reviewed the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP), the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR), the California Historical Landmarks list, and the Built Environment Resources Directory (BERD), as well as its predecessor the California State Historic Property Data (HPD) File. Additionally, Rincon reviewed the Archaeological Determination of Eligibility (ADOE) list.

Sacred Lands File Search

Rincon contacted the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) on November 23, 2021, to request a search of the Sacred Lands File (SLF), as well as a contact list of Native Americans culturally affiliated with the project area (Attachment 3).

Field Survey

Rincon Archaeologist Courtney Montgomery, MA, conducted a pedestrian survey of the project sites on February 15, 2022. Rincon conducted a pedestrian survey using transect intervals spaced 15 meters and oriented generally from east to west. Exposed ground surfaces were examined for artifacts (e.g., flaked stone tools, tool-making debris, stone milling tools, ceramics, fire-affected rock), ecofacts (marine shell and bone), soil discoloration that might indicate the presence of a cultural midden, soil depressions, and features indicative of the former presence of structures or buildings (e.g., standing exterior walls, postholes, foundations) or historic debris (e.g., metal, glass, ceramics). Ground disturbances such as burrows and drainages were also visually inspected. Survey accuracy was maintained using a handheld



Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) unit and a georeferenced map of the project sites. Site characteristics and survey conditions were documented using field records and a digital camera. Copies of the survey notes and digital photographs are maintained at our Rincon Fresno office.

Findings

The following section summarizes the results of all background research and fieldwork as they pertain to archaeological resources that may qualify as historical resources and/or unique archaeological resources.

Known Cultural Resources Studies

The CHRIS records search and background research identified one cultural resources study within 0.5 miles of the project sites (Attachment 2). This previously conducted cultural resources study (FR-00185) does not overlap the proposed project sites.

Known Cultural Resources

The CHRIS records search and background research identified two cultural resources within a 0.5-mile radius of the project sites. Resources recorded in the search radius are listed in Table 1 below. No resources are recorded within or adjacent to the project sites.

Primary Number	Trinomial	Resource Type	Description	Recorder(s) and Year(s)	Eligibility Status	Relationship to Project Sites
P-10- 006617	CA-FRE- 3773H	Historic-Period Structure	James Bypass and Flood Channel	2015 (R. Baloian)	6Z ¹ (2015)	Outside
P-10- 006632	CA-FRE- 3774H	Historic-Period Structure	James Irrigation District Canal System	2015 (R. Baloian)	6Z (2015)	Outside

Table 1 Known Cultural Resources

¹ 6Z: Found ineligible for NRHP, CRHR or local designation through survey evaluation. Source: SSJVIC 2021

Aerial Imagery and Historical Topographic Maps Review

Rincon completed a review of historical topographic maps and aerial imagery to ascertain the development history of the project sites. In a review of historical topographic maps dating from 1924 to 1947, the project sites are depicted as undeveloped (NETR Online 2021). Between 1965 and 1984, a structure is depicted in the northwest corner of the parcel, but the rest of the parcel remains otherwise undeveloped. Aerial imagery from 1946 to 2018 confirms that the project sites were mostly undeveloped agricultural land (NETR Online 2021) with the exception of the northwest corner of the parcel. Imagery from 1946 to 1998 shows disturbance in the northwestern corner of the westernmost project site with varying structures and/or objects depicted in 1946, 1958, 1962, and 1981 (NETR Online 2021). Imagery from 2005 to present depicts the project sites in their current condition (NETR Online 2021).



Sacred Land File Search

On January 12, 2022, the NAHC responded to Rincon's SLF request, stating that the results of the SLF search were negative. See Attachment 3 for the NAHC response, including the Tribal contacts list(s).

James ID conducted Assembly Bill 52 consultation for the projects. On February 17, 2022, Robert Ledger, Tribal Chairman of the Dumna Wo Wah Tribal Government, responded to James ID stating that the tribe had encampments within and around the project sites in the 1800s. Chairman Ledger stated that the Chief at the time would bury cultural and/or spiritual objects within the area of the project sites, traverse the area for gatherings, and use the vicinity for medicinal use and camping. Because the area is within the traditional use area and identified as sensitive for tribal cultural resources, Chairman Ledger requested tribal monitoring for the project.

Survey Results

The field survey did not identify any cultural resources during the field survey. Ground visibility ranged from good to excellent (65 to 95 percent). Vegetation consisted of grasses and weeds throughout both project sites (Attachment 1: Figure 3). Disturbances consisting of tilling were evidenced throughout both parcels (Attachment 1: Figure 4). Modern trash was observed within the western site; however, no modern trash was observed in the eastern site. Additionally, ecofacts consisting of Aves (bird) bones (Attachment 1: Figure 5) were identified within the western site. The bones were not historic in age and did not show signs of human modification No other disturbances were identified. The project sites have been heavily disturbed by the historical use and tilling throughout the years. Figure 6 through Figure 8 in Attachment 1 provide further documentation of site conditions during the current survey.

Conclusions and Recommendations

The impact analysis included here is organized based on the cultural resources thresholds included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G: Environmental Checklist Form:

- a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?
- b. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?
- c. Would the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

Threshold A broadly refers to historical resources. To more clearly differentiate between archaeological and built environment resources, this report limits analysis under Threshold A to built environment resources. Archaeological resources, including those that may be considered historical resources pursuant to Section 15064.5 and those that may be considered unique archaeological resources pursuant to Section 21083.2, are considered under Threshold B.

Historical Built Environment Resources

The field survey and background research did not identify any built-environment resources that may be considered historical resources under CEQA within the project sites. The project therefore does not have



the potential to impact built environment historical resources and Rincon recommends a finding of **no** *impact to historical resources* pursuant to CEQA.

Historical and Unique Archaeological Resources

This assessment did not identify any archaeological resources or archaeological deposits within the project sites. The SLF for the project was returned with negative results, and no cultural resources were identified by the CHRIS records search of the SSJVIC. During Assembly Bill 52 consultation, James ID received a response from the Dumna Wo Wah Tribal Government identifying the project sites as sensitive for tribal cultural resources. Chairman Ledger identified that the area was used in the 1800s by the Chief for medicinal uses, traversing for gatherings, and camping. He also stated that the Chief would bury cultural and/or spiritual objects within and around the project sites. Although the area was identified as sensitive for tribal cultural resources for the Dunma Wo Wah Tribal Government, no archaeological resources were identified on the surface during the pedestrian survey. However, the lack of surface evidence of archaeological materials does not preclude their subsurface existence. Though there is an absence of substantial prehistoric or historic-period archaeological remains within the immediate vicinity, and a high level of existing disturbance to the project sites, Rincon identified the project sites as having a moderate potential for encountering intact subsurface archaeological deposits due to the information provided by Chairman Ledger. Rincon presents the following recommended mitigation measures for a worker environmental awareness program, archaeological and Native American monitoring, and unanticipated discoveries during construction. With adherence to this measure, Rincon recommends a finding of less than significant impact with mitigation for archaeological resources under CEQA.

Recommended Mitigation Measures

Worker Environmental Awareness Program

An environmental professional will conduct a WEAP training on archaeological sensitivity for all construction personnel prior to the commencement of any ground-disturbing activities within the surveyed area. The training material will be developed by an archaeologist who meets or exceeds the Secretary of Interior's Professional Qualification Standards for archaeology (National Park Service [NPS] 1983). Archaeological sensitivity training will include a description of the types of cultural material that may be encountered, cultural sensitivity issues, regulatory issues, and the proper protocol for treatment of the materials in the event of a find.

Archaeological and Native American Monitoring

James ID will retain an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualifications Standards for archaeology (National Park Service 1983) and Native American consultant to conduct archaeological and Native American monitoring of all project-related ground disturbing activities. Native American monitoring will be provided by a locally affiliated tribal member. Monitors will have the authority to halt and redirect work should any archaeological resources be identified during monitoring. If archaeological resources are encountered during ground-disturbing activities, work within 60 feet of the find will halt and the find will be evaluated for listing in the CRHR and NRHP. Archaeological or Native American monitoring or both may be reduced to spot-checking or eliminated at the discretion of the monitors, in consultation with James ID, as warranted by conditions such as encountering bedrock, sediments being excavated are fill, or negative findings during the first 60 percent of rough grading. If



monitoring is reduced to spot-checking, spot-checking will occur when ground-disturbance moves to a new location within the project site and when ground disturbance will extend to depths not previously reached (unless those depths are within bedrock).

Unanticipated Discovery of Cultural Resources

In the event that archaeological resources are encountered during ground-disturbing activities and monitoring has been reduced or halted, work in the immediate area will be halted and an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualifications Standards for archeology (National Park Service 1983) will be contacted immediately to evaluate the find. If the find is prehistoric, then a Native American representative will also be contacted to participate in the evaluation of the find. If necessary, the evaluation may require preparation of a treatment plan and archaeological testing for CRHR eligibility. If the discovery proves to be eligible for the CRHR and cannot be avoided by the proposed project, additional work, such as data recovery excavation, may be warranted to mitigate any significant impacts to historical resources.

Human Remains

No human remains are known to be present within the project sites. However, the discovery of human remains is always a possibility during ground disturbing activities. If human remains are found, the State of California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. In the event of an unanticipated discovery of human remains, the County Coroner must be notified immediately. If the human remains are determined to be of Native American origin, the Coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which will determine and notify a most likely descendant (MLD). The MLD has 48 hours from being granted site access to make recommendations for the disposition of the remains. If the MLD does not make recommendations within 48 hours, the landowner shall reinter the remains in an area of the property secure from subsequent disturbance. With adherence to existing regulations, Rincon recommends a finding of less than significant impact to human remains under CEQA.

Should you have any questions concerning this study, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at (805) 201-9621 or <u>lflaherty@rinconconsultants.com</u>.

Sincerely, Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Leanna Flaherty, MA, RPA Cultural Resources Project Manager

Courtney Montgomery, MA Archaeologist/ Assistant Project Manager



Jannah Apas

Hannah Haas, MA, RPA Senior Archaeologist/ Cultural Resources Program Manager

andrew Pulcheon

Andy Pulcheon, RPA, AICP Principal

Attachments

- Attachment 1 Figures
- Attachment 2 CHRIS Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center Search Results
- Attachment 3 Sacred Lands File Search Results



References

National Park Service

1983 Archaeological and Historic Preservation: Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines. Electronic document, online at http://www.nps.gov/history/local-law-Arch_Standards.htmaccessed December 6, 2021.

NETR Online

2021 Historic Aerials. https://www.historicaerials.com/viewer. Accessed December 2021.

Attachment 1

Figures



Figure 1 Regional Location Map





Figure 2 Project Location Map



Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2022.


Figure 3 Overview of Eastern Site, Facing West



Figure 4 Tilling Evidence within Eastern Site, Facing East







Figure 5 Aves (Bird) Bones Found Within Project Site, Plainview

Figure 6 Overview of Eastern Site, Facing West









Figure 8 Overview of Canal Debris within Western Site, Facing North



Attachment 2

CHRIS – Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center Search Results



12/7/2021

Leanna Flaherty Rincon Consultants, Inc. 180 N. Ashwood Avenue Ventura, CA 93003

Re: James Irrigation District Solar Project (Rincon Project #21-11333) Records Search File No.: 21-463

The Southern San Joaquin Valley Information Center received your record search request for the project area referenced above, located on the Jamesan USGS 7.5' quad. The following reflects the results of the records search for the project area and the 0.5 mile radius:

As indicated on the data request form, the locations of resources and reports are provided in the following format: \Box custom GIS maps \boxtimes GIS data

Resources within project area:	None
Resources within 0.5 mile radius:	P-10-006617, 006632
Reports within project area:	None
Reports within 0.5 mile radius:	FR-00185

Resource Database Printout (list):	oxtimes enclosed	\Box not requested	□ nothing listed
Resource Database Printout (details):	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed
Resource Digital Database Records:	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed
Report Database Printout (list):	oxtimes enclosed	\Box not requested	□ nothing listed
Report Database Printout (details):	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed
Report Digital Database Records:	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed
Resource Record Copies:	oxtimes enclosed	\Box not requested	□ nothing listed
Report Copies:	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed
OHP Built Environment Resources Directory:	oxtimes enclosed	\Box not requested	□ nothing listed
Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility:	\Box enclosed	\Box not requested	⊠ nothing listed
CA Inventory of Historic Resources (1976):	\Box enclosed	⊠ not requested	□ nothing listed

<u>Caltrans Bridge Survey:</u> Not available at SSJVIC; please see <u>https://dot.ca.gov/programs/environmental-analysis/cultural-studies/california-historical-bridges-tunnels</u>

Ethnographic Information:	Not available at SSJVIC
Historical Literature:	Not available at SSJVIC
<u>Historical Maps:</u>	Not available at SSJVIC; please see
http://historicalmaps.arcgis.com/usgs/	
Local Inventories:	Not available at SSJVIC
GLO and/or Rancho Plat Maps:	Not available at SSJVIC; please see
http://www.glorecords.blm.gov/search/defa	ult.aspx#searchTabIndex=0&searchByTypeIndex=1 and/or
http://www.oac.cdlib.org/view?docId=hb848	<u>39p15p;developer=local;style=oac4;doc.view=items</u>
Shipwreck Inventory:	Not available at SSJVIC; please see
https://www.slc.ca.gov/shipwrecks/	

<u>Soil Survey Maps:</u> Not available at SSJVIC; please see <u>http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx</u>

Please forward a copy of any resulting reports from this project to the office as soon as possible. Due to the sensitive nature of archaeological site location data, we ask that you do not include resource location maps and resource location descriptions in your report if the report is for public distribution. If you have any questions regarding the results presented herein, please contact the office at the phone number listed above.

The provision of CHRIS Data via this records search response does not in any way constitute public disclosure of records otherwise exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act or any other law, including, but not limited to, records related to archeological site information maintained by or on behalf of, or in the possession of, the State of California, Department of Parks and Recreation, State Historic Preservation Officer, Office of Historic Preservation, or the State Historical Resources Commission.

Due to processing delays and other factors, not all of the historical resource reports and resource records that have been submitted to the Office of Historic Preservation are available via this records search. Additional information may be available through the federal, state, and local agencies that produced or paid for historical resource management work in the search area. Additionally, Native American tribes have historical resource information not in the CHRIS Inventory, and you should contact the California Native American Heritage Commission for information on local/regional tribal contacts.

Should you require any additional information for the above referenced project, reference the record search number listed above when making inquiries. Invoices for Information Center services will be sent under separate cover from the California State University, Bakersfield Accounting Office.

Thank you for using the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS).

Sincerely,

Celeste M. Thomson Coordinator

Report List

SSJVIC Record Search 21-463

Report No.	Other IDs	Year	Author(s)	Title	Affiliation	Resources
FR-00185		1975	Peak, Ann S., Gerry, Robert, Schulz, Peter D., and Riddell, Francis A.	Archaeological Assessment of Cultral Resources-Mid-Valley Canal Project in Fresno, Tulare, Merced, Madera, and Kings Counties, California	Cultural Resources Section State Department of Parks and Recreation	10-000536, 10-000537, 10-000538, 10-000539, 10-000540, 10-000541, 10-000542, 10-000543, 10-000544, 10-000545, 10-000543, 10-000547, 10-000548, 10-000549, 10-000550, 10-000551, 10-000552, 10-000556, 10-000554, 10-000558, 10-000556, 10-000556, 10-000561, 10-000565, 10-000566, 10-000567, 10-000568, 10-000569,

Resource List

SSJVIC Record Search 21-463

Primary No.	Trinomial	Other IDs	Туре	Age	Attribute codes	Recorded by	Reports
P-10-006617	CA-FRE-003773H	Resource Name - AE-3043-BE- 029; Other - James Bypass and Flood Channel; Fresno Slough Bypass; OHP Property Number - 108585; OTIS Resource Number - 501900	Structure	Historic	HP20	2015 (Randy Baloian, Applied EarthWorks, Inc.)	FR-02769, FR- 02791, FR-02908
P-10-006632	CA-FRE-003774H	Resource Name - James Irrigation District Lateral R Canal	Structure	Historic	HP20	2015 (Randy Baloian, Applied EarthWorks); 2015 (Randy Baloian, Applied EarthWorks)	FR-02769, FR- 02791, FR-02934

Attachment 3

Sacred Lands File Search Results



CHAIRPERSON Laura Miranda Luiseño

VICE CHAIRPERSON **Reginald Pagaling** Chumash

Parliamentarian **Russell Attebery** Karuk

COMMISSIONER William Mungary Paiute/White Mountain Apache

COMMISSIONER Isaac Bojorquez Ohlone-Costanoan

Commissioner Sara Dutschke Miwok

COMMISSIONER Buffy McQuillen Yokayo Pomo, Yuki, Nomlaki

Commissioner Wayne Nelson Luiseño

COMMISSIONER Stanley Rodriguez Kumeyaay

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY Christina Snider Pomo

NAHC HEADQUARTERS

1550 Harbor Boulevard Suite 100 West Sacramento, California 95691 (916) 373-3710 nahc@nahc.ca.gov NAHC.ca.gov STATE OF CALIFORNIA

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE COMMISSION

Gavin Newsom, Governor

January 12, 2022

Leanna Flaherty Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Via Email to: lflaherty@rinconconsultants.com

Re: James Irrigation District Solar Project, Fresno County

Dear Ms. Flaherty:

A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) was completed for the information you have submitted for the above referenced project. The results were <u>negative</u>. However, the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not indicate the absence of cultural resources in any project area. Other sources of cultural resources should also be contacted for information regarding known and recorded sites.

Attached is a list of Native American tribes who may also have knowledge of cultural resources in the project area. This list should provide a starting place in locating areas of potential adverse impact within the proposed project area. I suggest you contact all of those indicated; if they cannot supply information, they might recommend others with specific knowledge. By contacting all those listed, your organization will be better able to respond to claims of failure to consult with the appropriate tribe. If a response has not been received within two weeks of notification, the Commission requests that you follow-up with a telephone call or email to ensure that the project information has been received.

If you receive notification of change of addresses and phone numbers from tribes, please notify me. With your assistance, we can assure that our lists contain current information.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at my email address: <u>Andrew.Green@nahc.ca.gov</u>.

Sincerely,

Indrew Green

Andrew Green Cultural Resources Analyst

Attachment

Native American Heritage Commission Native American Contact List Fresno County 1/12/2022

Big Sandv Rancheria of Western Mono Indians

Elizabeth Kipp, Chairperson P.O. Box 337 Western Mono Auberry, CA, 93602 Phone: (559) 374 - 0066 Fax: (559) 374-0055 lkipp@bsrnation.com

Cold Springs Rancheria of Mono Indians

Carol Bill, Chairperson P.O. Box 209 Tollhouse, CA, 93667 Phone: (559) 855 - 5043 Fax: (559) 855-4445 coldsprgstribe@netptc.net

Cold Springs Rancheria of Mono Indians

Jared Aldern, P. O. Box 209 Tollhouse, CA, 93667 Phone: (559) 855 - 5043 Fax: (559) 855-4445 csrepa@netptc.net

Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government

Robert Ledger, Chairperson 2191 West Pico Ave. Fresno, CA, 93705 Phone: (559) 540 - 6346 ledgerrobert@ymail.com

Foothill Yokut Mono

Mono

Mono

Kings River Choinumni Farm

Tribe Stan Alec, 3515 East Fedora Avenue Fresno, CA, 93726 Phone: (559) 647 - 3227

Foothill Yokut

North Valley Yokuts Tribe

Katherine Perez, Chairperson P.O. Box 717 Linden, CA, 95236 Phone: (209) 887 - 3415 canutes@verizon.net

Costanoan Northern Valley Yokut

North Vallev Yokuts Tribe

Timothy Perez, P.O. Box 717 Linden, CA, 95236 Phone: (209) 662 - 2788 huskanam@gmail.com

Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi Yokut Tribe

Leo Sisco, Chairperson P.O. Box 8 Lemoore, CA, 93245 Phone: (559) 924 - 1278 Fax: (559) 924-3583

Costanoan Northern Valley Yokut

Southern Valley Yokut

Table Mountain Rancheria

Brenda Lavell, Chairperson P.O. Box 410 Friant, CA, 93626 Phone: (559) 822 - 2587 Fax: (559) 822-2693 rpennell@tmr.org

Yokut

Table Mountain Rancheria

Bob Pennell, Cultural Resource Director P.O. Box 410 Yokut Friant, CA, 93626 Phone: (559) 325 - 0351 Fax: (559) 325-0394 rpennell@tmr.org

Traditional Choinumni Tribe

David Alvarez, Chairperson 2415 E. Houston Avenue Fresno, CA, 93720 Phone: (559) 217 - 0396 Fax: (559) 292-5057 davealvarez@sbcglobal.net

Tule River Indian Tribe

Neil Peyron, Chairperson P.O. Box 589 Porterville, CA, 93258 Phone: (559) 781 - 4271 Fax: (559) 781-4610 neil.peyron@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov

Foothill Yokut

Yokut

This list is current only as of the date of this document. Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resource Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources assessment for the proposed James Irrigation District Solar Project, Fresno County.

Native American Heritage Commission Native American Contact List Fresno County 1/12/2022

Tule River Indian Tribe

Joey Garfield, Tribal Archaeologist P. O. Box 589 Yokut Porterville, CA, 93258 Phone: (559) 783 - 8892 Fax: (559) 783-8932 joey.garfield@tulerivertribensn.gov

Tule River Indian Tribe

Kerri Vera, Environmental Department P. O. Box 589 Yokut Porterville, CA, 93258 Phone: (559) 783 - 8892 Fax: (559) 783-8932 kerri.vera@tulerivertribe-nsn.gov

Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band

Kenneth Woodrow, Chairperson 1179 Rock Haven Ct. Foothill Yokut Salinas, CA, 93906 Mono Phone: (831) 443 - 9702 kwood8934@aol.com

This list is current only as of the date of this document. Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 5097.94 of the Public Resource Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code.

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources assessment for the proposed James Irrigation District Solar Project, Fresno County.

Appendix D

Energy Calculations

JID Solar Project #2 - Construction

4/11/2022

Compression-Ignition Engine Brake-S	Specific Fuel (Consumptio	n (BSFC) Factors	[1]:			
HP: 0 to 100	0.0588		HP: Greater than 100 0.0529				
Values	above are ex	pressed in g	allons per horsep	ower-ho	ur/BSFC.		
		CON	STRUCTION EQU	IPMENT			
		Hours per		Load		Fuel Used	
Construction Equipment	#	Day	Horsepower	Factor	Construction Phase	(gallons)	
Rough Terrain Forklifts	2	8	100	0.4	Solar Array Installation	2,8	58
Skid Steer Loaders	1	8	65	0.37	Solar Array Installation	8	59
Other Construction Equipment	1	8	172	0.42	Solar Array Installation	2,3	22
Trenchers	1	8	78	0.5	Solar Array Installation	1,3	93
					Total Fuel Used	7,4	33
						(Gallor	ns)
Construction Phase	Days of	Operation					
Solar Array Installation	-	76	-				
Total Days	-	76	-				

	١	WORKER TR	IPS	
Constuction Phase	MPG [2]	Trips	Trip Length (miles)	Fuel Used (gallons)
Solar Array Installation	24.1	40	30.0	3784.23
			Fuel	3,784.23
	HAULIN	G AND VEN	DOR TRIPS	
				Fuel Used
Trip Class	MPG [2]	Trips	Trip Length (miles)	(gallons)
		HAULING TR	IPS	
Solar Array Installation	7.5	0	0.0	0.00
			Fuel	-
		VENDOR TRI	PS	
Solar Array Installation	7.5	3	30.0	912.00
			Fuel	912.00
	F	otal Gasoline	e Consumption (gallons)	3.784
				-,
	י	otal Diesel C	consumption (gallons)	8,345

Sources:

 United States Environmental Protection Agency. 2021. Exhaust and Crankcase Emission Factors for Nonroad Compression-Ignition Engines in MOVES3.0.2. September. Available at: https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2021-08/420r21021.pdf.
United States Department of Transportation, Bureau of Transportation Statistics. 2021. National Transportation Statistics . Available at: https://www.bts.gov/topics/national-transportation-statistics.

<u>Appendix</u> E

Noise Modeling

Report date: Case Description:

04/28/2022 Construction

**** Receptor #1 ****

	Base	lines (dBA)			
Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night	
Reference Distance at 100 feet	Residential	60.0	55.0	50.0	

Equipment

Description	Impact Device	Usage (%)	Spec Lmax (dBA)	Actual Lmax (dBA)	Receptor Distance (feet)	Estimated Shielding (dBA)
Vibratory Pile Driver	No	20		100.8	100.0	0.0
Front End Loader	No	40		79.1	100.0	0.0
Slurry Trenching Machine	No	50		80.4	100.0	0.0

Results

_ _ _ _ _ _ _

Noise Limits (dBA)

Noise Limit Exceedance (dBA)

Night		Day	Calculate Ev	ed (dBA) vening	 D Ni	ay ght 	Eveni	.ng	
Equipmen Leq	nt Lmax	Leq	Lmax Lmax	Leq Leq Leq	Lmax Lmax	Leq Leq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax
Vibrato	ry Pile Dr	iver	94.8	87.8	 N/A	 N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/A Front Ei N/A	N/A nd Loader N/A	N/A	N/A 73.1 N/A	N/A 69.1 N/A	N/A N/A N/A	N/A N/A N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Slurry [·] N/A	Trenching N/A	Machine N/A	74.3 N/A	71.3 N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/A	N/A	Total N/A	94.8 N/A	88.0 N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

**** Receptor #2 ****

Baselines (dBA)

Description	Land Use	Daytime	Evening	Night
Nearest Rural Residence	Residential	60.0	55.0	50.0

Equipment

Description	Impact Device	Usage (%)	Spec Lmax (dBA)	Actual Lmax (dBA)	Receptor Distance (feet)	Estimated Shielding (dBA)
Vibratory Pile Driver	No	20		100.8	2185.0	0.0
Front End Loader	No	40		79.1	2185.0	0.0
Slurry Trenching Machine	No	50		80.4	2185.0	0.0

Results

Noise Limits (dBA)

Noise Limit Exceedance (dBA)

Night		Day	Calculated (dBA) Evening		Day Night		Evening		
Fauinment			 Imax		 Imax	lea	 Imax	l ea	lmax
Leq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq	Lmax	Leq		LCq	Linux
Vibratory	Pile Dri	ver	68.0	61.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A			
Front End	Loader		46.3	42.3	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A			
Slurry Tre	enching M	lachine	47.6	44.5	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/Á	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A			
-	T	otal	68.0	61.2	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	•	·	